
Date: April 9, 2018 (Monday) 

Time: 6:30 p.m.  

Place:  City Council Chambers Holiday Inn Washington, Capitol 

350 North Valencia Blvd. 550 C Street S.W 

Woodlake, CA 93286  Washington, DC  20024 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the California Ralph M. 

Brown Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, including 

auxiliary aids, translation requests, or other accommodations, or to be able to access this 

agenda and documents in the agenda packet, please contact City Hall at 559-564-8055 at 

least 3 days prior to the meeting.      

The full agenda including staff reports and supporting materials are available at City Hall. 

I. CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons wishing to address the Council on 

items within its jurisdiction but not on this agenda.  NOTE:  Prior to action by the 

Council on any item on this agenda, the public may comment on that item.  Unscheduled 

comments may be limited to 3 minutes. 

All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and non-controversial by 

City staff and will be approved by one motion if no member of the Council or public 

wishes to comment or ask questions.  Items pulled from the Calendar will be considered 

separately. 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR –ACTION AND INFORMATION ITEMS

Request Approval of the Consent Calendar Action Items (IV A-I)

A. Action: Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting held on March 12,

2018 (Pages 1-5)

B. Action: Approval of Warrants (Pages 6-86)

C. Action: Adoption of Resolution: February Monthly Report of Investments

(Pages 87-89)

D. Action: Adoption of Resolution: March Monthly Report of Investments

(Pages 90-92)

E. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approve the 3rd Amendment to the

Purchase and Sale Agreement with Hafeltry Development Company, LLC

for the Property with APN# 060-131-016 (Pages 93-97)



F. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the Agreement Between the County

of Tulare and the City of Woodlake for Public Transportation Services for the

Period of July 1, 2017 Through June 30, 2018 (Pages 98-108)

G. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the City of Woodlake’s Fiscal Year

2018/2019 List of Projects Funded by SB1: The Road Repair and Accountability

Act (Pages 109-115)

H. Action: Proclamation from the City of Woodlake, Proclaiming April 2018 as

Child Abuse Prevention Month (Pages 116-117)

I. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Appoint Michael Navarro to Fill a Vacancy on

the Planning Commission Board (Pages 118-121)

V. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Authorize Staff to Submit a Funding Application

for the North Valencia Extension Project - Public Hearing (Pages 122-125)

B. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the City of Woodlake Energy

Action Plan (Pages 126-156)

C. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the City of Woodlake’s Audited

Basic Financial Statements and Single Audit Report on Federal Awards for the

Year Ended June 30, 2017 (Pages 157-270)

D. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of a Mitigated Negative Declaration

for the Woodlake Sewer Improvements Project – PUBLIC HEARING

Pages 271- 272)

E. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of Negative Declaration for the

Micham Storage Facility – PUBLIC HEARING (Pages 273-275)

F. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of Zoning Amendment 18-001 and

General Plan Amendment 18-001 for APN’s 061-070-033 & 060-070-034 –

PUBLIC HEARING (Pages 276-278)

G. Information: Presentation of the City of Woodlake’s Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Budget (Pages 279-280)

H. Information: City of Woodlake Student Representative (Page 281)

VI. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Information: Items from Staff

B. Information: Items from Council Members

C. Request from Council Members for Future Agenda Items

VII. CLOSED SESSION

1. PERSONNEL (Government Code § 54957(b)).  It is the intention of this governing body

to meet in closed-session to:

Consider the discipline, dismissal or release of a public employee.  

Hear complaints or charges against a public employee. 

Consider public employee appointment/employment for the position of: 

_________________________________________________________________ 

Consider public employee performance evaluation for the position of: 

City Administrator 



 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 

As provided in the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code sections 54950 et seq., the 

Governing Board may meet in closed session with members of its staff and its attorneys. These 

sessions are not open to the public and may not be attended by members of the public.  The 

matters the Council will meet on in closed session are identified below or are those matters 

appropriately identified in open session as requiring immediate attention and arising after the  

posting of the agenda.  Any public reports of action taken in the closed session will be made in 

accordance with Government Code sections 54957.1 

 

“Documents: If distributed to the Council less than 72 hours before a regular meeting, any public 

records which are subject to public inspection and pertain to an open-session item on the regular 

meeting agenda shall be available at the following address at the time they are distributed to a 

majority of the Council: 350 North Valencia Boulevard, Woodlake, California 93286.  Public 

records distributed to the Council at a public meeting will be available to the public at such 

meeting if they were prepared by the City.   

Exemptions and details in Government Code§ 54957.5 (a) shall apply.” 

 

II. ADJOURN 

 

The next scheduled City Council meeting will be held on Monday, April 23, 2018 at 6:30 p.m. at 

City Council Chambers located at 350 North Valencia Boulevard, Woodlake, CA 93286. 

 

City Council: 

 

Rudy Mendoza - Mayor 

Frances Ortiz - Vice Mayor 

Louie Lopez - Councilmember 

Greg Gonzalez Jr. - Councilmember 

Jose L. Martinez - Councilmember 



WOODLAKE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES March 12, 2018 

PRESENT: Councilmembers Mendoza, G. Gonzalez Jr, Ortiz, Lopez & Martinez 

OTHERS: Lara, Marquez, Waters, Gil, & Zacarias 

ABSENT: 

FLAG SALUTE 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Chief Marquez was happy to introduce Officer Isidrio Villarreal.  Officer Villarreal is 

currently hired as Provisional officer.  City Clerk Zacarias administered the Oath of Office 

to Officer Villarreal.  Mayor Mendoza welcomed Officer Villarreal and asked him to 

uphold his oath and always make it home safely every night.    

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR –ACTION AND INFORMATION ITEMS

Request Approval of the Consent Calendar Action Items (IV. A-E)

A. Action: Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting held on February 26,

2018

B. Action: Approval of Warrants

ON A MOTION BY G. GONZALEZ JR., SECOND BY LOPEZ, IT

WAS VOTED TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR.

APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY.

V. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approve the Resolution Supporting Deferred

Action for Childhood Arrivals (DACA) Legislation

City Administrator Lara reported the following: DACA was a program established

under President Barack Obama’s Administration in 2012.  The program granted

work permits and temporary protection from deportation to approximately 800,000

youth who came to the United States before the age of 16.  In July 2017, legislation

was introduced in both the House of Representatives (H.R. 3440) and Senate (S.

1615) to address DACA policy, known as the Development, Relief and Education

for Alien Minors (DREAM) Act.  In September 2017, President Donald Trump’s

administration acted to begin rescinding DACA, giving Congress a six-month

period to consider legislative alternatives and solutions.  Mayor Mendoza opened

up the meeting for discussion on this item.

Vincent Salinas, 1247 E. Sunnyview, Visalia – Mr. Salinas reported they are asking

council to approve a resolution in support of DACA.  He stated the DREAM Act

started 2001 and took 9 years to get to the House and finally reached the Senate in

2011 but didn’t move from there due to lack of support.  In June of 2012, President

Obama signed the executive order establishing the DREAM Act.  As of December

2017, there are a total of 8,000 registered and of those, 20% are under the age of 18

and 80% are 21-31.  There are 500 in the military, 300 in a delayed entry program and

800 are no longer eligible.  There are 3000 still registered and we are asking support

to help them reach their dream.

Elian Andrade, 292 Mission Ct, Woodlake – Mr. Andrade stated this is an important

issue.  Students should be safe on and off campus.  Students have been going door to

door to gather signatures in support of DACA.  They have gathered about 700

signatures in support of this issue.  They are happy to see the council pass this

resolution in support of DACA.

Carlos Lucatero, 378 N. Palm, Woodlake – Mr. Lucatero stated that passing this

resolution is important to the community because no one should live in fear.  It’s good

to know the community is passionate about this issue.
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Genesis Gonzalez, 202 N. Acacia, Woodlake – Ms. Gonzalez stated this resolution is 

important because she is tired of living in fear.  To see her peers, live in fear is 

heartbreaking.  She wants to see her town thrive and live in peace.  She is from a 

family of immigrants and knows this is very important to them as well. 

Stephanie Duarte, 218 N. Palm, Woodlake – Ms. Duarte thanked council for the 

opportunity to speak on this important matter.  She appreciates them listening and 

understands they are important to our community. 

Sara Hutchinson, 1464 W. Barton, Fresno – Ms. Hutchinson thanked council for their 

support of the residents and the students. 

Mayor Mendoza thanked all the speakers and asked them to come to council meetings 

every once in a while, to keep up with city issues and events. 

Mr. Salinas stated the following have also passed a resolution in support of DACA; 

County of Tulare, City of Tulare, City of Porterville and City of Farmersville.  The 

City of Exeter, City of Dinuba and City of Lindsay will pass a resolution of support 

next week. The City of Visalia has not passed a resolution of support for DACA.  

Councilmembers Martinez and G. Gonzalez Jr. both stated they understand the fear 

families are facing and gladly support DACA. 

ON A MOTION BY G. GONZALEZ JR., SECOND BY ORTIZ IT WAS 

VOTED TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AND SUPPORT DACA.  

APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY.  

B. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Affirm, Modify or Deny the Planning 

Commission’s Decision to Affirm the Administrative Citation for the Property 

Located at 363 E. Sierra Ave. 

City Employee Waters reported the following:  Mr. Granados has requested an 

appeal letter regarding an administrative fine received on his property located at 

363 E. Sierra Ave.  The purpose of this item is to give Mr. Granados the opportunity 

to appeal an administrative fine received at his property located at 363 E. Sierra. Mr. 

Granados received a notice indicating that his property was violating the Woodlake 

Municipal Code. Upon receiving the notice, Mr. Granados met with the City’s 

Planning Department and requested that the City revoke the administrative fine. The 

Planning Department denied the request to revoke the fine and Mr. Granados 

requested the opportunity to begin the appeal process. The Planning Commission 

heard Mr. Granados’ appeal and the Planning Commission affirmed the decision of 

the Planning Department to deny the revocation of the citation.  Mayor Mendoza 

opened the meeting to Mr. Granados to speak. 

Robert Granados, 363 E. Sierra, Woodlake – Mr. Granados reported he received 

citation 3 days after pod was delivered.  He was using the pod as a storage unit for 

items he planned to eventually sell at a yard sale.  He stated the pod would only be 

there temporarily.  Mayor Mendoza asked how long he planned to have the pod on his 

property.  Mr. Granados stated about 2 years.  Mayor Mendoza stated 2 years is not 

considered temporary.  Mr. Granados stated he has seen other pods in town and asked 

if city staff was being discriminatory towards him.  Mayor Mendoza stated no, there 

is a process to follow and he has failed to rectify the problem.  Mayor Mendoza 

recommended to council to allow Mr. Granados 30 days max to remove the pod.   

ON A MOTION BY MENDOZA, SECOND BY MARTINEZ IT WAS 

VOTED TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AND AFFIRM THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION’S DECISION TO AFFIRM THE ADMINISTRATIVE 

CITATION FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 363 E. SIERRA AVE 

AND GIVE THE PROPERTY OWNER 30 DAYS TO COMPLY WITH 

THE WOODLAKE MUNICIPAL CODE.  APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 

C. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approve Sewer and Water Rates for the City of 

Woodlake Effective July 1, 2018 

City Administrator Lara reported the following: on October 13, 2008, the City 

Council of the City of Woodlake unanimously set the sewer services rates by 

Resolution No. 08-32 for July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014. The rates were then 
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adjusted by the annual Consumer Price Index (CPI).  After a careful review, by 

staff, sewer rates were structured to allow for the continued delivery of sewer 

services to City residents as efficiently as possible while maintaining solvent and 

strong Sewer funds that would allow for the repayment of USDA Bonds issued for 

the Waste Water Treatment Plant Project and continue with future maintenance and 

infrastructure costs. The Sewer Fund had become fiscally strong with the new rates 

and its infrastructure had drastically improved so Council has voted to reduce sewer 

rates the last two years.  On April 13, 2015, the City Council set water service rates 

by Resolution No. 15-32 for July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2021 as part of the City 

of Woodlake Water Meter Project.  The rates were set to allow the Water Fund to 

increase its operating cash and start setting reserves aside for future maintenance 

and infrastructure projects.  After reviewing the last two years audits and current 

standing of the Sewer and Water Funds staff believes that the recommended rates 

are sufficient to cover expenditures and reserve requirements for the upcoming 

fiscal year. 

ON A MOTION BY LOPEZ, SECOND BY G. GONZALEZ JR. IT WAS 

VOTED TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTON AND APPROVE SEWER AND 

WATER RATES FOR THE CITY OF WOODLAKE EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 

2018.  APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 

D. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approve the Woodlake Cannabis Tax and Fee 

Rates 

City Employee Waters reported the following: on November 7, 2017 Woodlake 

residents voted to enact a cannabis business tax on all cannabis businesses within 

Woodlake city limits.   The Woodlake Cannabis Tax Measure authorizes City 

Council to establish the tax rates for all cannabis businesses within Woodlake city 

limits. City staff has reviewed several rates from throughout the state to determine an 

acceptable and competitive rate for cannabis businesses in Woodlake.   City Council 

can approve and change the rate as needed, but each year Council will formally adopt 

the rate structure for the following year. The Cannabis Tax Measure authorizes 

Council to establish a rate that does not exceed $25 per SF or 10% of gross receipts.  

ON A MOTION BY LOPEZ, SECOND BY ORTIZ IT WAS VOTED TO 

ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AND APPROVE THE WOODLAKE 

CANNABIS TAX AND FEE RATES.  MOTION PASSES 4-1.  G. GONZALEZ 

ABSTAIN. 

E. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approve All Emergency Expenditures for the 

Development and Implementation of the City of Woodlake Well Projects and 

Authorize Staff to File the Notice of Completion for Well #13 and Well #14 

 City Administration Lara reported the following:  At this time the City has drilled 

two wells along the St. John’s River within the City Airport Property.  The design 

and engineering for the wells has been completed and the City has completed the 

process of connecting the wells to the City’s water system.  The overall costs for 

the connection for Well #13 and #14 to the City’s water system is below: 

 

Well #13:      Well #14: 

Engineering: $117,359.50   Engineering: $117,359.50 

Drilling: $ 136,000.00    Drilling: $198,578.00 

Construction: $708,983.30   Construction: $513,152.60 

Total: $962,342.80    Total: $829,090.10 

ON A MOTION BY MARTINEZ, SECOND BY LOPEZ IT WAS VOTED 

TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AND APPROVE ALL EMERGENCY 

EXPENDITURES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION 

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE WELL PROJECTS.  APPROVED 

UNANIMOUSLY. 
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F. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Termination of the Proclamation of the Existence 

of a Local Drought Emergency for the City of Woodlake 

 City Administrator Lara reported the following: the City of Woodlake water system 

is made up of seven wells that are used as the only source to provide potable water 

to its residents.  The wells have seen a consistent drop in groundwater level due to 

the drought and diversion of water, which has increased ground water pumping in 

the area. These conditions have created a situation where City wells will need to be 

updated or replaced.  Due to the low water table, the wells have also become very 

inefficient.  All these factors have created a burden on the City’s water system.  The 

City requested informal bids for the construction of a test well along the St. Johns 

River.  Well contractors are in large demand and soliciting bids was a challenge.  

The City was able to secure the services of Western Strata Exploration, Inc., who 

drilled Well #13.  The City then procured the services of Zim Industries, Inc. to 

drill Well #14.  The well drilling has been completed and both wells have been 

designed and engineered and the City has completed the process of connecting them 

to the current system.  The City system is now made up of seven wells.  Staff 

recommends that the City Council continue the proclamation by the City Council of 

the City of Woodlake, State of California, proclaiming the existence of a local 

drought emergency for the City of Woodlake.  The City Council would review the 

need for continuing the local drought emergency at least once every 30 days until 

the Council terminates the local drought emergency. 

 ON A MOTION BY LOPEZ, SECOND BY MARTINEZ IT WAS VOTED TO 

ADOPT THE RESOLULTION AND TERMINATE THE PROCLAMATION 

OF THE EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL DROUGHT EMERGENCY FOR THE 

CITY OF WOODLAKE.  APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

VI. OTHER BUSINESS 

A.  Information: Items from Staff 

City Administrator Lara – Reported Community Center is on schedule.  The North 

Valencia project is a little slow due to the rain but still on schedule. 

City Clerk Zacarias – Reported Form 700 is due April 2, 2018.  Opening Day for 

Baseball/Softball is April 7th at 9 am at Willow Ct. park. 

B. Information: Items from Council 

Councilmember G. Gonzalez Jr. – Reported the Middle School Varsity Basketball is in 

the Semi-finals.   They are also first in their league. 

Councilmember Martinez – Asked staff to place the discussion of a new student 

representative on the agenda. 

Mayor Mendoza – Reported the city selection board will meet on Monday, 3/19 at 1 pm 

and the water board will meet on Tuesday, 3/27 from 1-2:30. 

C.  Request from Council Members for Future Agenda Items 

 

VII. CLOSED SESSION 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 

As provided in the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code sections 54950 et seq., the 

Governing Board may meet in closed session with members of its staff and its attorneys. 

These sessions are not open to the public and may not be attended by members of the 

public.  The matters the Council will meet on in closed session are identified below or are 

those matters appropriately identified in open session as requiring immediate attention 

and arising after the posting of the agenda.  Any public reports of action taken in the 

closed session will be made in accordance with Government Code sections 54957.1 4



 

“Documents: If distributed to the Council less than 72 hours before a regular meeting, 

any public records which are subject to public inspection and pertain to an open-session 

item on the regular meeting agenda shall be available at the following address at the time 

they are distributed to a majority of the Council: 350 North Valencia Boulevard, 

Woodlake, California 93286.  Public records distributed to the Council at a public 

meeting will be available to the public at such meeting if they were prepared by the City.   

Exemptions and details in Government Code§ 54957.5 (a) shall apply.” 

 

 

VIII. ADJOURN 

 

The next scheduled City Council meeting will be held on Monday, April 9, 2018 at 6:30 

p.m. at City Council Chambers located at 350 North Valencia Boulevard, Woodlake, CA 

93286. 

 

City Council: 

Rudy Mendoza - Mayor 

Frances Ortiz - Vice Mayor 

Louie Lopez - Councilmember 

Greg Gonzalez Jr. - Councilmember 

Jose L. Martinez - Councilmember 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:33 PM 

 

Submitted by, 

 

 

 

Irene Zacarias 

City Clerk 
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City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-C  
April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the February 2018 Monthly Report of Investments 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Pursuant to Section 3.24.050 of the Woodlake Municipal Code the Finance Department prepares 

a report listing all investments of the City of Woodlake.  The City’s temporary idle cash, those 

funds not immediately needed to pay current bills, is invested in accordance with the City’s 

Investment Policy that was approved by Resolution No. 09-05 which was adopted on February 9, 

2009. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The first objective of the investment policy is to secure the safety of the invested funds. The 

second objective is to match the availability (liquidity) of the funds to the cash flow needs of the 

organization.  The third objective, that is only considered after the first two objectives have been 

met, is yield, or the earnings rate. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that Council approve the February 2018 Monthly Report of Investments as 

submitted.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Resolution: Approval of the February 2018 Monthly Report of Investments 

2. February Monthly Report of Investments 
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BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY     )   Resolution No:  

2018 MONTHLY REPORT OF             )                           

INVESTMENTS                            ) 

 

Councilmember _______, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve the 

City of Woodlake’s February 2018 Monthly Report of Investments. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.24.050 of the Woodlake Municipal Code, monthly, the Finance 

Department shall prepare a report listing of all investments of the City of Woodlake; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s temporary idle cash, those funds not immediately needed to pay current 

bills, is invested in accordance with the City’s Investment Policy that was approved by Resolution 

No. 09-05. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to approve the City of 

Woodlake’s February 2018 Monthly Report of Investments. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ______, and seconded by 

_______, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on April 9, 2018. 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT:  

 

  

      _______________________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-D  
April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the March 2018 Monthly Report of Investments 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Pursuant to Section 3.24.050 of the Woodlake Municipal Code the Finance Department prepares 

a report listing all investments of the City of Woodlake.  The City’s temporary idle cash, those 

funds not immediately needed to pay current bills, is invested in accordance with the City’s 

Investment Policy that was approved by Resolution No. 09-05 which was adopted on February 9, 

2009. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The first objective of the investment policy is to secure the safety of the invested funds. The 

second objective is to match the availability (liquidity) of the funds to the cash flow needs of the 

organization.  The third objective, that is only considered after the first two objectives have been 

met, is yield, or the earnings rate. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that Council approve the March 2018 Monthly Report of Investments as 

submitted.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Resolution: Approval of the March 2018 Monthly Report of Investments 

2. March Monthly Report of Investments 
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BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH     )   Resolution No:  

2018 MONTHLY REPORT OF             )                           

INVESTMENTS                            ) 

 

Councilmember _______, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve the 

City of Woodlake’s March 2018 Monthly Report of Investments. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.24.050 of the Woodlake Municipal Code, monthly, the Finance 

Department shall prepare a report listing of all investments of the City of Woodlake; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s temporary idle cash, those funds not immediately needed to pay current 

bills, is invested in accordance with the City’s Investment Policy that was approved by Resolution 

No. 09-05. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to approve the City of 

Woodlake’s March 2018 Monthly Report of Investments. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ______, and seconded by 

_______, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on April 9, 2018. 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT:  

 

  

      _______________________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-E 
April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approve the 3rd Amendment to the Purchase and Sale 

Agreement with Hafeltry Development Company, LLC for the Property with APN# 060-131-016 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Woodlake City Council instructed staff to look at the acquisition of bare land that may be 

used in the future to promote improvements, development and commercial opportunities.  City 

staff engaged Union Pacific to look at the possibility of acquiring the property with APN# 060-

131-016.  The property is located at the southwest corner of Naranjo Blvd. and Acacia St.  

 

After months of negotiations, Union Pacific agreed to sell the property with APN# 060-131-016 

to the City for one hundred fifty-one thousand four hundred and ninety-seven dollars 

($151,497.00).  The property is 33,666 square feet and the City paid $4.50 a square foot.  The 

City also acquired 3,704 square feet of right-of-way on Acacia St. at no cost.      

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The City acquired the property with APN# 060-131-016 from Union Pacific for one hundred 

fifty-one thousand four hundred and ninety-seven dollars and no cents ($151,497.00).  The City 

negotiated a sale price and entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with Hafeltry 

Development Company, LLC for one hundred and fifty-five thousand dollars and no cents 

($155,000.00).  The agreement was approved by Council on September 12, 2016 by Resolution 

No. 16-91.  The agreement was set to expire February 12, 2018, and the developer AutoZone 

Parts Inc., requested an extension until March 2, 2018.  A few more issues have come up during 

the final permitting process and the developer requested an extension to April 2, 2018 and now is 

needing a third extension to May 4, 2018. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

City staff recommends that Council approve the 3rd amendment to the Purchase and Sale 

agreement with Hafeltry Development Company, LLC/AutoZone Parts Inc., for the property with 

APN# 060-131-016.   

   

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

All proceeds from the sale would be credited to the City of Woodlake General Fund as the 

property is a City General Fund asset.  
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ATTACHMENTS:   

  

1. Resolution:  Approve the 3rd Amendment to the Purchase and Sale Agreement with 

Hafeltry Development Company, LLC for the Property with APN# 060-131-016 

 

2. Attachment No. 1 – 3rd Amendment of the Purchase and Sale Agreement 
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BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVING THE  3RD AMENDMENT TO THE PURCHASE   )  Resolution No.  

AND SALE AGREEMENT WITH HAFELTRY                              ) 

DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC FOR THE                               ) 

PROPERTY WITH APN# 060-131-016                                            )                           

 

Councilmember _______, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve the 3rd 

amendment to the Purchase and Sale Agreement with Halferty Development Company, LLC/ 

AutoZone Parts Inc., for the property with APN# 060-131-016. 

 

WHEREAS, the City acquired the property with APN# 060-131-016 for one hundred fifty-one 

thousand four hundred and ninety-seven dollars and no cents ($151,497.00), the property is 33,666 

square feet and the City paid $4.50 a square foot; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a sale price and entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement 

with Hafeltry Development Company, LLC for one hundred and fifty-five thousand dollars and no 

cents ($155,000.00) at the September 12, 2016 Council meeting by Resolution No. 16-9; and 

 

WHEREAS, the original agreement was set to expire February 12, 2018, and the developer 

AutoZone Parts Inc., has requested an extension until March 2, 2018 then a 2nd extension to April 2, 

2018 and now a 3rd extension to May 4, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, the property was acquired by the General Fund and was booked as a General Fund 

Asset. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to approve the attached 3rd 

amendment to the Purchase and Sale Agreement with Halferty Development Company, LLC/ 

AutoZone Parts Inc. for the property with APN# 060-131-016. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ______, and seconded by 

Councilmember _____, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on April 

9, 2018. 

 

 AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:  

        _____________________ 

        Mayor, Rudy Mendoza 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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THIRD AMENDMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

 
 
THIS THIRD AMENDMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (“Third 
Amendment”) is made as of __________, 2018, between City of Woodlake ("Seller"), 
and AutoZone Parts Inc., a Nevada corporation ("Buyer"). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. By Purchase and Sale Agreement dated July 15, 2016,  Seller and Halferty 
Development Company, a Delaware limited liability company (“Halferty”) 
provided for the sale and conveyance of certain real property located in Tulare 
County, California, which property is more particularly described in the 
Agreement. 

B.  By Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated October 31, 2016, Halferty 
assigned its interest in the Agreement to Buyer. 

C. Seller and Buyer amended the Purchase and Sale Agreement by Amendment of 
Purchase and Sale Agreement dated December 15, 2017 and further by the 
Second Amendment of Purchase and Sale Agreement dated February 13, 2018.  
The Purchase and Sale Agreement, as amended, will be collectively referred to as 
the “Agreement”. 

D. Seller and Buyer now desire by this Third Amendment to amend the Agreement.  
 

AGREEMENT 
 
For and in consideration of the recitals above made and in further consideration of the 
mutual promises and agreements set forth below, the parties agree as follows. 
 

1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct. 
 

2. The Development Approval Period, as defined in Section 4(C) of the Agreement, 
shall, for all purposes of the Agreement, be deemed to expire on May 4, 2018. 
 

3. Section 19(A) will be deleted and replaced with the following:  “Closing will 
occur on or before June 1, 2018 (“Closing Deadline”).  The Closing will be 
deemed to occur upon payment of the Sale Price by cashier’s or certified check, 
or by wire transfer, and recordation of the Deed.  All Closing costs, including 
transfer taxes and excise taxes, will be paid by Buyer.” 
 

4. In the event of any conflict, inconsistency, or incongruity between the provisions 
of this Third Amendment and the provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of 
this Third Amendment shall control. 

 
5. This Third Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be 

deemed an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EC0B1E22-CF83-4C49-9427-AF5DB0176EAF
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instrument.  Signature pages may be executed via “wet” signature or electronic 
mark and the executed signature pages may be delivered using pdf or similar file 
type transmitted via electronic mail, cloud based server, e-signature technology or 
other similar electronic means. 
 

6. Except as provided herein, all other terms, conditions and provisions of the Third 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and can not be modified unless 
such modification is reduced to writing and signed by the parties. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Third Amendment the date first 
above written. 
 
 
Seller:       Buyer: 
 
City of Woodlake     AutoZone Parts Inc., 
       a Nevada corporation   
  
 
By:____________________    By:_________________ 
Its:       Its: 
 
       By:__________________ 
By:__________________    Its:  
Its: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EC0B1E22-CF83-4C49-9427-AF5DB0176EAF
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City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-F  

April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the Agreement Between the County of Tulare and 

the City of Woodlake for Public Transportation Services for the Period of July 1, 2017 Through 

June 30, 2018  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The City of Woodlake currently provides transit services for a service area that is outside the City 

limits.  The County of Tulare adequately reimburses the City of Woodlake for those services with 

State Transit Assistance Funds and/or Local Transportation Funds.  These funds are transferred 

from the County’s apportionment to the City’s. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

For Fiscal Year 2017/2018 the County has agreed to reimburse the City in the amount of $28,791 

for providing public transportation services in the service area outside of City limits.  The 

reimbursable amount was developed by City staff in conjunction with County staff based on the 

costs incurred to deliver the services.  

 

There will also be additional compensation for the County applying on behalf of the City for 

$5,617 in California Office of Emergency Services funds.  The County will collect a 10% 

administration fee for their services and reimburse the City with State Transit Assistance(STA) 

Funds for the remaining balance.   Overall, the County of Tulare will transfer $33,846 in STA 

funds to the City. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that Council approve the agreement between the County of Tulare and the 

City of Woodlake.  The agreement would provide adequate reimbursement to the City of 

Woodlake for the services being provided. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact to the City of Woodlake.  The City will be fully reimbursed for the 

services being provided. 
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ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Resolution: Approval of the Agreement Between the County of Tulare and the City of 

Woodlake for Public Transportation Services for the Period of July 1, 2017 Through June 

30, 2018     

2. Draft Agreement Between the County of Tulare and the City of Woodlake 
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BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN     )  Resolution No.  

THE COUNTY OF TULARE AND THE CITY OF    )                           

WOODLAKE FOR PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION   ) 

SERVICES                    ) 

 

Councilmember ______, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption.  Approve the 

agreement between the County of Tulare and the City of Woodlake for public transportation 

services for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodlake currently provides transit services for a service area that is 

outside the City limits; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County of Tulare adequately reimburses the City of Woodlake for those services 

with State Transit Assistance Funds and/or Local Transportation Funds.  These funds are transferred 

from the County’s apportionment to the City’s; and 

 

WHEREAS, for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 the County has agreed to reimburse the City in the amount 

of $28,791 for providing public transportation services in the service area outside of City limits; and 

 

WHEREAS, for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 the County has agreed to apply on behalf of the City for 

$5,617 in California Office of Emergency Services funds.  The County will collect a 10% 

administration fee for their services and reimburse the City with State Transit Assistance(STA) 

Funds for the remaining balance of $5,055.    

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to approve the agreement 

between the County of Tulare and the City of Woodlake for public transportation services for the 

period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ______, and seconded by 

Councilmember ______, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on 

April 9, 2018. 

 

 AYES:  

 NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT: 

  

      ______________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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Tulare County Agreement No. ____________________________ 

  AGREEMENT 1 

THIS AGREEMENT, is entered into as of this _____ day of ________________, 2018, by 2 

and between the COUNTY OF TULARE, hereinafter referred to as the “County”, and the CITY 3 

OF WOODLAKE, hereinafter called the “City”. 4 

W I T N E S S E T H: 5 

WHEREAS, the County and the City desire to coordinate their respective public 6 

transportation systems in the Woodlake area; and 7 

WHEREAS, there are and will continue to be citizens of the County who can reasonably be 8 

served by the City's dial-a-ride transit system and there are and will continue to be citizens of the 9 

City who can reasonably be served by the County's Transit System; and 10 

WHEREAS, the County and City recognize the goals of providing a transportation system 11 

to the general public at a reasonable fare and that of providing coordinated public transportation 12 

service within the Woodlake area; and 13 

WHEREAS, the County and the City desire to provide for the Joint Exercise of Powers for 14 

the purpose of providing and maintaining public transportation systems in the Woodlake area. 15 

NOW, THEREFORE, the County and City mutually agree as follows: 16 

1. Scope of Work. The County and City shall each control, manage and operate a 17 

separate transit system. City and County shall furnish each other thirty (30) days prior 18 

written notice of any and all service level and fare level changes. 19 

(a) County.  The County shall provide transit service to those residents of the 20 

City desiring to use the regularly scheduled service of the County Transit System.  21 

The County shall establish a series of bus stop locations within the City, which will 22 

interface with the City bus stop locations and facilitate system transfers.  The County 23 

stops shall be established at locations acceptable to the City.  Such locations shall be 24 

proposed on behalf of the County by the Director of Transportation and shall be 25 

approved on behalf of the City by the City Manager. 26 

(b) City.  The City shall provide transit service to County residents desiring 27 

transit service within the service area as set forth in Exhibit “A” which is attached 28 

hereto and made a part hereof by this reference.  The service area may be modified 29 

only by mutual agreement of the City Manager and the Director of Transportation. 30 

2. Management-County.  The County shall manage the County Transit System in 31 

an appropriate manner, insuring cost effective operations, including marketing the system 32 

in a professional manner and collecting fares from riders on the County Transit System. 33 
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3. Management-City.  The City shall manage the City Transit System in an 1 

appropriate manner, insuring cost effective operations, including marketing the system in a 2 

professional manner and collecting fares from riders on the City Transit System. 3 

  4. Compensation. The County shall compensate the City for County trips in the 4 

herein agreed upon service area by paying to the City for the period July 1, 2017 through 5 

June 30, 2018 the sum of $28,791. This represents the County's share of the net operating 6 

cost of the transit service.  Compensation is based upon the prorated share of the City’s and 7 

County’s previous year ridership on the City’s dial-a-ride transit system.    8 

5. Additional Compensation.  The City has allowed the County to apply on its 9 

behalf for various transit funding sources, not directly available to the City. The County 10 

agrees to increase the compensation discussed in paragraph 4 by 90% of the aggregate 11 

amount of these funding sources (detailed below): 12 

  13 

            CREDIT            SOURCE  14 

             Woodlake     $5,617 (estimated)      California Office of Emergency Services Funds   15 

                (90% = 5,055)                16 

6. Authorization of Payment.  The County by this Agreement authorizes the Tulare 17 

County Association of Governments to transfer $33,846 of State Transit Assistance Funds, 18 

and/or Local Transportation Funds from the County's 2017/18 Apportionment to the City 19 

of Woodlake's Apportionment.  The County further authorizes the City to claim said 20 

$33,846     as full payment for the County’s share of the transit system’s net operating cost 21 

and compensation for common pass/token usage during the period of July 1, 2017 through 22 

June 30, 2018.  In case of termination of this Agreement prior to June 30, 2018, the County 23 

agrees to compensate the City only for a proportional amount of the sum of $28,791 based 24 

upon the number of days the services were actually provided by the City, and the value of 25 

tokens and passes honored during that period.  In case the County does not receive the full 26 

amount of additional funding sources identified in Section 5, the City and County agree 27 

that the County will only reimburse the City for 90% of the actual amount of additional 28 

funding received by the County. In the event of any overpayment by the County to the 29 

City, the City agrees to reimburse the County within thirty (30) days of written demand by 30 

the County. 31 

7. Drivers.  The parties shall require that all transit drivers meet all licensing 32 

requirements of the State of California. 33 

8. Indemnification-City.  City shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County, 34 

its agents, officers and employees from and against any liability, claims, actions, costs, 35 

damages or losses of any kind, including death or injury to any person and/or damage to 36 
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property, arising out of the activities of City or its agents, officers and employees under this 1 

Agreement.  This indemnification specifically includes any claims that may be made 2 

against County by any taxing authority asserting that an employer-employee relationship 3 

exists by reason of this Agreement, and any claims made against County alleging civil 4 

rights violations by City under Government Code section 12920 et seq. (California Fair 5 

Employment and Housing Act).   This indemnification obligation shall continue beyond the 6 

term of this Agreement as to any acts or omissions occurring under this Agreement or any 7 

extension of this Agreement. 8 

9. Indemnification-County.  County shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify 9 

City, its agents, officers and employees from and against any liability, claims, actions, 10 

costs, damages or losses of any kind, including death or injury to any person and/or 11 

damage to property, arising out of the activities of County or its agents, officers and 12 

employees under this Agreement.  This indemnification specifically includes any claims 13 

that may be made against County by any taxing authority asserting that an employer-14 

employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement, and any claims made against 15 

County alleging civil rights violations by City under Government Code section 12920 et 16 

seq. (California Fair Employment and Housing Act).   This indemnification obligation shall 17 

continue beyond the term of this Agreement as to any acts or omissions occurring under 18 

this Agreement or any extension of this Agreement. 19 

10. Insurance-Liability.  The City and the County shall each provide comprehensive 20 

general public liability and comprehensive automotive liability insurance with single limit 21 

coverage of not less than $5,000,000 or equivalent self-insurance covering their activities 22 

under this Agreement.  Prior to commencing operations, each party shall file with the Clerk 23 

of the other party certificates of insurance evidencing the coverage required herein and 24 

naming the other party, its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds.  Such 25 

certificates shall state that the named additional insureds are not responsible for the 26 

payment of any premium or assessment and shall provide that in the event of a cancellation 27 

or material change of policy, the insurer shall give the named additional insureds no less 28 

than thirty (30) days advance written notice of such cancellation or change.  Upon request, 29 

each party shall provide the other with a complete copy of the insurance policy or policies 30 

or evidence and terms of self-insurance as required herein. 31 

The parties agree, during the term of the Agreement, to maintain at their own expense 32 

(or require of their independent contractors) all necessary insurance for their respective 33 

officers, employees, and agents, including but not limited to workers' compensation, 34 

disability and unemployment insurance in accordance with state statutory requirements and 35 

to provide certificates of such insurance or other evidence of compliance to the other party 36 
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upon request.  The insurance, and evidence thereof, required by this Agreement may be 1 

provided either directly by the parties or, if a party contracts with an independent 2 

contractor/operator to provide the services required by this Agreement, by the operator of 3 

that party's system as deemed appropriate by such party. 4 

11. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2017 and 5 

shall continue in full force and effect until June 30, 2018 unless terminated earlier, as 6 

herein provided. 7 

12. Termination.  The right to terminate this Agreement under this provision may be 8 

exercised without prejudice to any other right or remedy to which the terminating party 9 

may be entitled at law or under this Agreement. 10 

(a) Without Cause.  Either party shall have the right to terminate this 11 

Agreement without cause by giving the other party SIXTY (60) days prior written 12 

notice of its intention to terminate pursuant to this provision, specifying the date of 13 

termination. 14 

(b) With Cause.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party should the 15 

other party: 16 

(i) be adjudged a bankrupt, or 17 

(ii) become insolvent or have a receiver appointed, or 18 

(iii) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or 19 

(iv) suffer any judgment which remains unsatisfied for 30 days, and 20 

which would substantively impair the ability of the judgment debtor to perform 21 

under this Agreement, or 22 

(v) materially breach this Agreement. 23 

For any of the occurrences except item (v), termination may be effected upon 24 

written notice by the terminating party specifying the date of the termination.  Upon a 25 

material breach, the Agreement may be terminated following the failure of the 26 

defaulting party to remedy the breach to the satisfaction of the non-defaulting party 27 

within FIVE (5) days of written notice specifying the breach.  If the breach is not 28 

remedied within that FIVE (5) day period, the non-defaulting party may terminate the 29 

Agreement on further written notice specifying the date of termination. 30 

If the nature of the breach is such that it cannot be cured within a FIVE (5) day 31 

period, the defaulting party may, submit a written proposal within that period which 32 

sets forth a specific means to resolve the default.  If the non-defaulting party consents 33 

to that proposal in writing, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, the 34 

defaulting party shall immediately embark on its plan to cure.  If the default is not 35 
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cured within the time agreed, the non-defaulting party may terminate upon written 1 

notice specifying the date of termination. 2 

(c) Effects of Termination.  Termination of this Agreement shall not terminate 3 

any obligations to indemnify, to maintain and make available any records pertaining 4 

to the Agreement, to cooperate with any audit, to be subject to offset, or to make any 5 

reports of pre-termination contract activities. 6 

13. Notices.  Any notices to be given shall be written and served either by personal 7 

delivery or by first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 8 

County: Director of Transportation 9 

 Resource Management Agency 10 

  5961 S. Mooney Blvd. 11 

  Visalia, CA 93277 12 

 13 

City: City Administrator 14 

  City of Woodlake 15 

  350 North Valencia 16 

 Woodlake, CA 93286 17 

14. Integration.  This Agreement constitutes the sole and only Agreement between 18 

the parties hereto as to the services to be provided hereunder.  Any prior agreements, 19 

promises, negotiations or representations as to such services not expressly referred to 20 

herein are of no force and effect. 21 

15. Modification.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, this Agreement 22 

shall be modified or amended only with the prior written consent of the parties. 23 

16. Records.  Each party agrees to maintain all books, records, documents, and other 24 

evidence pertaining to this Agreement, any disputes surrounding the subject matter of this 25 

Agreement, and any other related circumstances in accordance with generally accepted 26 

accounting principles and practices.  Each party shall allow the other party's agents or 27 

representatives access to such records for inspection, audit, and copying during normal 28 

business hours.  Each party shall provide further facilities for such access and inspection. 29 

17. Surveys.  Either the City or the County may conduct periodic ridership surveys.  30 

Said surveys shall not interfere with the operation of the system. 31 

18. Legal Operation.  City and County each shall carry out its obligations under this 32 

Agreement in full compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, 33 

rules and regulations. 34 

19. Construction.  This Agreement reflects the contributions of both parties and 35 

accordingly the provisions of Civil Code section 1654 shall not apply to address and 36 

interpret any uncertainty. 37 
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20. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed under the 1 

laws of the State of California without reference to California conflicts of law principles.  2 

Any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall be brought in Tulare County California. 3 

City waives the removal provisions of California code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 4 

21. Conflict with Laws or Regulations/Severability.  This Agreement is subject to 5 

all applicable laws and regulations.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by any 6 

court or other legal authority, or is agreed by the parties, to be in conflict with any code or 7 

regulation governing its subject, the conflicting provision shall be considered null and void.  8 

The remainder of the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 9 

22. Headings.  Section headings are provided for organizational purposes only and 10 

do not in any manner affect the scope, meaning or intent of the provisions under the 11 

headings. 12 

23. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Unless specifically set forth, the parties to this 13 

Agreement do not intend to provide any other party with any benefit or enforceable legal or 14 

equitable right or remedy. 15 

24. Waivers.  The failure of either party to insist on strict compliance with any 16 

provision of this Agreement shall not be considered a waiver of any right to do so, whether 17 

for that breach or any subsequent breach.  The acceptance by either party of either 18 

performance or payment shall not be considered to be a waiver of any preceding breach of 19 

the Agreement by the other party. 20 

25. Exhibits and Recitals.  The Recitals and the Exhibits to this Agreement are fully 21 

incorporated into and are integral parts of this Agreement.  22 

26. Further Assurances.  Each party agrees to execute any additional documents and 23 

to perform any further acts which may be reasonably required to effect the purposes of this 24 

Agreement. 25 

27. Assurances of Non-Discrimination-City.  City expressly agrees that it will not 26 

discriminate in employment or the provision of services on the basis of any characteristic 27 

or condition upon which discrimination is prohibited by state or federal law or regulation. 28 

28. Assurances of Non-Discrimination-County.  County expressly agrees that it 29 

will not discriminate in employment or the provision of services on the basis of any 30 

characteristic or condition upon which discrimination is prohibited by state or federal law 31 

or regulation. 32 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 33 

 34 

 35 

 36 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the 1 

date first above written. 2 

 3 

COUNTY OF TULARE 4 

 5 

By_____________________________ 6 

 Chairman, Board of Supervisors 7 

  “COUNTY” 8 

ATTEST:   9 

 10 

County Administrative Officer/ 11 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors. 12 

 13 

By_____________________________ 14 

 Deputy 15 

CITY OF WOODLAKE 16 

 17 

By_____________________________ 18 

 Title: 19 

  “CITY” 20 

ATTEST:  City Clerk 21 

 22 

By_____________________________ 23 

  Deputy 24 

 25 

 26 

 27 

Approved as to Form,     Approved as to Form, 28 

County Counsel       City Attorney 29 

 30 

By_____________________________   By_____________________________ 31 

 Deputy     Thomas T. Watson 32 
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City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-G  

April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the City of Woodlake’s Fiscal Year 2018/2019 

List of Projects Funded by SB1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

With the passage of Senate Bill1 (SB1) the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 the City 

of Woodlake has created a separate fund to track revenues and expenditures associated with the 

approved projects constructed with the new funding.  The City has created Fund (028) Road 

Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA).   

 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

Annually the City will have to approve potential projects that may use RMRA funding.  In FY 

2017/2018 the City is estimated to receive $43,212 followed by $128,996 in FY 2018/2019.  The 

revenues received are expected to be used all in FY 2018/2019 on the Valencia ADA Project.  

Below is a project list of future projects that may use RMRA funding. 

 

Project List: 

 

Project 1 - South Valencia Boulevard Improvement Project: 

This project will be located along Valencia Boulevard from the City Public Works Yard to Bravo 

Avenue. The project will consist of the installation of curb, gutter, sidewalk, ADA ramps, drive 

approaches, storm drainage, and paveout.  The estimated useful life of this roadway is 15 years 

and construction is anticipated to start in 2018. 

 

Project 2 – Magnolia Street Improvement Project: 

This project will be located along the eastside of Magnolia Street from Antelope Avenue to 

Lakeview Avenue. The project will consist of the installation of curb, gutter, decorative 

sidewalk, tree wells, drive approaches, storm drainage, decorative street lights, and paveout.  The 

estimated useful life of this roadway is 10 years and construction is anticipated to start in 2018. 

 

Project 3 – North Valencia Boulevard Extension Improvement Project: 

This project will be located along the westside of Valencia Boulevard from Sierra Avenue to 

Sequoia Avenue. The project will consist of the installation of curb, gutter, sidewalk, ADA 

ramps, drive approaches, storm drainage, and paveout.  The estimated useful life of this roadway 

is 15 years and construction is anticipated to start in 2019. 
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RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that Council approve the Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Project List.        

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

All expenditures are covered by current and future revenues in the RMRA (028) Fund.    

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

  

1. Resolution: Approval of the City of Woodlake’s Fiscal Year 2018/2019 List of Projects 

Funded by SB1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act 

 

2. Attachment No. 1 – City of Woodlake Fiscal Year 2018/2019 RMRA(028) Budget and 

Project List   
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BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE’S     ) Resolution No. 

FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 LIST OF PROJECTS              ) 

FUNDED BY SB1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND   ) 

ACCOUNTABILITY ACT     ) 

 

Councilmember ______, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption.  Approval of the 

City of Woodlake’s Fiscal Year 2018/2019 list of projects funded by SB1: The Road Repair and 

Accountability Act. 

 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 5, 

Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 

in order to address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and  

 

WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the residents 

of our City are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our community and which projects 

have been completed each fiscal year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City must include a list of all projects proposed to receive funding from the Road 

Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1, in the City budget, which must 

include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed schedule for the 

project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City, will receive an estimated $128,996 in RMRA funding in Fiscal Year 2018-

19 from SB 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has undergone a robust public process to ensure public input into our 

community’s transportation priorities/the project list including reviewing projects at a public 

meeting and working with community partners such as the Woodlake Unified School District and 

local service clubs; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Public Works Department recommend for approval the most urgent safety 

projects to develop the SB 1 project list to ensure revenues are being used on the most high-priority 

and cost-effective projects that also meet the community’s priorities for transportation investment; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City reconstruct S. Valencia Blvd. this year and 

many similar projects in the future; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2016 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment found that 

the City streets and roads are in an “at-risk” condition and this revenue will help us increase the 

overall quality of our road system and over the next decade will bring our streets and roads into a 

“good” condition; and  
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WHEREAS, without revenue from SB 1, the City, would have otherwise been canceling projects 

throughout the community and/or laying off city staff; and 

 

WHEREAS, if the Legislature and Governor failed to act, city streets and county roads would have 

continued to deteriorate, having many and varied negative impacts on our community; and  

 

WHEREAS, cities and counties own and operate more than 81 percent of streets and roads in 

California, and from the moment we open our front door to drive to work, bike to school, or walk to 

the bus station, people are dependent upon a safe, reliable local transportation network; and 

 

WHEREAS, modernizing the local street and road system provides well-paying construction jobs 

and boosts local economies; and  

 

WHEREAS, the local street and road system is also critical for farm to market needs, 

interconnectivity, multimodal needs, and commerce; and 

 

WHEREAS, police, fire, and emergency medical services all need safe reliable roads to react 

quickly to emergency calls and a few minutes of delay can be a matter of life and death; and  

 

WHEREAS, maintaining and preserving the local street and road system in good condition will 

reduce drive times and traffic congestion, improve bicycle safety, and make the pedestrian 

experience safer and more appealing, which leads to reduce vehicle emissions helping the State 

achieve its air quality and greenhouse gas emissions reductions goals; and  

 

WHEREAS, restoring roads before they fail also reduces construction time which results in less air 

pollution from heavy equipment and less water pollution from site run-off; and  

 

WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads 

infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets 

infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant 

positive co-benefits statewide. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the City 

Council of the City of Woodlake, State of California, as follows: 

 

1.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

 

2.  The City of Woodlake budget for fiscal year 2018-19 incorporates the following list of 

projects planned to be funded with Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues: 

 

 Project 1 - South Valencia Boulevard Improvement Project: 

This project will be located along Valencia Boulevard from the City Public Works 

Yard to Bravo Avenue. The project will consist of the installation of curb, gutter, 

sidewalk, ADA ramps, drive approaches, storm drainage, and paveout.  The 

estimated useful life of this roadway is 15 years and construction is anticipated to 

start in 2018. 

 

Project 2 – Magnolia Street Improvement Project: 

This project will be located along the eastside of Magnolia Street from Antelope 

Avenue to Lakeview Avenue. The project will consist of the installation of curb, 

gutter, decorative sidewalk, tree wells, drive approaches, storm drainage, decorative 
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street lights, and paveout.  The estimated useful life of this roadway is 10 years and 

construction is anticipated to start in 2018. 

 

Project 3 – North Valencia Boulevard Extension Improvement Project: 

This project will be located along the westside of Valencia Boulevard from Sierra 

Avenue to Sequoia Avenue. The project will consist of the installation of curb, 

gutter, sidewalk, ADA ramps, drive approaches, storm drainage, and paveout.  The 

estimated useful life of this roadway is 15 years and construction is anticipated to 

start in 2019. 

 

3. The City of Woodlake budget for fiscal year 2018-19 includes the following: 

 

Approval of the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation (RMRA) Fund (028) RMRA. 

 

The fund is expected to have ($43,212) from fiscal year 2017/2018 and ($128,996) for fiscal 

year 2018/19 in revenues and expenditures for this fiscal year.  The expenditures will be on the 

S. Valencia ADA Project. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to approve the City of 

Woodlake’s Fiscal Year 2018/2019 list of projects funded by SB1: The Road Repair and 

Accountability Act. 

  

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ______, and seconded by 

Councilmember _______, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on 

April 9, 2018. 

 

 AYES:  

 NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:  

  

       

 

      ___________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-H 

April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Irene Zacarias, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Proclamation from the City of Woodlake, Proclaiming April 2018 as Child Abuse 

Prevention Month. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Child abuse and neglect is a complex and ongoing problem in our society, affecting many 

children in Woodlake.  Every child is entitled to be loved, cared for, nurtured, feel secure and be 

free from verbal, sexual, emotional and physical abuse, and neglect.  It is the responsibility of 

every adult who comes in contact with a child to protect that child’s inalienable right to a safe 

and nurturing childhood. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

Woodlake has dedicated individuals and organizations who work daily to counter the problem of 

child maltreatment and to help parents obtain the assistance they need.  Our communities are 

stronger when all citizens become aware of child maltreatment prevention and become involved 

in supporting parents to raise their children in a safe and nurturing environment. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that the City accept the Proclamation and recognize April 2018 as Child 

Abuse Prevention Month. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Proclamation:  Proclamation from the City of Woodlake Proclaiming April 2018 as Child 

Abuse Prevention Month. 
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PROCLAMATION 
RECOGNIZING APRIL AS 

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH 
 

WHEREAS, child abuse and neglect is a complex and ongoing problem in our 

society, affecting many children in Woodlake; and 

 

WHEREAS, every child is entitled to be loved, cared for, nurtured, feel secure 

and be free from verbal, sexual, emotional and physical abuse, and neglect; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of every adult who comes in contact with a 

child to protect that child’s inalienable right to a safe and nurturing childhood; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Woodlake has dedicated individuals and organizations who work 

daily to counter the problem of child maltreatment and to help parents obtain the 

assistance they need; and 

 

WHEREAS,  our communities are stronger when all citizens become aware of 

child maltreatment prevention and become involved in supporting parents to raise 

their children in a safe and nurturing environment; and 

 

WHEREAS, effective child abuse prevention programs succeed because of 

partnerships among families, social service agencies, schools, religious and civic 

organizations, law enforcement agencies and the business community; and 

 

WHEREAS, all citizens, community agencies, faith organizations, business 

will work to increase their efforts to support families; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodlake City 

Council hereby proclaims the month of April 2018, to be 

 

CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT PREVENTION MONTH 

 

The Woodlake City Council commends this observance during April 2018 to the 

citizens of Woodlake. 

 

Dated: April 9, 2018  
 
 

__________________________     ______________________________ 

Rudy Mendoza, Mayor     Frances Ortiz, Vice-Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________     ____________________________________ 

Jose L. Martinez, Councilmember    Greg Gonzalez Jr., Councilmember 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 

      Louie Lopez Jr, Councilmember 
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City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-I 

April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Irene Zacarias, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Appoint Michael Navarro to Fill a Vacancy on the Planning 

Commission Board 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The City of Woodlake Planning Commissioners is composed of five members who reside within 

the city limits of the City of Woodlake.  The term of office of members of Planning 

Commissioners shall commence on March 1st and terminate on the last date of February.  The 

terms of the members of the Planning Commission shall be four years, except that each Planning 

Commissioner shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council and may be removed from office by 

majority vote of the City Council at any time. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The City of Woodlake Planning Commission currently has 1 (one) vacancy, Planning 

Commissioner Joe Perez submitted a letter of resignation (attached), effective December 20, 

2017.  An application has been submitted by Michael Navarro to be appointed to the Planning 

Commission Board.  The application is attached for Council review.  The terms will expire in 

2020.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

There is no staff recommendation.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Adoption of Resolution: Appoint Michael Navarro to Fill a Vacancy on the Planning 

Commission Board 

2. Woodlake Planning Commissioner Perez Resignation Letter 

3. Woodlake Planning Commissioner Applicant Navarro 

118



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPOINT MICHAEL NAVARRO)     Resolution No.  

TO FILL VACANCY ON PLANNING COMMISSON BOARD) 

 

Councilmember __________, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Appoint 

Michael Navarro to fill the vacancy on the Planning Commission Board. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodlake Planning Commission Board is composed of five members who 

reside within the city limits of the City of Woodlake; and 

 

WHEREAS, the term of the office of members of Planning Commissioners shall commence on 

March 1st and terminate on the last date of February.  The terms of the members shall be four years; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Woodlake City Council accepts Joe Perez’s letter of resignation; and 

 

WHEREAS, each Planning Commissioner shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council and may 

be removed from office by majority vote of the City Council at any time. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to appoint Michael Navarro 

to fill the vacancy on the Planning Commission Board.    

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ______________, and 

seconded by Councilmember ______________, and carried by the following vote at the City 

Council meeting held on April 9, 2018. 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT: 

  

      ____________________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM V-A  

April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Authorize Staff to Submit a Funding Application for the North 

Valencia Extension Project - Public Hearing 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The City of Woodlake has scheduled this public hearing regarding the City’s intent to apply for 

Cycle 4 of the 2019 Active Transportation Program to better inform those that may be interested 

in the project.  The City has worked with the Woodlake Unified School District(WUSD), 

Caltrans and those residents along the project site to help gather and provide answers to as many 

questions as possible.   

 

At their March 14, 2018, regularly scheduled meeting the WUSD spoke in support of the project 

and will submit a letter of support to the City for the project. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

If awarded funding, the City would construct curb, gutter, sidewalk, ADA ramps, storm 

drainage, pavement, drive approaches, street lights and striping on North Valencia Boulevard 

(SR 245) from Sierra Avenue north to Sequoia Avenue.  This project would help connect the NE 

quadrant of the City of Woodlake to the Woodlake Unified School District. 

 

Currently the project site has dirt shoulders which creates a hazard for all pedestrians, cyclists 

and motorists.  This risk increases even more during the wet season when pedestrians and 

cyclists must share the road with motorists to avoid mud and puddles. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

The City has begun the PS&E part of project with the use of Measure R funds.  The goal is to 

apply for ATP funds to be used for construction and construction management.  Staff 

recommends that Council authorize staff to submit a funding application for the project after all 

public input is considered. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If the City is awarded an ATP Grant for the project the City would use Measure R and local 

streets funds for PS&E, ROW and a local match.  
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ATTACHMENTS:   

  

1. Resolution: Authorize Staff to Submit a Funding Application for the North Valencia 

Extension Project 

 

2. Project Map 
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BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

AUTHORIZE STAFF TO SUBMIT A        )   Resolution No.  

FUNDING APPLICATION FOR THE  )                           

NORTH VALENCIA EXTENSION PROJECT ) 

 

 

Councilmember _______, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption.  Authorize staff 

to submit a funding application for the North Valencia Extension Project. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodlake held a public hearing with their partners Caltrans and the 

Woodlake Unified School District regarding the City’s intent to apply for Cycle 4 of the 2019 

Active Transportation Program to better inform those that may be interested in local safety projects; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, after communication with residents, Caltrans, the Woodlake Unified School District 

and local leaders it was determined that the North Valencia Extension Project was a key project to 

promote safety for pedestrians, cyclists and motorists; and 

 

WHEREAS, if awarded funding, the City would construct curb, gutter, sidewalk, ADA ramps, 

storm drainage, pavement, drive approaches, street lights and striping on North Valencia Boulevard 

(SR 245) from Sierra Avenue north to Sequoia Avenue.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to authorize staff to submit 

a funding application for the North Valencia Extension Project. 

  

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ______, and seconded by 

Councilmember _______, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on 

April 9, 2018. 

 

 AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:  

 

      _____________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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PROPOSED SIDEWALK PROJECT FOR SAFER SCHOOL ROUTES & PEDESTRIAN WALKWAY 
ORANGE HIGHLIGHTED AREA: SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS 
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AGENDA ITEM V-B  
April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the City of Woodlake Energy Action Plan  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The City of Woodlake recognizes the impact of global climate change from greenhouse gas 

(GHG) emissions arising from anthropogenic activities. Recognizing the need to reduce our 

GHG emissions and become a more sustainable community is a priority for the city. The attached 

Energy Action Plan outlines the efforts that the city will take to contribute to the reduction of 

GHG emissions through reducing municipal energy consumption. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

As a partner in the San Joaquin Valley Energy Leader Program, a.k.a. “Valley Innovative Energy 

Watch” (VIEW), the City of Woodlake is committed to leading by example: the city is dedicated 

to achieving energy reduction through projects and practice. By taking the lead in implementing 

climate and clean energy programs in municipal operations, the city intends to build capacity at 

the local government level, save money that can be reinvested into local government operations, 

build government credibility for outreach with other sectors, and demonstrate leadership. 

 

Through VIEW, the city has taken immediate action by undergoing audits, instituting an energy 

conservation behavior change campaign and installing energy efficient technologies.  Some of 

the projects the City has implemented are as follows: 

  

1. Replaced aging HVAC systems. 

2. Retrofitted inefficient lighting systems. 

3. Participate in the CAL Recycles program to use 100% recycled paper to meet a City 

50% diversion rate. 

4. Installed variable frequency drives (VFDs) at Waste Water and Water facilities. 

5. LS-1 Street Lights - 2018 Project 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that Council approve the City of Woodlake Energy Action Plan. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

By promoting conservation and efficiencies this will lead to a reduction in utility costs. 
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ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Resolution: Approval of the City of Woodlake Energy Action Plan  

2. City of Woodlake Energy Action Plan 
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BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF THE CITY     )   Resolution No:  

OF WOODLAKE ENERGY      )                          

ACTION PLAN              ) 

 

Councilmember _______, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve the 

City of Woodlake Energy Action Plan.  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodlake recognizes the impact of global climate change from greenhouse 

gas (GHG) emissions arising from anthropogenic activities and recognizes the needs to reduce their 

GHG emissions and become a more sustainable community; and 

 

WHEREAS, by taking the lead in implementing climate and clean energy programs in municipal 

operations, the city intends to build capacity at the local government level, save money that can be 

reinvested into local government operations, build government credibility for outreach with other 

sectors, and demonstrate leadership. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to approve the City of 

Woodlake Energy Action Plan.  

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ______, and seconded by 

_______, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on April 9, 2018. 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT:  

 

  

      _______________________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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Accepted	on	____________________	
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EXECUTIVE	SUMMARY	

	
The	 City	 of	 Woodlake	 recognizes	 the	 impact	 of	 global	 climate	 change	 from	 greenhouse	 gas	 (GHG)	
emissions	arising	from	anthropogenic	activities.		Recognizing	the	need	to	reduce	our	GHG	emissions	and	
become	a	more	 sustainable	 community	 is	a	priority	 for	 the	 city.	 	 This	Energy	Action	Plan	outlines	 the	
efforts	 that	 the	 city	 will	 take	 to	 contribute	 to	 the	 reduction	 of	 GHG	 emissions	 through	 reducing	
municipal	energy	consumption.			
	
As	a	partner	in	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	Energy	Leader	Program,	a.k.a.	“Valley	Innovative	Energy	Watch”	
(VIEW),	 the	 City	 of	Woodlake	 is	 committed	 to	 leading	 by	 example:	 the	 city	 is	 dedicated	 to	 achieving	
energy	 reduction	 through	projects	and	practice.	By	 taking	 the	 lead	 in	 implementing	climate	and	clean	
energy	 programs	 in	municipal	 operations,	 the	 city	 intends	 to	 build	 capacity	 at	 the	 local	 government	
level,	save	money	that	can	be	reinvested	into	local	government	operations,	build	government	credibility	
for	outreach	with	other	sectors,	and	demonstrate	leadership.	As	an	added	benefit	Woodlake	encourages	
our	employees	to	become	energy	leaders	in	their	homes.		It	is	through	awareness	and	example	that	the	
residents	of	Woodlake	will	adapt	to	new,	more	efficient,	lifestyle	practices.	Throughout	the	San	Joaquin	
Valley,	 city	 and	 county	 governments	 have	 embraced	 an	 important	 element	 in	 pursuit	 of	 responsible	
stewardship	–	energy	efficiency.	In	addition	to	saving	money,	such	measures	substantially	reduce	energy	
use	and,	subsequently,	the	creation	of	GHG	emissions.	

Through	VIEW,	the	city	is	taking	immediate	action	by	instituting	an	energy	conservation	behavior	change	
campaign	 and	 installing	 energy	 efficient	 technologies.	 	 To	 better	 understand	 the	 range	 of	 options	
available,	 the	 city,	 with	 the	 VIEW	 Partnership,	 is	 currently	 exploring	 options	 that	 other	 local	
governments	 have	 recommended	 through	 their	 Climate	 Action	 Plans	 (CAPs)	 as	well	 as	 programs	 and	
opportunities	that	other	local	governments	have	successfully	implemented.	After	applicable	actions	are	
determined,	the	city	will	begin	to	design	specific	policies	and	establish	implementation	pathways.	

By	considering	the	full	set	of	energy	and	non-energy	benefits—such	as	energy	system,	environmental,	
human	 health,	 and	 economic	 benefits—Woodlake	 can	 focus	 on	 potential	 policies	 and	 programs	with	
multiple	benefits.	Based	on	these	factors,	Woodlake	is	able	to:	

• Demonstrate	how	policies	and	programs	can	help	achieve	multiple	energy,	environmental,	and	
economic	benefits	in	a	cost-effective	way;	

• Design	or	select	options	that	offer	energy,	environmental,	and	economic	benefits;	
• Build	stakeholder	support	for	climate	change	mitigation	and	clean	energy	policies	and	programs.	

	
Rationale	 Saving	 energy	 reduces	 greenhouse	 gas	 emissions.	 	 Reduced	 greenhouse	 gas	 emissions	
improve	the	quality	of	 life	 for	 residents	by	 reducing	 the	amount	of	 toxins	 released	 in	 the	atmosphere	
and	 thereby	 their	 exposure	 to	 them.	 	 The	 fastest,	most	 cost	 effective	way	 to	 reduce	 greenhouse	 gas	
emissions	is	through	efficiency.	

	

1kWh	≈	1	CO2e	lb	

One	kilowatt	hour	of	electricity	saved	reduces	about	one	pound	of	equivalent	carbon	dioxide.	
	

1	MMBtu	≈	111	CO2e	lbs	

One	million	British	thermal	units	of	natural	gas	saved	reduce	about	117	pounds	of	equivalent	carbon	
dioxide.		
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(California	Air	Resources	Board	,	2011)	

SECTION	1	-	INTRODUCTION	

The	purpose	of	this	Energy	Action	Plan	(EAP)	is	to	reduce	the	environmental	impact	and	fiscal	impact	of	
energy	 usage	 in	 municipal	 facilities.	 	 This	 EAP	 is	 a	 living	 document	 meant	 to	 evolve	 over	 time	 with	
experience,	the	introduction	of	new	technologies	and	as	the	city	progresses	toward	a	sustainable	future.	
The	EAP	could	serve,	should	the	city	choose,	as	a	guide	for	implementing	the	energy	chapter	of	a	future	
Climate	Action	Plan	(CAP).			

The	aim	and	objective	of	 the	EAP	 is	 to	highlight	measures	the	city	can	take	to	reduce	greenhouse	gas	
(GHG)	emissions	and	establish	a	plan	for	implementing	them	over	the	next	several	years.	The	benefit	is	
two-fold	 –	 reducing	 energy	 use	 saves	 much-needed	 funds	 while	 simultaneously	 reducing	 the	
environmental	impact	of	municipal	facilities.	

1.1 History	of	Energy	Planning	in	the	City	of	Woodlake	

The	city	had	minimal	municipal	efforts	to	reduce	energy	use	prior	to	joining	the	VIEW	Partnership	in	2009.		
Before	joining	the	partnership,	the	City	of	Woodlake	never	had	an	energy	audit	and	had	not	adopted	any	
energy,	 water,	 sustainability,	 green	 building,	 climate	 action	 or	 other	 related	 energy	 efficiency	 and/or	
sustainability	 policies	 or	 plans.	 	 In	 2010,	 the	 city	 released	 its	 first	 General	 Plan	 update	 since	 1978,	
addressing	 some	 conservation	 elements	 and	 agreeing	 to	 accept	 amendments	 to	 the	 General	 Plan	
specifically	addressing	Energy	Efficiency.			

	

“Energy	efficiency	
measures	for	both	

electricity	and	natural	
gas	can	reduce	
greenhouse	gas	

emissions	significantly”	
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Audits	and	Demand	Response		
Through	participation	in	the	VIEW	Partnership,	the	city	began	a	series	of	energy	audits	and	set	a	plan	to	
upgrade	well	site	motors	for	energy	efficiency.	 	In	2010	the	city	enrolled	in	a	demand	response	program	
through	Southern	California	Edison,	“Summer	Discount	Plan”.			

Benchmarking	

Prior	to	 joining	the	VIEW	Partnership,	 the	city	monitored	 its	energy	use	through	Excel	spreadsheets	and	
specific	requests	for	information	from	each	department.		The	city	has	worked	with	the	VIEW	Partnership	
to	 upload	 100%	 of	 city	 facilities,	 and	 as	 many	 ‘other’	 accounts	 as	 possible	 to	 use	 the	 EPA	 Portfolio	
Manager	as	an	entry	level	Energy	Management	System.			

Energy	Efficiency	and	Conservation	Block	Grant		

In	2009	the	City	of	Woodlake	was	a	recipient	of	American	Recovery	and	Reinvestment	Act	funds	in	the	
form	of	the	Department	of	Energy	(DOE)	Energy	Efficiency	and	Conservation	Block	Grant	(EECBG),	in	the	
amount	of	$41,533,	in	pass-through	from	the	California	Energy	Commission.	The	city	utilized	$21,685.50	
of	 their	 block	 grant	 dollars	 to	 complete	 retrofits	 and	 replacements	 of	 aging	 HVAC	 systems,	 and	 to	
retrofit	inefficient	lighting	systems	for	a	an	annual	savings	to	the	city	of	24,411	kWh.		As	a	result	of	this	
project	the	city,	on	average,	saves	$3,000	on	their	electric	expenses	annually.			
	
CAL	Recycling	Program	

The	city	participated	 in	 the	CAL	Recycling	program,	requiring	the	city	 to	meet	a	50%	diversion	rate	by	
purchasing	 100%	 recycled	 paper--policy	 for	 procurement.	 In	 addition,	 at	 least	 25%	 of	 the	 total	 fine	
writing	and	printing	paper	purchased	by	the	Legislature	were	to	be	recycled	paper	products,	as	defined	
in	Section	12301.	(PUBLIC	CONTRACT	CODE	SECTION	12310,	12301)		
	
Waste	Water	Treatment	Plant	Expansion	

In	the	summer	of	2012,	the	city	completed	a	renovation	and	expansion	of	their	waste	water	treatment	
plant	 (WWTP)	 that	 included	 aeration	 blower	 variable	 frequency	 drives	 (VFDs)	 and	 controls,	 diffusers,	
influent	pump	VFDs,	oxidant	ditch	internal	recycle	pump	VFDs,	return	activated	sludge	pump	VFDs	and	
other	assorted	motor	treatments.		With	cost	effective	bid	results,	the	city	was	able	to	use	unspent	funds	
to	 install	a	new	lift	station	at	the	corner	of	Naranjo	Boulevard	and	Manzeo.	As	a	result	of	this	project,	
the	city	received	a	onetime	incentive	payment	from	Southern	California	Edison	in	excess	of	$30,000.00.	
Furthermore,	the	city	realizes	an	annual	savings	at	the	WWTP	of	295,028	kWh.	

In	today’s	environment,	where	conventional	energy	resources		are		increasingly	constrained		and		their		use		is		
causing		unintended		adverse		impacts,		the		need		for		local	energy	planning	is	evident.		The	City	of	Woodlake	
can	take	steps	to	encourage	and	plan	for	energy	conservation,	thus	maintaining	or	improving	the	quality	of	
life	enjoyed	by	 residents.	 Energy	 conservation	efforts	 can	 include	encouragement	programs	 for	 alternative	
transportation,	green	building,	recycling	programs	and	renewable	energy.		

General	Plan	

Existing	Conditions	for	air	quality	and	water	resources	are	outlined	in	Appendix	C.	
	
Land	Use	Element	
Community	Image	

• A	 downtown	 maintenance	 district	 should	 be	 formed	 to	 pay	 for	 the	 cost	 of	 maintaining	
improvements	 in	 the	 downtown,	 such	 as	 landscaping,	 street	 furniture,	 parking	 lots	 and	
lighting.			

Employment	
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• Attract	industries	that	are	complementary	to	the	existing	work	force,	that	do	not	adversely	
affect	air	quality,	the	city’s	wastewater	treatment	facility	or	the	city’s	water	system	and	do	
not	 have	 a	 negative	 impact	 on	 the	 health	 and	 safety	 of	 the	 neighborhood	 or	 on	 the	
community	as	a	whole.	

Natural	Resources	
• Conserve	natural	resources,	including	native	trees,	agricultural	land,	and	water.	
• Preserve	air	quality.	
• Promote	ground	water	recharge.	
• Promote	energy	and	water	conservation.	
• Preserve	plants	and	animals	of	special	concern.		

Open	Space,	Parks,	and	Recreation	
• Consider	energy	conservation	in	the	planning	and	design	of	new	and	existing	development	

in	Woodlake.			
• The	 City	 of	 Woodlake	 should	 explore	 opportunities	 for	 generating	 energy	 or	 conserving	

energy.	
		
(Collins	&	Schoettler,	2010)	
	
1.2 Other	Agency	Goals	

AIR	QUALITY	

Assembly	Bill	(AB)	170,	Section	65302.1	of	the	California	Government	Code,	which	requires	all	59	cities	
and	8	counties	within	the	boundaries	of	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	Air	Pollution	Control	District	to	include	
Air	Quality	Elements	or	air	quality	 goals,	policies,	 and	 implementation	 strategies	 in	other	elements	of	
their	 General	 Plans.	 AB	 170	 also	 requires	 a	 Background	 Report	 describing	 local	 air	 quality	 conditions	
including	 air	 quality	 monitoring	 data,	 emission	 inventories,	 lists	 of	 significant	 source	 categories,	
attainment	 status	 and	 designations,	 and	 applicable	 State	 and	 Federal	 air	 quality	 plans	 and	
transportation	plans.	(County	of	Tulare	Resourse	Management	Agency,	2010)	
	
The	Federal	Clean	Air	Act	(CAA)	defines	the	Environmental	Protection	Agency’s	(EPA)	responsibilities	for	
protecting	and	 improving	 the	United	States	air	quality	and	ozone	 layer.	 	 	Key	components	of	 the	CAA	
include	 reducing	 ambient	 concentrations	 of	 air	 pollutants	 that	 cause	 health	 and	 aesthetic	 problems,	
reducing	emission	of	toxic	air	pollutants,	and	stopping	production	and	use	of	chemicals	that	destroy	the	
ozone.	

The	California	Clean	Air	Act	(CCAA)	of	1988	was	enacted	to	develop	plans	and	strategies	for	attaining	
California	Ambient	Air	Quality	Standards	(CAAQS).		The	California	Air	Resources	Board	(CARB),	which	is	
part	 of	 the	 California	 Environmental	 Protection	 Agency	 (Cal-EPA),	 develops	 statewide	 air	 quality	
regulations,	 including	 industry-specific	 limits	 on	 criteria,	 toxic,	 and	 nuisance	 pollutants.	 	 The	 CCAA	 is	
more	 stringent	 than	Federal	 law	 in	 a	number	of	ways	 including	 revised	 standards	 for	PM10and	Ozone	
State	for	visibility	reducing	particles,	sulfates,	hydrogen	sulfide,	and	vinyl	chloride.		

The	ARB	Scoping	Plan	is	the	comprehensive	plan	to	reach	the	GHG	reduction	targets	stipulated	in	AB32.		
The	 key	 elements	 of	 the	 plan	 are	 to	 expand	 and	 strengthen	 energy	 efficiency	 programs,	 achieve	 a	
statewide	renewable	energy	mix	of	33	percent,	develop	a	cap-and-trade	program	with	other	partners	in	
the	Western	Climate	Initiative	(includes	seven	states	in	the	United	States	and	four	territories	in	Canada),	
establish	transportation-related	targets,	and	establish	fees.		(Brown)	
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The	San	Joaquin	Valley	Air	Pollution	Control	District	oversees	air	quality	on	a	regional	basis.	The	public	health	
agency's	mission	 is	 to	 improve	 the	health	 and	quality	 of	 life	 through	 air	 quality-management	 strategies.	 It	
seeks	 to	 promote	 air	 that	meets	 or	 exceeds	 standards	 for	 all	 Valley	 residents	 through	 implementing	 cost-
effective	air	pollution-control	measures,	provide	meaningful	 incentives	 for	 reducing	emissions	and	develop	
creative	alternatives	for	achieving	emissions	reductions.	

WATER	CONSERVATION	AND	EFFICIENCY	

Section	 65591	 of	 the	 Government	 Code	 requires	 all	 local	 jurisdictions	 to	 adopt	 a	 water	 efficient	
landscape	 ordinance.	 	 The	 ordinance	 is	 to	 address	 water	 conservation	 through	 appropriate	 use	 and	
grouping	 of	 plants	 based	 on	 environmental	 conditions,	 water	 budgeting	 to	 maximize	 irrigation	
efficiency,	storm	water	retention,	and	automatic	irrigation	systems.		Failure	to	adopt	a	water	efficiency	
ordinance	 requires	 a	 local	 jurisdiction	 to	 enforce	 the	 provisions	 of	 the	 State’s	model	water	 efficiency	
ordinance.	 	 In	 2009,	 the	 Department	 of	Water	 Resources	 (DWR)	 updated	 the	Model	Water	 Efficient	
Landscape	 Ordinance	 pursuant	 to	 amendments	 to	 the	 1991	 Act.	 	 These	 amendments	 and	 the	 new	
model	 ordinance	 went	 into	 effect	 on	 January	 1,	 2010.	 	 The	 amended	 Act	 is	 applicable	 to	 any	 new	
commercial,	multi-family,	 industrial	or	tract	home	project	containing	2,500	square	feet	(SF)	or	more	of	
landscaping.	 	 Individual	 landscape	projects	of	5,000	SF	or	more	on	single-family	properties	will	also	be	
subject	to	the	Act.		All	 landscape	plans	are	required	to	include	calculations	verifying	conformance	with	
the	maximum	 applied	 water	 allowance	 and	must	 be	 prepared	 and	 stamped	 by	 a	 licensed	 landscape	
architect.		(Brown)	
	
CITY	CODES	

The	City	 of	Woodlake	 has	 adopted	 the	 following	 Codes	 as	mandated	by	 the	 State	 of	 California:	 2013	
California	 Building	 Code;	 2013	 California	 Plumbing	 Code;	 2013	 California	 Mechanical	 Code;	 2013	
California	 Electrical	 Code;	 2013	 California	 Residential	 Code;	 2013	 California	 Energy	 Code;	 2013	
California	 Green	 Building	 Standards	 Code;	 2013	 California	 Fire	 Code;	 2013	 California	 Referenced	
Standards	Code;	2013	California	Building	Standards	Administrative	Code.		

BUILDING	

New	California	Green	Building	Standards	Code	(CALGREEN)	went	 into	effect	on	January	1,	2011.	 	The	
purpose	of	 the	new	addition	 to	 the	California	Building	Code	 (CBC)	 is	 to	 improve	public	health,	 safety,	
and	 general	welfare	 by	 enhancing	 the	 design	 and	 construction	 of	 buildings	 using	 concepts	 to	 reduce	
negative	 impacts	 or	 produce	 positive	 impacts	 on	 the	 environment.	 	 The	 CALGREEN	 regulations	 cover	
planning	 and	 design,	 energy	 efficiency,	 water	 efficiency	 and	 conservation,	material	 conservation	 and	
resources	 efficiency,	 and	 environmental	 quality.	 	 Many	 of	 the	 new	 regulations	 have	 the	 effect	 of	
reducing	greenhouse	gas	emissions	from	the	operation	of	new	buildings.		(Brown)	

BENCHMARKING	

In	 September	2009,	 the	California	Public	Utilities	Commission	 (CPUC)	 issued	directives	 to	 the	 Investor	
Owned	Utilities	to	provide	support	for	the	California	Long	Term	Energy	Efficiency	Strategic	Plan	(CEESP)	
in	 D.09-09-047	 Directives	 -	 Energy	 Use	 Data.	 	 Those	 directives,	 as	 they	 relate	 to	 local	 governments	
include:		
• Local	 governments	 need	 facility	 specific	 data	 to	 benchmark	 their	 own	 facilities	 and	 prioritize	

them	for	retro	commissioning	
• Local	 governments	 need	 aggregated	 data	 by	 sector	 (residential,	 commercial,	 etc.)	 to	 develop	

community	inventories	and	profiles	for	development	of	GHG	mitigation	plans	
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• The	utilities	are	required	to	work	cooperatively	with	their	local	government	partners	to	develop	
a	 cost	 effective	 plan	 to	 provide	 this	 information	 in	 a	 standardized	 way	 that	 also	meets	 local	
government	needs.	

In	 that	 effort,	 the	 San	 Joaquin	 Valley	 Energy	 Leader	 Partnership,	 or	 VIEW	 Partnership	 (VIEW)	 in	
cooperation	between	Southern	California	Edison,	 Southern	California	Gas	Company,	 local	 government	
partners,	and	the	implementer	determined	the	best	use	of	imbedded	strategic	funds	would	be	to	assist	
our	 local	 governments	 in	 organizing	 their	 energy	 account	 data	 and	 setting	 up	 their	 benchmarking	
accounts.			

The	ENERGY	STAR	Portfolio	Manager	was	determined	to	be	the	most	user-friendly	system,	and	accepted	
by	the	Partnership.	 	Portfolio	Manager	is	an	online	service	that	tracks	a	building’s	energy	performance	
and	compares	it	to	similar	buildings	nationwide.		Buildings	are	issued	a	score	from	1-100,	representing	
the	 building’s	 energy	 efficiency.	 	 Some	 buildings	 won’t	 be	 scored—there	 are	 minimum	 standards	
required	to	receive	a	score--	however,	Portfolio	Manager	can	still	provide	valuable	information	that	will	
help	the	City	understand	its	energy	performance.			

CLIMATE	CHANGE	

On	June	1,	2005,	Governor	Schwarzenegger	 issued	Executive	Order	S-3-05	 recognizing	global	warming	
and	 its	 impacts,	 establishing	 targets	 for	 greenhouse	gas	emissions,	 requiring	a	biennial	 assessment	of	
climate	change	impacts	and	the	development	of	impact	mitigation/adaptation	plans,	and	requiring	the	
formation	or	an	interagency	team	to	implement	the	Order.		
	
Additionally,	 the	 State	 of	 California	 adopted	 the	 Global	 Warming	 Solutions	 Act	 of	 2006	 (commonly	
referred	 to	 as	 Assembly	 Bill	 (AB)	 32),	 Health	 and	 Safety	 Code	 Sections	 38501	 et	 seq.,	 directing	 the	
California	Air	Resources	Control	Board	(CARB)	to	develop	and	adopt	statewide	greenhouse	gas	emission	
limits	 designed	 to	 achieve	 statewide	 emission	 levels	 equivalent	 to	 those	 in	 1990	 by	 2020,	 along	with	
regulations	 to	 require	 reporting	 and	 verification	 of	 greenhouse	 gas	 emissions	 and	 to	 monitor	 and	
enforce	 compliance	with	 this	 program.	 CARB	 adopted	 the	 Climate	 Change	 Scoping	 Plan	 in	 December	
2008.	 The	 Scoping	 Plan	 proposes	 a	 set	 of	 actions	 designed	 to	 reduce	 overall	 carbon	 emissions	 in	
California	 to	 meet	 the	 target	 emission	 levels.	 The	 Scoping	 Plan	 states	 that	 local	 governments	 are	
“essential	 partners”	 in	 the	 effort	 to	 reduce	 greenhouse	 gas	 emissions,	 and	 that	 they	 have	 “broad	
influence	 and,	 in	 some	 cases,	 exclusive	 jurisdiction”	 over	 activities	 that	 contribute	 to	 greenhouse	 gas	
emissions.	
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SECTION	2	–	CITY	OF	WOODLAKE	ENERGY	USE	

	

2.1	City	of	Woodlake	Baseline	Municipal	Energy	Use	

The	 city	 has	 selected	 2006	 as	 the	 baseline	 year	 for	 Municipal	 Operations.	 	 In	 2006,	 the	 baseline	
consumption	 for	 the	 municipal	 facilities	 was	 1,457,135	 kWh.	 This	 data	 was	 provided	 by	 Southern	
California	Edison	as	part	of	the	Energy	Leader	Partnership	program.			
	

	
Figure	1:	Woodlake	Energy	Consumption	

	
Please	see	Appendix	B	for	a	complete	list	of	energy	accounts.	
	
2.2 Highest	Users		

Please	see	Appendix	A	for	a	list	of	the	highest	consuming	energy	accounts	in	the	City	of	Woodlake	and	
the	associated	energy	use	for	each	individual	account.		
	
2.3 Current	Energy	Programs/Policies		

	
City	of	Woodlake	General	Plan	2010	Policies		

The	 city	 recognizes	 that	 Natural	 gas-burning	 appliances	 used	 for	 space	 heating,	 water	 heating,	 and	
cooking	 are	 a	 sizable	 source	 of	 NOx	 and	 greenhouse	 gas	 emissions.	 Consumption	 of	 electricity	 also	
causes	indirect	pollutant	emissions	from	the	operation	of	power	plants	fueled	by	fossil	fuels.	Reduction	
in	 local	energy	demand	will	also	 reduce	overall	energy	demand,	which	decreases	 the	need	 for	energy	
production	plant	construction.	Local	efforts	to	reduce	energy	consumption	can	save	consumers	money	
and	 improve	air	quality.	Simple	and	cost-effective	designs,	 technologies,	and	methods	are	available	to	
achieve	energy	savings	and	 reduce	air	pollutant	emissions.	The	City	of	Woodlake	has	enacted	policies	
that	 will	 aid	 in	 the	 reduction	 of	 energy	 consumption.	 These	 policies	 are	 outlined	 in	 the	 Woodlake	
General	Plan	Recreation	Open	Space	and	Conservation	Element.	
	

Woodlake	Energy	Consumpgon	

Buildings	

Street	Lighrng	

Pumps	

Water	Sources	

Waste	Water	

Parks	
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AIR	AND	WATER	QUALITY	

The	City	of	Woodlake	exceeds	two	important	air	pollution	standards	–	ozone	and	particulate	matter.	As	
growth	occurs,	more	smog	is	produced	by	fossil	fuel	burning	and	emissions	from	factories.	The	city	must	
encourage	 development	 that	 will	 minimize	 vehicular	 emissions	 by	 providing	 an	 adequate	 circulation	
system.		

The	City	of	Woodlake	obtains	its	water	supply	from	a	vast	aquifer	underlying	the	San	Joaquin	Valley.	The	
quantity	and	quality	of	water	appears	to	be	adequate,	however,	in	the	future,	Woodlake	must	provide	
for	 long-range	community	water	needs	and	protect	water	quality	and	quantity.	 It	must	also	maximize	
the	efficient	use	and	conservation	of	the	community's	water	resources.	

Goals,	Objectives,	Action	Plans	

	
Protect	air	and	water	quality	from	negative	impacts.	

Air	Quality	

	
1.			Participate	in	the	regional	planning	efforts	to	meet	air	quality	goals	by	working	to	improve	air	quality	

for	the	entire	planning	area.	
a.	 	 	The	Planning	Department	will	send	proposed	development	plans	to	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	

Unified	Air	Pollution	Control	District	for	review	of	potential	air	pollution	impacts.	
2.		Consider	traffic	flow	in	the	planning	of	residential,	commercial	and	industrial	developments.	

a.	 	The	 Planning	 and	 Engineering	 departments	 will	 review	 all	 new	 projects	 to	 ensure	 that	
efficient	traffic	flow	maintained,	thereby	minimizing	vehicle-related	air	emissions.	

b.		 The	 Circulation	 Element	 will	 insure	 that	 proper	 roadway	 connectivity	 is	 provided	 in	 the	
planning	area.		This	design	feature	will	reduce	vehicle	miles	traveled.	

3.		Maintain	adequate		roadway		levels		of		service		(LOS)		to		avoid		congestion		which	contributes	to	the	
air	pollution	problem.	

a.			The	Planning	and	Engineering	departments	will	review	all	proposed	development	projects	to	
ensure	 that	 roadway	 service	 levels	 do	 not	 fall	 below	 Level	 C	 for	 arterioles,	 collectors	 and	
intersections.	 	 The	 City	 will	 utilize	 gas	 tax	 and	 transportation	 funds	 to	 maintain	 these	
transportation	standards.	

4.	 	Develop	an	organized	and	efficient	 circulation	 system	 to	 reduce	vehicle	 trips	 in	 the	planning	area,	
idling	time,	intersection	delays,	and	other	emissions-producing	activities.	
a.			The	Circulation	Element	establishes	policies	that	will	encourage	increased	connectivity	in	the	
City’s	street	patterns.	

5.	The	City	shall	encourage	residents	to	use	alternative	modes	of	transportation.	
a.	The	City	will	 seek	 funds	 to	 implement	 the	bike	path	system,	consistent	with	 the	Circulation	
Element	map.	
b.	 The	 City	 will	 apply	 for	 State	 funds	 for	 bike	 path	 improvements	 consistent	 with	 the	 Tulare	
County	Bike	Path	Plan.	
	

Water	Quality	

1.	 	 Promote	 a	 community	 awareness	 program	 that	 will	 educate	 the	 community	 in	 water-saving	
methodologies	at	the	home	and	the	work	place.	
a.	 	 	 The	 Public	 Works	 department	 will	 provide	 the	 community	 with	 information	 brochures	

containing	 water-saving	 techniques.	 	 Further	 the	 department	 should	 prepare	 a	 Water	
Conservation	Ordinance	for	adoption	by	the	City	Council.	
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2.		Promote	the	use	of	native	and	drought-tolerant	new	landscaping	in	existing	and	future	parks.	
a.	 	 	 The	 City	 shall	 stress	 the	 use	 of	 native	 and	 drought-tolerant	 species	 in	 private	 and	 public	

landscaping	areas.	
3.		Allow	for	adequate	groundwater	recharge	by	developing	storm	ponding	and	retention	basins	where	

feasible.	In	some	areas	these	ponds	or	basins	can	be	incorporated	into	a	recreational	area	or	used	as	
wildlife	habitat	area.	

a.	 The	 Engineering	 Department	 shall	 implement	 the	 policies	 of	 this	 Element	 with	 regard	 to	
locations	of	future	park/pond	basins.	

	
ENERGY	CONSERVATION	

	

Energy	conservation	is	a	topic	of	increasing	importance.		The	State	of	California	has	experienced	recent	
power	shortages	that	have	threatened	to	cripple	the	local	economy.		It	is	becoming	increasingly	difficult	
to	tap	new	sources	of	energy,	from	a	fiscal,	political	and	environmental	perspective.		At	the	same	time,	
the	state	continues	to	grow	at	a	rapid	pace.	
	
Local	governments	can	take	a	number	of	actions	to		ensure		that		new		(and		existing)	development	is		as	
energy-efficient		as		possible.		Strategies	for	Woodlake	are	outlined	below.		

	
Goals,	Objectives,	Action	Plans	

	

Consider	energy	conservation	in	the	planning	and	design	of	new	and	existing	development	in	Woodlake.	

1.			Development	in	the	planning	area	shall	be	designed	in	a	fashion	that	maximizes	energy	efficiency.	

a.		Street	 standards	 shall	 be	 revised	 to	 increase	 shading	 along	 all	 future	 streets.	 	 Residential	
street	widths	for	future	streets	shall	be	narrowed,	thereby	reducing	the	amount	of	pavement	
area	 -	 reducing	heat	buildup.	 	Shade	trees	will	also	help	 to	 reduce	heat	buildup.	 	For	more	
information,	see	the	Circulation	Element.	

b.			The	City	shall	work	with	subdividers	to	design	subdivisions	where	majorities	of	dwelling	units	
are	properly	oriented	with	respect	to	the	sun,	to	take	advantage	of	passive	solar	heating	and	
cooling	 opportunities.	 	 The	 City	 shall	 encourage	 streets	 to	 run	 east/west	 rather	 than	
north/south.	

c.		The	 City	 shall	 work	 with	 developers	 to	 maximize	 the	 planting	 of	 deciduous	 shade	 trees	
around	buildings	and	in	paved	areas.	

The	City	of	Woodlake	should	explore	opportunities	for	generating	energy	or	conserving	energy.	

1. The	 public	works	 department	 should	 investigate	 the	 opportunity	 of	 installing	 solar	 panels	 on	 city	
owned	buildings	or	on	city	owned	property.	

	
2. The	 City	 of	 Woodlake	 should	 investigate	 the	 use	 of	 energy	 savings	 technologies,	 including	 LED	

lighting,	 	 upgraded	 	 heating	 	 and	 	 cooling	 	 units,	 	 and	 	 installation	 	 of	 insulation,	 solar	 panels	 or	
double-paned	windows.	

(Collins	&	Schoettler,	2010)	
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SECTION	3	–	CITY	OF	WOODLAKE	TARGET	REDUCTION	GOALS	

	
	
As	 a	 participant	 in	 the	 Valley	 Innovative	 Energy	Watch,	 the	 City	 of	Woodlake,	 California,	 has	 pledged	 to	
attempt	 reduction	 of	 municipal	 energy	 consumption	 of	 its	 portfolio	 of	 buildings	 by	 20%	 from	 the	 2006	

baseline	 of	 1,457,135	 kWh	 or	 more	 by	 December	 31,	 2018.	 The	 City	 has,	 to	 date,	 completed	 a	 19.77%	
reduction	from	the	2006	baseline.	
	
By	reducing	energy	use	 in	 line	with	the	Partnership	goals,	 the	city	could	see	an	annual	reduction	 in	energy	
costs	of	more	than	$3,600.00.	(Based	on	a	rate	of	$0.152	per	kWh)	
	
The	City	of	Woodlake	seeks	to	follow	the	spirit	of	AB	32,	by	way	of	putting	a	significant	dent	in	greenhouse	gas	
emissions	by	2020	and	 increasing	the	use	of	 renewable	energy	and	the	adoption	of	energy	efficiency	 in	 the	
city.	By	2020	the	City	of	Woodlake	will	reduce	greenhouse	gas	emissions	by	29%.	
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SECTION	4	–	CITY	OF	WOODLAKE	ACTION	STEPS	

This	EAP	is	a	constantly	evolving	document,	and	the	city	understands	that	in	order	to	tend	to	the	care,	
development	 and	 implementation	 of	 treatment	 options	 identified	 below	 continued	 planning	 is	
necessary.	 	 To	 support	 this	 planning	 process	 the	 City	 Council	 may	 create	 an	 interim,	 ad-hoc	 Energy	
Committee,	 to	 further	 develop	 plans	 and	 implementation.	 	 The	 below	 action	 steps	 are	 options	 for	
consideration	 to	 address	 specific	 needs	 identified	 on	 a	 regional	 level	 that	 the	 city	 may	 choose	 to	
implement	over	time.			
	
To	consider	this	energy	action	plan	implemented	for	the	purposes	of	the	SCE	energy	leader	partnership,	
the	city	will	complete	two	of	the	below	listed	action	steps.		
	
Action	steps	Woodlake!		

1. What:	 Register	 city	 utility	 accounts	 with	 the	 EPA	 ENERGY	 STAR	 Portfolio	
Manager,	 using	 the	 system	 as	 an	 introductory	 energy	management	 system	 to	
measure	energy	use,	cost,	and	environmental	impact.		
Who:	 City	 staff	 with	 support	 from	 the	 San	 Joaquin	 Valley	 Clean	 Energy	

Organization		
Cost:	None	

2. What:	The	 city	may	 explore	 decreasing	 daily	 streetlight	 hours	 of	 operation.	 If	
streetlight	operation	is	reduced	by	just	one	to	two	hours,	this	can	result	in	some	
significant	reduction	in	energy	use	and	GHG	emissions.	
Who:	City	staff.	
Cost:	None.		

3. What:	 The	 city	 could	 consider	 forming	 a	 “green	 team”	 to	 investigate	
implementing	no	cost	measures	to	reduce	energy	use	at	city	facilities,	as	well	as	
act	 as	 leaders	 to	 other	 staff	members,	 creating	 a	 ‘culture	 of	 efficiency’	 in	 city	
operations.		
Who:	City	staff	(“Green	Team”),	ad-hoc	energy	committee,	department	heads.		
Cost:	None.	

4. What:	 The	 city	 might	 explore	 a	 city	 recognition	 program	 for	 reductions	 in	
energy	use	in	the	commercial	sector.		
Who:	 City	 staff,	 Chamber	 of	 Commerce,	 Economic	 Development	 Corporation,	
Pacific	Gas	and	Electric	Company	Direct	Install.		
Cost:	None	to	city,	if	partners	solicit	sponsors.		

5. What:	Develop	an	energy	efficiency	revolving	loan	fund	(RFL).	The	city	can	create	
its	own	internal	RFL	by	setting	aside	a	fixed	pool	of	internal	funds	specifically	for	
energy	 efficiency	 projects.	 Funds	 are	 “loaned”	 to	 complete	 energy	 efficiency	
projects,	 and	 the	 cost	 savings	 accrued	 from	 the	 projects	 are	 then	 used	 to	
“repay”	 the	 RFL.	 Energy	 savings	 are	 constantly	 used	 to	 fund	 additional	
improvement	projects	to	municipal	facilities.	

	 		Who:	City	Staff.	 	
	 		Cost:	None.	
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4.1	Municipal	Facility	Energy	Efficiency	Projects	

	
At	 the	 time	 of	 drafting	 this	 EAP,	 the	 city	 had	 completed	 several	 projects	 with	 SCE,	 including	 the	
following	Direct	Install	projects:	
	
Project	Name	and	DI	Project	

Number	
kWh	Savings	 kW	Savings	 Incentive	 Status	

PL	30361:	VFD	Tank	#4	–	
500082454	

224,493.00	 27.43	 $29,682.00	 Installed	

Corp	Yard	Police	City	Hall	-	
500236427	

3,893.00	 2.69	 $595.00	 Installed	

	
The	following	lighting	project	is	in	the	city’s	project	pipeline	for	completion	in	2018:	
	
Project	Name	and	DI	Project	

Number	
Projected	kWh	Savings	 Incentive	 Status	

LS-1	Option	E	Streetlighting	 111,756.00	 $	-	 Installation	in	2018	

	
Furthermore,	as	identified	in	Figure	1,	page	9,	water	operations	in	the	City	of	Woodlake	are	by	far	the	
biggest	source	of	energy	consumption.	By	targeting	water	operations	with	energy	efficiency	upgrades	
and	conducting	regular	pump	efficiency	tests,	the	city	could	decrease	the	energy	consumption	and	cost	
incurred	by	those	accounts.		
	
Energy	 audits	 of	municipal	 facilities	 will	 reveal	 energy	 efficiency	 retrofit	 opportunities.	 These	 include	
lighting,	air	conditioning,	pumps	and	other	electrical	upgrades.	In	addition,	buildings	can	be	audited	for	
insulation	deficiencies.	Cool	 roof	 installation	 is	another	way	of	 reducing	cooling	costs.	Once	 those	are	
accomplished,	 the	 city	may	be	 interested	 in	 purchasing	building	management	 software	 that	monitors	
electricity	use	in	real	time,	an	upgrade	from	the	EPA	Portfolio	Manager.		
	
Time	line:	

• Audits	in	first	two	years	following	acceptance	of	EAP	
• Retrofits	prioritized	based	on	results	of	audits	
• Installation	of	retrofits	spread	over	five	years	
• Completion	2022	(or	five	years	following	acceptance	of	EAP)	

	
*table	below	for	city	use	in	tracking	audit	savings	projections.		
Potential	Project	Name	 kWh	savings	 kW	savings	 Savings	

Est.	

Est.	

Completion	
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To	consider	this	Energy	Action	Plan	implemented	for	the	purposes	of	the	SCE	energy	leader	partnership	
the	 city	 will	 complete	 two	 of	 five	 priority	 retrofits	 as	 1)	 outlined	 in	 the	 city’s	 current	 project	 pipeline	
and/or	2)	as	determined	by	audits	conducted	following	the	acceptance	of	this	document.		
	
	

	

4.2	Funding	of	Projects	

	
“Investing	in	energy	efficiency	epitomizes	responsible	government	stewardship	of	tax	dollars.”		

–United	States	Environmental	Protection	Agency	
	
The	 City	 of	Woodlake	 funds	 energy	 efficiency	 projects	 through	 the	 Utilities	 accounts	 and	 anticipates	
continuing	the	practice	moving	forward.	 	The	city	 is	continually	monitoring	energy	use	and	 looking	for	
ways	to	establish	additional	energy	efficiency	projects.	

	
The	 city	 will	 endeavor	 to	 identify	 new	 and	 innovative	 ways	 to	 help	 fund	 energy	 efficiency	 projects.		
Possible	funding	opportunities	may	include:	
	

ü On	Bill	Financing	programs	offered	by	Southern	California	Edison		
ü California	Energy	Commission	low-interest	loans	
ü Revolving	loan	fund	
ü Involvement	 in	 multi-jurisdictional	 partnership	 to	 leverage	 Federally	 funded	 grant	

opportunities	
	
Additionally,	the	city	may	explore	the	following	options:	

• Investigate	 third	 party	 financing	 possibilities	 for	 renewable	 energy	 installations	 and	 existing	
building	retrofits	that	may	be	made	within	the	community.	

• Consider	opportunities,	such	as	peak	pricing,	grants,	and	subsidy	programs	to	reduce	the	overall	
cost	of	electricity.	

• Recommend	a	feasibility	study	to	evaluate	bond	opportunities	for	energy-related	projects.	
• Pursue	 all	 available	 subsidies,	 rebates,	 and	 grants	 that	 will	 allow	 the	 county	 to	 implement	

energy	efficiency	and	renewable	energy	projects.	
	

Federal	Incentives/Policies	for	Renewables	&	Efficiency,	Financial	Incentives	

Corporate	Depreciation	

• Modified	Accelerated	Cost-Recovery	System	(MACRS)	+	Bonus	Depreciation	(2008-2019)	
Corporate	Exemption	

• Residential	Energy	Conservation	Subsidy	Exclusion	(Corporate)	
Federal	Grant	Program	

• Tribal	Energy	Program	Grant	
• U.S.	Department	of	Treasury	–	Renewable	Energy	Grants	
• USDA	–	High	Energy	Cost	Grant	Program	
• USDA	–	Rural	Energy	for	America	Program	(REAP)	Grants	

Federal	Loan	Program	

• Clean	Renewable	Energy	Bonds	(CREBs)	
• Energy-Efficient	Mortgages	
• Qualified	Energy	Conservation	Bonds	(QECBs)	

143



16	
	

• U.S.	Department	of	Energy	–	Loan	Guarantee	Program	
• USDA	–	Rural	Energy	for	America	Program	(REAP)	Loan	Guarantees	

	
Other	Resources	

• http://programs.dsireusa.org/system/program?state=CA	
• https://www.epa.gov/statelocalclimate/clean-energy-financing-programs	
• https://www.epa.gov/cwsrf/financing-alternatives-comparison-tool	
• https://betterbuildingssolutioncenter.energy.gov/financing-navigator/		

	

4.3	Policies	

In	 order	 to	 consider	 this	 Energy	 Action	 Plan	 implemented	 for	 the	 purposes	 of	 the	 SCE	 energy	 leader	
partnership	the	city	will	adopt	two	of	the	below	listed	policies.		
	
POLICY	1:	ADOPT	ENERGY	EFFICIENCY	STANDARDS.	

What	Can	Woodlake	Do?	 The	 city	 can	 commit	 to	meeting	 the	 state’s	Title	24	 regulations	 in	new	and	
existing	construction.	The	city	can	also	exceed	these	regulations	in	municipal	retrofits	in	anticipation	of	
regulation	updates.	For	example,	wastewater	plants	and	drinking	water	systems	can	account	for	up	to	
one-third	of	a	municipality’s	total	energy	bill	(U.S.	Environmental	Protection	Agency),	and	so	the	city	can	
integrate	energy	efficiency	into	new	or	expanded	wastewater	treatment	plant	design.			
	

Example:	 Selma,	 California.	 	 The	 City	 of	 Selma	 installed	 144	 new	 light-emitting	 diode,	 or	 LED,	 street	
lights	casting	a	brighter	glow	than	the	old	high-pressure	sodium	bulbs	they	replaced.		The	new	lights	are	
also	significantly	more	energy	efficient,	saving	the	city	much	needed	money	on	its	utility	bills.	
	
“In	these	challenging	budget	times,	it	is	a	great	assistance	to	have	new	street	lights	provided	through	a	
grant	 that	 will	 help	 the	 City	 of	 Selma	 reduce	 its	 utility	 bills	 as	 well	 as	 provide	 brighter	 lighting	 for	
residents.”	said	Ken	Grey,	Mayor.	
	
This	means	significant	savings	to	city	coffers	through	lower	utility	bills.	 	The	energy	efficiency	retrofits,	
when	 complete,	will	 save	 the	 city	 about	 66,700	 kilowatt-hours	 of	 power	 and	 about	 $8,500	 in	 energy	
costs	per	year.	(Kalashian,	2012)	
	
Resource:	https://www.epa.gov/statelocalclimate		
	
	

POLICY	2:	REDUCE	ENERGY	USE	IN	MUNICIPAL	FACILITIES.	

What	 can	Woodlake	 do?	 The	 city	 can	 publicly	 formalize	 its	 commitment	 to	 energy	 efficiency	 at	 the	
municipal	level	through	a	link	on	the	city	website	to	the	Energy	Leader	Partnership	website.	The	city	can	
work	with	Southern	California	Edison	and	Southern	California	Gas	to	take	advantage	of	utility	programs	
and	 funding	 for	 energy	 efficiency	 improvements.	 In	 addition,	 the	 city	 can	 continue	 to	 benchmark	 all	
municipal	 energy	 accounts	 to	 identify	 opportunities	 for	 audits	 and	 energy	 savings	 through	 various	
energy	efficiency	measures.	
	
The	 city	 can	 create	 or	 adopt	 self-sustaining	 funding	 sources	 for	 energy	 efficiency	 improvements.	
Examples	 of	 this	 are	 “paid	 from	 savings,”	 revolving	 loan	 funds,	 lease-purchase	 agreements,	 or	
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performance	contracting.	There	are	many	benefits	to	these	self-sustaining	funding	sources.	The	benefits	
of	 a	 tax-exempt	 lease	purchase	agreements	 (a.k.a.	municipal	 lease),	 for	example,	 include	no	need	 for	
capital	budget	appropriation,	no	voter	referendum,	monetary	obligation	 limited	to	the	current	budget	
period,	lower	interest	rates	and	repayment	that	is	tied	to	energy	cost	savings.			
	
A	 position	 or	 office	 focused	 on	 the	 aforementioned	 measures	 and	 energy	 independence	 could	 be	
created	within	a	city	department	as	well.	This	position	or	office	may	coordinate	programs	dedicated	to	
reducing	municipal	energy	use,	conduct	GHG	emissions	assessments	and	set	goals	for	municipal	energy	
use	reductions.	
	

Utility	 Partnership	 Example:	 St.	 Paul,	 Minnesota.	 “St.	 Paul	 has	 partnered	 with	 its	 electric	 utility	 to	
retrofit	 heating	 and	 cooling	 systems,	 purchase	 ENERGY	 STAR	 labeled	 products,	 replace	 street	 lighting	
and	 traffic	 signals,	and	 implement	other	energy	efficiency	 improvements.	 	These	activities	have	saved	
the	city	nearly	$8	million	 in	energy	costs	annually	and	reduced	 its	annual	CO2	emissions	by	more	than	
73,000	metric	tons,	equivalent	to	the	annual	emissions	of	13,000	cars.”	(U.S.	Environmental	Protection	
Agency,	2011)	
	
Benchmarking	Example:	Fort	Worth,	Texas.		“The	City	of	Fort	Worth	has	pledged	to	reduce	the	energy	
consumption	 its	 portfolio	 of	 buildings	 by	 10	 percent	 or	 more.	 	 Officials	 are	 benchmarking	 all	 city	
buildings	 in	Portfolio	Manager	and	using	data	from	this	tool	to	make	decisions	about	energy	upgrades	
and	operations	within	their	buildings.”	(U.S.	Environmental	Protection	Agency,	2011)	
	

Sample	Language	for	a	Benchmarking	Policy:	

As	 a	 participant	 in	 the	High	Desert	 Region	 Partnership,	 [your	 jurisdiction	 name	here],	 California,	 has	
pledged	to	reduce	the	energy	consumption	of	its	portfolio	of	buildings	by	[your	goal	percent	based	on	
ELP	needs]	or	more.	As	a	result	of	our	RESOLUTION	[#]	to	participate	in	the	High	Desert	Region	Energy	
Leader	Partnership	with	 Southern	California	Edison,	 Southwest	Gas,	 and	 the	San	 Joaquin	Valley	Clean	
Energy	Organization,	our	city	buildings	have	been	entered	in	Portfolio	Manager.		Officials	are	using	data	
from	this	tool	to	make	decisions	about	energy	upgrades	and	operations	within	their	buildings.	They	are	
also	 incorporating	 energy	 efficiency	 best	 practices	 into	 new	 building	 designs.	 [City/City]	 officials	 are	
leading	by	example	and	demonstrating	to	local	government	agencies	and	businesses	that	they	too	can	
reduce	 their	 energy	 consumption	 while	 continuing	 to	 deliver	 quality	 services.	 (United	 States	
Environmental	Protection	Agency,	2009)	
	

Energy	Office	Example:	Fayetteville,	Arkansas.	“In	2007,	Fayetteville	created	an	Office	of	Sustainability	
to	 coordinate	 energy	 and	 environmental	 programs	 aimed	 at	 reducing	 utility	 costs	 and	 environmental	
impacts.	 	 Under	 this	 mandate,	 the	 office	 coordinated	 an	 energy	 use	 assessment	 as	 part	 of	 a	
comprehensive	government	GHG	emissions	inventory.		
	
“The	office	followed	this	assessment	by	initiating	an	energy	consumption	reduction	competition	among	
17	 government	 facilities.	 	 In	 addition,	 10	 government	 facilities	 were	 incorporated	 into	 an	 energy	
performance	 contract	 and	 each	 completed	 a	 range	 of	 energy	 efficiency	 projects.	 	 These	 energy	
efficiency	 investments	 are	 producing	 an	 annual	 return	 of	 more	 than	 $400,000.”	 (U.S.	 Environmental	
Protection	Agency,	2011)	
	

Funding	 Source	 Example:	Westminster,	 Colorado.	 	 The	 city	 council	 passed	 a	 resolution	 in	 2005	 that	
authorized	the	city	to	enter	into	a	lease-purchase	agreement	to	purchase	and	install	approximately	$2.5	
million	in	energy-efficient	equipment	in	21	city	facilities.	The	city	issued	an	RFP	for	financing	bids	for	the	
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project	and	the	city	was	able	to	settle	on	a	 lease-purchase	agreement	with	a	 low	interest	rate	of	3.79	
percent.	 	 The	 city	 council	 considered	 cash-funding	 the	 purchase	 but	 determined	 that	 capital	
improvement	 budget	 constraints	 would	 mean	 that	 the	 project	 would	 have	 to	 be	 implemented	
piecemeal	over	8-12	years.	(U.S.	Environmental	Protection	Agency,	2011)	
	

Resources:		

• www.energystar.gov/index.cfm?c=evaluate_performance.bus_portfoliomanager	
• www.viewthesavings.com/resources	

	
	

POLICY	3:	REDUCE	ENERGY	USE	IN	PROCESSING	OPERATIONS.	

What	Can	Woodlake	Do?	 	The	city	can	reduce	energy	use	 in	processing	operations	by	working	closely	
with	 industry	 (storage,	 transport,	 refrigeration).	 This	 may	 include	 sharing	 energy	 consumption	 and	
efficiency	 information	 and	 materials	 with	 industry;	 promoting	 van	 and	 car	 sharing	 to	 increase	
transportation	efficiency;	educating	departments	and	industry	on	energy	management.		
	
Car	Sharing	Example:	Kings	County,	California.	The	County	helped	establish	the	Kings	Area	Rural	Transit	
(KART),	 a	 bus	 system	 and	 vanpool	 program	 providing	 public	 rural	 and	 urban	 transportation	 to	 the	
surrounding	 community.	 Although	 the	 vanpool	 program	 was	 originally	 designed	 to	 provide	 services	
exclusively	 to	 farm	 workers	 and	 correctional	 officers,	 the	 program	 has	 grown.	 Now,	 many	 workers	
throughout	the	county	take	advantage	of	the	vanpool	services,	which	decreases	the	amount	of	money	
they	 spend	on	 travel	 to	 and	 from	work.	 Furthermore,	 both	 the	 bus	 system	and	 vanpool	 program,	 by	
taking	many	cars	of	the	road	during	rush	hour,	increases	traffic	efficiency	and	decreases	transportation-
related	greenhouse	gas	emissions	in	the	area.	(Mann,	2016)	
	
	

POLICY	4:	INTEGRATE	GREEN	BUILDING	PRACTICES	IN	MUNICIPAL	FACILITIES.	

What	can	Woodlake	do?	The	city	can	promote	or	pass	policy	that	requires	green	building	design	to	be	
integrated	 into	 new	 municipal	 construction	 and	 renovations	 or	 retrofits	 of	 existing	 facilities.	
Additionally,	 the	city	can	divert	construction	waste	and	require	building	projects	 to	 recycle	or	 reuse	a	
minimum	 of	 50%	 unused	 or	 leftover	 building	 materials;	 incorporate	 materials	 and	 furnishings	 made	
from	recycle	content;	 require	all	new	building	 include	 lighting	systems	that	use	 less	energy	 than	state	
standards	 in	 place	 at	 the	 time	 of	 adoption;	 and	 require	 new	 buildings	 incorporate	 daylighting	
(skylights/windows).	The	city	can	also	create	an	ongoing	program	to	ensure	energy	efficiency	measures	
are	maintained	throughout	municipal	facilities.	
	
Green	Building	Example:	Ventura,	California.	In	2007,	the	city	adopted	a	Green	Initiative	and	that	same	
year,	 City	 Council	 adopted	 a	 green	 building	 resolution	 requiring	 all	 new	 municipal	 construction	 to	
incorporate	 green	 building	 practices	 and	 incentivized	 private	 developments	 that	 incorporated	 these	
practices.	 By	 2012,	 the	 city	 developed	 an	 Environmental	 Sustainability	 Strategy,	which	outlined	many	
completed	 green	 building	 projects	 and	 several	 new	 green	 building	 projects	 already	 approved	 for	
completion.	(City	of	Ventura,	2012).	
	

Resources:		

• www.ca-ilg.org/greenerbuildings	
• http://www.ca-ilg.org/find/results/green%20building		
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POLICY	5:	PROVIDE	PUBLIC	INFORMATION	AND	EDUCATION.	

What	 Can	Woodlake	 Do?	 	 Lead	 by	 example!	 The	 city	 can	 incorporate	 energy	 efficiency	 and	 green-
building	practices	into	taxpayer-funded	facilities	that	the	public	visits	frequently	is	a	highly	visible	way	to	
get	the	message	out.		Public	libraries	and	city	halls	are	perfect	examples	of	teaching	opportunities.	The	
city	can	work	with	the	private	sector	to	advance	energy	efficiency	in	local	businesses.	The	city	can	also	
provide	 ongoing	 trainings	 for	 its	 community	 to	 meet	 minimum	 requirements	 for	 Green	 Building	
Professional	Certification.	
	

Example:	West	Chester,	Pennsylvania.	 ”The	city	 council	unanimously	voted	 to	adopt	a	 resolution	 that	
requires	new	commercial	buildings	higher	than	45	feet	to	be	designed	to	achieve	the	ENERGY	STAR	and	
to	achieve	the	ENERGY	STAR	after	one	year	of	operation.”	(U.S.	Environmental	Protection	Agency,	2011)	
	
Resources:		

• https://www.sce.com/wps/portal/home/business/consulting-services/Energy-Education-
Centers	

• http://californiaseec.org/events/	
	
	

POLICY	 6:	 ADOPT	 PURCHASING	 PRACTICES	 THAT	 PROMOTE	 EMISSIONS	 REDUCTIONS	 THROUGH	

ENERGY	EFFICIENCY.	

What	can	Woodlake	do?	The	city	can	use	life-cycle	costs	analysis	to	determine	long-term	cost	benefits	
of	 energy	 efficient	 products.	 This	 will	 make	 energy	 efficient	 products	 competitive	 with	 conventional	
products.	
	
Example:	Alexandria,	Virginia.	“In	2008,	Alexandria,	Virginia,	adopted	an	eco-city	environmental	charter	
to	promote	energy	and	environmental	 initiatives	 through	 the	city.	To	help	 implement	activities	under	
this	charter,	 the	city	created	an	energy	committee.	Among	other	activities,	 the	Energy	Committee	has	
established	a	goal	of	reducing	energy	use	in	local	government	facilities	by	3	percent	per	square	foot	per	
year	through	2015,	for	a	total	reduction	of	20	percent	below	2007	levels.	To	ensure	that	this	goal	is	met,	
the	committee	resolved	to	take	several	energy	efficiency	actions,	including	using	life-cycle	cost	analysis	
to	ensure	that	the	 lifetime	costs	of	not	 implementing	energy	efficiency	projects	are	considered.”	 (U.S.	
Environmental	Protection	Agency,	2011)	
	

Resources:		

• www.energystar.gov/index.cfm?c=bulk_purchasing.bus_purchasing	
• www.sjgov.org/uploadedfiles/sjc/departments/gtp4/resources/green_purchasing_policy_sjc_20

08.pdf	
• http://www.ca-ilg.org/find/results/procurement%20practices		

	
	

POLICY	 7:	 REPLACE	 FLEET	 VEHICLES	WITH	 ALTERNATIVE–	 AND	 RENEWABLE–FUEL	 VEHICLES	WHERE	

FEASIBLE.	

What	 can	Woodlake	 do?	The	 city	 can	 continue	 purchasing	 alternative	 and	 renewable	 vehicles	 for	 its	
fleet	 and	 building	 CNG	 fueling	 stations	 and	 EV	 (electric	 vehicles)	 charging	 stations.	 The	 Air	 Pollution	
Control	District	(APCD)	often	funds	such	projects.	
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Example:	Tulare,	California.		The	City	operates	a	green	fleet	that	consists	of	48	light	vehicles,	including	
seven	police	vehicles	 that	use	E85	ethanol,	17	 refuse	vehicles,	36	buses	 that	use	 liquefied	natural	gas	
and	street	sweepers	and	other	light	vehicles	powered	by	CNG.	(City	of	Tulare,	2004)	
	
Example:	 Clovis,	 California.	 The	 City’s	 Police	 Department	 operates	 a	 fleet	 of	 five	 electric	motorcycles	
from	Zero	Motorcycles,	the	largest	electric	police	motorcycle	fleet	in	the	country.	They	were	purchased	
through	 a	 San	 Joaquin	 Valley	 Air	 District	 Public	 Benefit	 Grant	 and	 30	more	 Zero	Motorcycles	 will	 be	
dispersed	to	other	Valley	Police	Departments.	(Romero,	2014)	
Resources:		

• www.ca-ilg.org/efficient-transportation	
• http://www.ca-ilg.org/resource/evaluating-green-fleet-options	
• www.ca-ilg.org/fuelefficientfleets	
• http://valleyair.org/grants/chargeup.htm	
• http://valleyair.org/grants/pev.htm	
• http://valleyair.org/grants/wastehaulers.htm		

	
	

POLICY	8:	INCREASE	RECYCLING	AT	GOVERNMENT-MAINTAINED	FACILITIES.	

What	 can	Woodlake	do?	The	city	 can	 request	 volunteers	 to	 learn	 the	 region’s	 rules	 for	 recycling	and	
oversee	municipal	facility	recycling	in	each	department.		
	

Example:	San	Joaquin	County,	California.	In	2009	the	county	began	a	low-key	recruitment	campaign	to	
‘green’	 county	operations.	 	Using	 the	REACON	Green	 Sustainable	Business	program	as	 an	 assessment	
model	and	with	 the	support	of	 the	governing	board,	 the	county	 implemented	a	variety	of	 sustainable	
practices.	 	 Instructing	each	department	green	team	volunteer	to	achieve	as	close	to	‘green	nirvana’	as	
possible--to	do	the	best	they	could	with	the	building	and	resources	available	the	county	put	the	power	
in	the	hands	of	its	employees.	By	2011	the	county	saw	impressive	results:		30.25	percent	of	total	county	
office	 supplies	 purchased	 was	 made	 of	 recycled	 products;	 47,071	 pounds	 of	 electronic	 waste	 was	
recycled;	98,180	pounds	of	metal	was	recycled;	and	302	tons	of	confidential	documents	were	shredded	
and	 recycled,	 producing	 $50,439	 in	 revenue.	 The	 Green	 Committee	 Chair	 produces	 an	 Annual	 Green	
Report	to	document	successes	and	recognize	extraordinary	achievements.		(Louis,	2012)	
	

Resources:		
• www.greenteamsanjoaquin.com/recycling-energy-air-conservation.htm	
• http://www.ca-ilg.org/find/results/waste%20reduction		

	
	

POLICY	9:	PROTECT	LOCAL	RENEWABLE	RESOURCES.	

What	can	Woodlake	do?	 Identify	possible	sites	for	energy	production	using	 local	renewable	resources	
such	as	solar,	wind,	small	hydro,	biogas,	etc.	
	
Example:	 Riverside	 County,	 California.	 The	 Bureau	 of	 Land	Management	 has	 proposed	 "solar	 energy	
zones”	 intended	 to	 make	 some	 of	 the	 desert's	 most	 sensitive	 landscapes	 less	 desirable	 for	 solar	
prospecting	 by	 identifying	 "sweet	 spots"	 that	 have	 already	 passed	 environmental	 requirements	 and	
therefore	promise	expedited	permitting.	One	of	those	is	the	proposed	Riverside	East	solar	energy	zone	
consisting	of	202,896	acres	in	Riverside	County,	within	Chuckwalla	Valley,	the	southern	portion	of	Palen	
Valley,	and	the	California	Desert	Conservation	Area.	(Solar	Energy	Development	Programmatic	EIS)	
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Example:	 Lake	 County,	 California.	 	 In	 2008,	 the	 county	 adopted	 its	 General	 Plan,	 including	 the	
Geothermal	Resources	Element.		The	element	established	goals,	policies,	and	implementation	measures	
that	 the	 county	 will	 use	 in	 efforts	 pertaining	 to	 geothermal	 resources	 in	 the	 county.	 	 The	 county	
discourages	commercial	and	residential	development	 in	the	primary	geothermal	resource	areas	where	
there	 is	 a	 reasonable	 likelihood	 of	 geothermal	 development	 in	 the	 future.	 	 The	 county	 encourages	
cooperation	 between	 relevant	 local	 agencies	 to	 implement	 appropriate	 geothermal	 resource	
conservation	practices.		(Matrix	Design	Group,	Mintier	&	Associates,	2008)	
Resource:	www.ca-ilg.org/Renewable		
	
	

POLICY	10:	PROMOTE	RENEWABLE	ENERGY.	

What	 can	Woodlake	 do?	 Explore	 regional	 collaborations	 among	 local	 governments,	 special	 districts,	
nonprofits,	and	other	public	organizations	to	share	resources,	achieve	economies	of	scale,	and	develop	
renewable	energy	policies	and	programs	that	are	optimized	on	a	regional	scale.			
	
Example:	 San	 Joaquin	 Valley,	 California.	 “The	 Sustainable	 Energy	 Roadmap	 (SER)	 brings	 together	
municipal	governments,	 regional	planning	agencies,	community	stakeholders,	and	technical	experts	 to	
support	California’s	San	Joaquin	Valley	communities	as	they	pursue	smart	growth,	transportation,	land	
use,	 climate,	 and	 energy	 goals.”	 (National	 Association	 of	 Regional	 Councils,	 2013)	 The	 City	 of	 Visalia	
participated	in	the	program	as	a	“pilot	lead	municipality”	and,	through	the	program,	the	city	and	other	
participants	 receive	 several	 benefits	 including	 a	 stipend,	 a	 customized	 roadmap	 for	 clean	 energy	
programs	and	projects	as	well	as	other	 land	use	 items,	policy	adoption	assistance,	and	assistance	with	
connecting	businesses	and	workforce	development	agencies	to	these	projects.	(Optony,	2015)		

Resource:	http://my.cleanenergyroadmap.com/partner/sanjoaquinvalley		
	
	

POLICY	 11:	 PROVIDE	 INFORMATION,	 MARKETING,	 TRAINING,	 AND	 EDUCATION	 TO	 SUPPORT	

RENEWABLE	RESOURCE	USE.	

What	 can	Woodlake	do?	 Launch	programs	 that	 educate	 and	provide	 the	 community	with	 renewable	
energy	 and	 resources.	 The	 city	 can	 also	 provide	 a	 kiosk	 at	 City	 Hall	 displaying	 information	 about	
renewable	energy	as	well	as	include	links	or	resources	on	its	website	about	renewable	energy	use.		
	
Example:	 Santa	 Clara,	 California.	 “The	 Santa	 Clara	 Green	 Power	 program	 was	 formally	 launched	 to	
residents	and	businesses	of	Santa	Clara	in	November	of	2004….	Along	the	way	Santa	Clara	has	continued	
to	grow	its	commitment	to	renewable	energy	and	sustainability	by	pushing	to	raise	the	REC	content	mix	
of	 our	 product	 to	 be	 primarily	 generated	 from	 California	 resources	 and	 to	 include	 significantly	more	
solar	 generation.	 In	 2014	 the	 signature	 Santa	 Clara	 Green	 Power	 product	 available	 to	 Santa	 Clara	
residents	and	small	businesses	is	85%	California	Solar	and	15%	Western	Wind,	a	significant	leap	from	the	
97.5%	 wind,	 2.5%	 solar	 product	 that	 was	 originally	 launched	 to	 the	 community	 in	 2004.”	 	 (U.S.	
Environmental	Protection	Agency,	2011)	

Resource:		www.epa.gov/greenpower/green-power-communities/		
	
	

POLICY	12:	ADOPT	A	CITY–COOLING	ORDINANCE.	
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What	can	Woodlake	do?	Adopt	an	ordinance	that	will	 reduce	urban	heat	 island	 (UHI)	effect.	This	can	
include	a	cool	roof	policy	or	an	expansion	of	the	city’s	tree	canopy.	
	

Cool	Roof	Example:	Los	Angeles,	California.	In	December	2013,	Los	Angeles	became	the	first	major	U.S.	
City	to	pass	a	Cool	Roof	Ordinance,	a	building	code	that	requires	all	new	residential	construction,	as	well	
as	 refurbished	 residences,	 to	 install	 cool	 roofs.	 As	 the	 region	 continues	 to	 experience	 hotter	
temperatures	and	longer	droughts,	this	ordinance	will	help	mitigate	issues	exacerbated	by	Urban	Heat	
Island	effect.	(Phillips,	2013)	
	
Tree	Canopy	Example:	Louisville,	Kentucky.	The	City	plans	to	develop	a	city-wide	tree	canopy	by	2018.	
Trees	are	the	one	of	the	most	simple	and	effective	energy	efficiency	measures.	They	can	provide	heating	
and	insulation	needs	in	winter	months	and	cooling	and	shade	in	the	summer	to	naturally	decrease	any	
Urban	Heat	Island	effects.	Over	10,000	trees	have	been	planted	throughout	the	city,	creating	a	resilient	
urban	tree	canopy.	(Goal	16)	
	
Resources:	

• http://coolroofs.org/resources/los-angeles-green-building-code	
• https://louisvilleky.gov/sites/default/files/sustainability/pdf_files/louisvilleutcreport-

24march2015.pdf		
	

	

4.4	Tracking	

The	 city	 will	 use	 the	 EPA	 Portfolio	 Manager	 to	 track	 progress.	 	 The	 program	 allows	 for	 facility	
summaries,	as	well	as	tracking	energy	performance	in	the	following	ways:		

1. Under	the	‘General	Facility	Administration’	section	(located	on	the	‘Facility	Summary’	page)	
on	 Portfolio	 Manager	 the	 city	 can	 track	 improvements	 on	 energy	 saved	 and	 amount	
invested.			

2. Using	the	‘Track	Energy	Performance’	feature	the	city	can	input	not	only	current	and	future	
improvements,	but	past	improvements	too.			
	

While	 Portfolio	Manager	 cannot	 attribute	 a	 specific	 savings	 to	 specific	 dollar	 savings	 it	 can	 provide	 a	
general	overview,	which	can	help	determine	whether	or	not	an	investment	strategy	is	working.	
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CONCLUSIONS	
	
The	City	of	Woodlake	is	committed	to	their	role	as	an	energy	leader	in	the	San	Joaquin	Valley.		Through	
continued	 participation	 in	 the	 VIEW	 Partnership,	 the	 city	 will	 continue	 to	 pursue	 cost	 effective	 and	
impactful	measures	to	reduce	city	controlled	energy	use,	reduce	harmful	greenhouse	gas	emissions,	and	
save	 money	 in	 city	 operations.	 	 The	 city	 also	 pledges	 to	 continue	 proactively	 working	 with	 the	
development	 community	and	private	property	owners	 to	make	better	energy	efficient	 investments	 in	
the	built	environment.	
	
The	city	will	promote	municipal	efforts	to	reduce	energy	use,	and	will	share	with	the	community	their	
story	 of	 success.	 	 The	 city	 will	 provide	 educational	 and	 outreach	 opportunities	 through	 their	
involvement	 in	 the	 VIEW	 partnership	 to	 positively	 influence	 residents	 and	 businesses	 to	 follow	 their	
lead.			
	
The	 city	 is	 continually	 monitoring	 energy	 usage	 and	 looking	 for	 ways	 to	 establish	 additional	 energy	
efficiency	 projects.	 	 Through	 efforts	 like	 residential	 metering	 and	 SCADA	 system	 installation	 the	 city	
hopes	 to	 address	 the	water-energy	nexus	 and	produce	energy	 savings	 results	 through	 smarter	use	of	
water.		As	the	city	is	listed	highly	on	the	disadvantaged	cities	list,	they	may	work	with	groups	such	as	the	
United	States	Department	of	Agriculture,	Rural	Development	office	to	identify	funding	opportunities	to	
fund	and	promote	sustainability	throughout	the	community.		
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APPENDIX	A	
City	of	Woodlake	Highest	Users	
	
	

Top	Customer	
Name	 Service	Street	Address	 Service	City	Name	 Zip	 Annual	kWh	 Annual	Revenue	 Facility	Name	in	PM	

City	of	Woodlake	 811	S	Valencia	Blvd	 WOODLAKE	 93286	 612,560.4	 $63,701.21	 Well	-	811	S	Valencia	

City	of	Woodlake	 14780	Plant	311727	 WOODLAKE	 93286	 237,819.4	 $30,449.81	 Well	#10	

City	of	Woodlake	 40315	Plant	 WOODLAKE	 93286	 205,353.0	 $19,720.09	 Well	#12	

City	of	Woodlake	 36621	Plant	311827	Pmp	 WOODLAKE	 93286	 147,316.4	 $16,051.42	 Well	#11	

City	of	Woodlake	 350	N.	Valencia	Blvd	 WOODLAKE	 93286	 94,751.2	 $14,781.42	 City	Hall	

City	of	Woodlake	 Woodlake	 WOODLAKE	 93286	 93,246.0	 $32,643.90	 Lighting	-	Woodlake	

City	of	Woodlake	 19551	Plant	Pmp	 WOODLAKE	 93286	 63,251.8	 $8,670.41	 Well	#9	

City	of	Woodlake	 28147	Plant	Pmp	 WOODLAKE	 93286	 44,759.0	 $6,877.84	 Well	#8	

City	of	Woodlake	 208	E.	Naranjo	Blvd	 WOODLAKE	 93286	 27,762.1	 $4,523.93	 Fire	District	

City	of	Woodlake	 595	S.	Valencia	Blvd	 WOODLAKE	 93286	 26,852.9	 $4,275.00	 City	Yard	
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APPENDIX	B	
City	of	Woodlake	Energy	Accounts	
	
Building	ID	 Facility	Name	 Annual	Energy	Cost	

(US	Dollars	($))	
4506855	 Well	-	811	S	Valencia	 $63,701.21	
3201226	 Lighting	-	Woodlake	 $32,643.90	
3201272	 Well	#10	 $30,449.81	
3201289	 Well	#12	 $19,720.09	
3201274	 Well	#11	 $16,051.42	
3200626	 City	Hall	 $14,781.42	
3201293	 Well	#9	 $8,670.41	
3201285	 Well	#8	 $6,877.84	
3200687	 Fire	District	 $4,523.93	
3200676	 City	Yard	 $4,275.00	
3201309	 Willow	Court	Lift	Station	 $1,368.37	
3201303	 Woodlake	City	Park	 $1,315.64	
3201236	 Reservoir	Tank	 $1,126.51	
3201244	 Subdivision	Lighting	-	Sierra/Willow	 $1,094.43	
3201298	 Woodlake	Airport	 $1,040.56	
4506874	 Subdivision	Lighting	-	40034	Plant	 $1,027.49	
3201255	 Water	Pump	-	Plant	40069	 $992.44	
4506860	 Subdivision	Lighting	-	121	E	Lakeview	 $913.23	
3201203	 Manzanillo	Lift	Station	 $848.46	
4506868	 Subdivision	Lighting	-	195	N	Valencia	 $764.18	
3201254	 Wastewater	Treatment	Plant	 $605.60	
3201238	 Sewer	Lift	Station	-	403	S.	Acacia	Street	 $362.61	
3201242	 Subdivision	Lighting	-	40588	Plant	 $342.28	
3201240	 Storm	Drain	Lift	Station	-	Pine/Cajon	 $336.96	
3201207	 Subdivision	Lighting	-	610	E.	Naranjo	 $302.46	
3201243	 Subdivision	Lighting	-	618	Antelope	 $302.18	
3201205	 Subdivision	Lighting	-	497	Crestwood	 $285.06	
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APPENDIX	C	
City	of	Woodlake	General	Plan	Existing	Conditions	
	
Air	Quality	
	
Woodlake	has	a	moderate	climate	with	warm	summers	and	generally	mild	winters.	The	City	 is	 located	
within	 the	 San	 Joaquin	Valley	Air	Basin.	 The	 closest	 air	monitoring	 station	 is	 located	 in	Visalia,	where	
Ozone	 and	 PM-10	 (Particulate	 Matter-10	 microns	 or	 less)	 are	 measured.	 The	 San	 Joaquin	 Valley,	
including	 Woodlake,	 has	 failed	 to	 achieve	 state	 and	 federal	 standards	 for	 these	 pollutants	 and	 is	
therefore	designated	as	a	nonattainment	area.	There	are	several	factors	which	cause	this	to	occur.	They	
are:		

1. The	topography	of	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	as	a	basin	surrounded	by	mountains	has	the	effect	of	
trapping	stagnant	or	polluted	air.	

2. The	 local	 climate	 (abundant	 sunshine	 and	 high	 atmospheric	 pressure)	 is	 favorable	 for	 the	
formation	of	smog.	

3. The	 primary	 factor	 is	 the	 growth	 of	 population	 in	 the	 Valley.	 With	 more	 and	 more	 people	
moving	to	the	valley,	smog	is	produced	by	fossil	fuel	burning,	emissions	from	factories	and	other	
combustion	processes,	and	vehicles	miles	traveled.		

	
Mitigation	of	air	quality	problems	in	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	is	the	responsibility	of	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	
Air	 District.	 Measures	 that	 will	 reduce	 air	 quality	 problems	 include	 reducing	 vehicle	 miles	 traveled,	
driving	more	fuel	efficient	vehicles	and/or	lower	emission	vehicles,	and	reducing	agricultural	burning.	
	
Water	Resources	
	
Woodlake	 currently	obtains	 its	water	 from	underground	 supplies.	 The	aquifer	underlying	 the	City	 is	 a	
good	 supply	 of	 water	 although	 the	 relative	 shallowness	 of	 the	 water	 table	 can	 make	 the	 supply	
susceptible	to	surface	contaminants.	In	order	to	reduce	the	possibility	of	contamination,	the	city’s	well	
system	draws	water	from	240	to	400	feet	below	the	ground’s	surface	level.	
	
The	water	table	is	recharged	primarily	by	water	moving	downhill	from	the	watersheds	of	Sierra	Nevada	
streams.	 The	 St.	 Johns	 River,	 which	 forms	 the	 southern	 boundary	 of	 the	 Woodlake	 planning	 area,	
recharges	 the	aquifer	 from	which	Woodlake	pumps	 its	domestic	water.	Water	 for	 irrigation,	 stored	 in	
Bravo	 Lake	 and	 distributed	 by	Wutchumna	 Ditch,	 also	 assists	 with	 the	 recharge	 of	 the	 groundwater	
system.	Rainfall	in	the	Woodlake	area	provides	only	a	small	amount	of	groundwater	recharge.		
	
The	 City	 has	 four	 active	 wells	 along	 the	 St.	 Johns	 River.	 Water	 is	 pumped	 from	 these	 wells	 into	
Woodlake’s	distribution	system	that	 is	composed	of	6-inch,	8-inch,	10-inch,	15-inch	and	18-inch	water	
lines.	To	maintain	pressure	in	the	system,	water	is	stored	in	a	500,000	gallon	storage	tank	located	in	the	
northeast	quadrant	of	the	City.	The	City	is	in	the	process	of	replacing	this	tank	with	a	new	tank.		
	
From	time	to	time,	water	quality	has	become	a	problem	in	Woodlake.	The	water	quality	of	Woodlake’s	
domestic	 wells	 is	 regulated	 by	 the	 State	 Health	 Department.	 Over	 the	 years,	 Woodlake	 has	 had	 to	
abandoned	wells	due	to	high	concentrations	of	nitrates.	These	wells	have	been	taken	off	line.	To	date,	
Woodlake’s	existing	wells	meet	State	drinking	water	standards.	
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City of Woodlake 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM V-C  

April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the City of Woodlake’s Audited Basic Financial 

Statements and Single Audit Report on Federal Awards for the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The City of Woodlake undergoes an annual independent audit of its basic financial statements of 

its governmental activities, its business-type activities, each of its major funds, and its aggregate 

remaining fund information.  For Fiscal Year 2016/2017, the City of Woodlake contracted 

Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP to perform its City independent audit and Brown 

Armstrong was hired by the Tulare County Association of Governments to perform the City’s 

Measure R and TDA Audits. 

 

The audit is conducted with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that 

the audit is performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the City financial statements 

are free of material misstatement.  The audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The audit also includes 

assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as 

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  The audit will also consider the 

City’s internal controls over financial reporting and test its compliance with certain provisions of 

laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 

    

DISCUSSION: 

 

Staff has reviewed the independent auditor’s report for the year ended June 30, 2017, and concurs 

with the report.  The financial statements present fairly, in all material respects and there were no 

findings for the audit ending June 30, 2017.   

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

1. Staff recommends that Council approve the City of Woodlake’s Audited Basic Financial 

Statements and Single Audit Report on Federal Awards for the Year Ended June 30, 

2017.  The audit showed no material weaknesses and there were no current or old 

findings being carried over. 
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FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

1. Resolution: Approval of the City of Woodlake’s Audited Basic Financial Statements and 

Single Audit Report on Federal Awards for the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

2. Attachment 1: City of Woodlake’s Audited Basic Financial Statements and Single Audit 

Report on Federal Awards for the Year Ended June 30, 2017(under separate cover). 

 

3. Attachment 2: City of Woodlake Transportation Development Act Funds and Measure R 

Transportation Funds Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2017. 
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BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE’S         )   Resolution No.  

AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         )                           

AND SINGLE AUDIT REPORT ON FEDERAL          ) 

AWARDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017  ) 

 

Councilmember _______, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption.   Approve the 

City of Woodlake’s Audited Basic Financial Statements and Single Audit Report on Federal 

Awards for the Year Ended June 30, 2017.  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodlake undergoes an annual independent audit of its basic financial 

statements of its governmental activities, its business-type activities, each of its major funds, and its 

aggregate remaining fund information; and 

 

WHEREAS, for Fiscal Year 2016/2017 the City of Woodlake contracted Rogers, Anderson, Malody 

& Scott, LLP to perform its independent audit; and 

 

WHEREAS, for Fiscal Year 2016/2017 the Tulare County Association of Governments contracted 

Brown Armstrong to perform the City of Woodlake’s Transportation Development Funds and 

Measure R Transportation Funds independent audit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the audits are conducted with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to approve the attached 

City of Woodlake’s Audited Basic Financial Statements and Single Audit Report on Federal 

Awards for the Year Ended June 30, 2017.  

  

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember _______, and seconded by 

Councilmember _______, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on 

April 9, 2018. 

 

 AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:  

 

      _____________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Woodlake, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of City of Woodlake, California, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City of Wood lake's basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In  our  opinion,  the  financial  statements  referred  to  above  present  fairly,  in  all material  respects,  the 
respective  financial  position  of  the  governmental  activities,  the  business‐type  activities,  each  major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Woodlake, California, as of June 30, 
2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year  then  ended  in  accordance with  accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in  the United  States  of 
America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in  the  United  States  of  America  require  that  the  required 
supplementary  information,  as  listed  in  the  table  of  contents,  be  presented  to  supplement  the  basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers  it  to be an essential part of  financial 
reporting  for  placing  the  basic  financial  statements  in  an  appropriate  operational,  economic,  or 
historical  context.  We  have  applied  certain  limited  procedures  to  the  required  supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which  consisted  of  inquiries  of  management  about  the  methods  of  preparing  the  information  and 
comparing  the  information  for  consistency  with  management’s  responses  to  our  inquiries,  the  basic 
financial  statements,  and  other  knowledge  we  obtained  during  our  audit  of  the  basic  financial 
statements. We do not  express  an opinion or provide any  assurance on  the  information because  the 
limited  procedures  do  not  provide  us  with  sufficient  evidence  to  express  an  opinion  or  provide  any 
assurance. 
 
Management  has  omitted  management’s  discussion  and  analysis  accounting  principles  generally 
accepted  in  the  United  States  of  America  require  to  be  presented  to  supplement  the  basic  financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers  it  to be an essential part of  financial 
reporting  for  placing  the  basic  financial  statements  in  an  appropriate  operational,  economic,  or 
historical  context.  Our  opinion  on  the  basic  financial  statements  is  not  affected  by  this  missing 
information. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our  audit  was  conducted  for  the  purpose  of  forming  opinions  on  the  financial  statements  that 
collectively comprise the City of Woodlake, California’s basic financial statements. The combining fund 
financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements.  
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The combining fund financial statements is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relate  directly  to  the  underlying  accounting  and  other  records  used  to  prepare  the  basic  financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,  including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements  or  to  the  basic  financial  statements  themselves,  and  other  additional  procedures  in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the combining fund financial statements is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In  accordance  with Government  Auditing  Standards,  we  have  also  issued  our  report  dated March  8, 
2018, on our consideration of the City of Woodlake, California’s internal control over financial reporting 
and  on  our  tests  of  its  compliance  with  certain  provisions  of  laws,  regulations,  contracts,  and  grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of  internal  control over  financial  reporting and compliance and  the  results of  that  testing, and not  to 
provide  an  opinion  on  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  or  on  compliance.  That  report  is  an 
integral part of an audit performed  in accordance with Government Auditing Standards  in considering 
City of Woodlake, California’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
San Bernardino, California 
March 8, 2018 
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Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Unrestricted $      1,929,349 $      5,854,041  $      7,783,390 

Restricted - 324,670 324,670 

Receivables:

Accounts 82,300 278,485 360,785 

Taxes 33,094 - 33,094 

Intergovernmental 506,388 270,906 777,294 

Internal balances 101,017 (101,017) -

Loans receivable 9,751,031 - 9,751,031 

Intragovernmental receivable 45,472 - 45,472 

Land held for resale 168,923 - 168,923 

Capital assets:

Non-depreciable 1,857,157 5,279,486 7,136,643 

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 15,990,589 22,335,129 38,325,718 

Total assets 30,465,320 34,241,700 64,707,020 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pensions 559,791 262,810 822,601 

Unamortized loss on bonds - 51,062 51,062 

Total deferred outflows of resources 559,791 313,872 873,663 

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other accruals 294,498 413,623 708,121 

Interest payable - 188,125 188,125 

Unearned revenue - 2,300 2,300 

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 70,009 67,213 137,222 

Due in one year 100,000 311,224 411,224 

Due in more than one year 175,000 15,770,357 15,945,357 

Net pension liability 1,460,414 963,048 2,423,462 

Total liabilities 2,099,921 17,715,890 19,815,811 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pensions 120,099 64,048 184,147 

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 17,847,746 11,584,096 29,431,842 

Restricted for:

Special revenues 1,339,406 - 1,339,406 

Debt service - 324,670 324,670 

Capital projects 98,922 - 98,922 

Unrestricted 9,519,017 4,866,868 14,385,885 

Total net position  $    28,805,091  $    16,775,634  $    45,580,725 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Government

CITY OF WOODLAKE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2017
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Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

General Government 421,569$       33,406$         -$                        -$                        (388,163)$            (388,163)$          

Community development 201,773         9,505             -                          384,483              192,215               192,215             

Public safety 1,374,739      879,605         146,953              -                          (348,181)              (348,181)            

Public works 543,810         52,003           214,545              2,411,925           2,134,663            2,134,663          

Parks and recreation 115,426         -                     -                          -                          (115,426)              (115,426)            

Refuse services 634,953         699,917         -                          -                          64,964                 64,964               

Total governmental activities 3,292,270      1,674,436      361,498              2,796,408           1,540,072            1,540,072          

Water 791,414 930,491 -                          608,093 - 747,170 747,170 

Sewer 1,702,852 1,792,360 -                          137,186 - 226,694 226,694 

Airport 157,578 18,471 10,000 114,660 - (14,447) (14,447)

Transit 162,711 16,638 153,570 - - 7,497 7,497 

Total business-type activities 2,814,555 2,757,960 163,570 859,939 - 966,914 966,914 

Total  $    6,106,825  $   4,432,396  $            525,068  $         3,656,347             1,540,072                 966,914           2,506,986 

General revenues:

Property taxes 277,855 - 277,855

 Utility users tax 341,422 - 341,422

Sales tax 402,790 - 402,790

Franchise tax 15,135 - 15,135

Other taxes 13,205 - 13,205

Investment earnings 11,410 29,637 41,047

Rental Income - 43,504 43,504

Gain on sale of capital assets 29,303 - 29,303

Miscellaneous 257,496 - 257,496

Transfers 173,033 (173,033) -

Total general revenues and transfers 1,521,649 (99,892) 1,421,757

     Change in net assets 3,061,721 867,022 3,928,743

Net position, July 1 25,743,370          15,908,612           41,651,982        

Net position, June 30  28,805,091$        16,775,634$         45,580,725$      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Functions/Programs

Governmental activities:

Business-type Activities:

Changes in Net Position

CITY OF WOODLAKE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
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Other

Community Nonmajor Total

Development Governmental Governmental

General Fund Gas Tax Measure R Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and investments 912,791$        337,170$          179,451$   -$                   499,937$            1,929,349$          

Receivables:

Accounts 82,300            -                        -                 -                     -                         82,300                 

Taxes 32,697            -                        -                 -                     397                    33,094                 

Intergovernmental -                      -                        -                 37,124           469,264              506,388               

Interest -                      -                        -                 -                     -                         -                          

Land held for resale 168,923          -                        -                 -                     -                         168,923               

Due from other funds 101,017          85,212              86,543       -                     -                         272,772               

Loans receivable 58,116            9,692,915         -                 -                     -                         9,751,031            

Advances to other funds 45,472            -                        -                 -                     -                         45,472                 

Total assets 1,401,316$      10,115,297$     265,994$   37,124$         969,598$            12,789,329$        

LIABILITIES

Accounts payables and other accruals 209,483$        -$                      1,377$       5,424$           78,214$              294,498$             

Due to other funds -                      -                        -                 31,700           140,055              171,755               

Total liabilities 209,483          -                        1,377         37,124           218,269              466,253               

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred housing loans -                      9,692,915         -                 -                     -                         9,692,915            

Total deferred inflows of resources -                      9,692,915         -                 -                     -                         9,692,915            

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable fund balances:

   Land held for resale 168,923          -                        -                 -                     -                         168,923               

   Advances 45,472            -                        -                 -                     -                         45,472                 

Restricted for forfeiture 158,859          -                        -                 -                     -                         158,859               

Assigned fund balances:

   Special revenue funds -                      422,382            264,617     -                     652,407              1,339,406            

   Capital projects -                      -                        -                 -                     98,922                98,922                 

Unassigned, general fund 818,579          -                        -                 -                     -                         818,579               

Total fund balances 1,191,833       422,382            264,617     -                     751,329              2,630,161            

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and fund balances 1,401,316$      10,115,297$     265,994$   37,124$         969,598$            12,789,329$        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF WOODLAKE

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2017

Special Revenue
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Total fund balances-governmental funds 2,630,161$        

Amounts reported for governmental activities  in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources, and therefore are

not reported in the funds. 17,847,746        

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures, and therefore, are

deferred in the governmental funds. 9,692,915          

 

Deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources:

Deferred outflows of resources are not current assets of financial resources; and deferred inflows

of resources are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the 

governmental funds:

   Deferred pension outflows of resources 494,061             

   Deferred pension inflows of resources (54,369)             

Long-term liabilities were not due and payable in the current period.  Therefore, they were not reported

in the governmental fund balance sheet:

 

Net pension liability (1,460,414)        

Judgement payable (275,000)           

Compensated absences (70,009)             

   

Net position of governmental activities    28,805,091$      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

CITY OF WOODLAKE

7171



Other

Community Nonmajor Total

Development Governmental Governmental

General Fund Gas Tax Measure R Funds Funds

REVENUES

Property taxes 277,855$          -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                      277,855$          

Utility users tax 341,422           -                       -                     -                     -                        341,422           

Sales tax 402,790           -                       -                     -                     -                        402,790           

Other taxes 28,340             -                       -                     -                     -                        28,340             

Licenses and permits 123,089           -                       -                     -                     11,010               134,099           

Charges for services 787,368           -                       -                     -                     -                        787,368           

Intergovernmental revenues 709,487           -                       787,918         1,461,941      913,576             3,872,922         

Fines and forfeitures 28,448             -                       -                     -                     -                        28,448             

Repayment of loans -                       210,601           -                     -                     3,157                 213,758           

Use of money and property 9,217               1,288               285                -                     620                    11,410             

Miscellaneous revenues 257,496           -                       -                     -                     -                        257,496           

Total revenues 2,965,512         211,889           788,203         1,461,941      928,363             6,355,908         

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General government 437,336           -                       -                     -                     -                        437,336           

Community development -                       7,634               -                     -                     384,483             392,117           

Public safety 1,143,799         -                       -                     -                     99,600               1,243,399         

Public works 342,270           -                       -                     -                     38,581               380,851           

Parks and recreation 88,855             -                       -                     -                     -                        88,855             

Refuse services 654,240           -                       -                     -                     -                        654,240           

Capital outlay:

Community development 91,032             -                       -                     -                     -                        91,032             

Public works -                       20,568             483,996         1,461,941      74,658               2,041,163         

Parks and recreation 231,901           -                       -                     -                     -                        231,901           

Total expenditures 2,989,433         28,202             483,996         1,461,941      597,322             5,560,894         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (23,921)            183,687           304,207         -                     331,041             795,014           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 306,988           -                       -                     -                     199,343             506,331           

Transfers out -                       -                       (238,619)        -                     (94,679)              (333,298)          

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 29,303             -                       -                     -                     -                        29,303             

Total other financing sources and uses 336,291           -                       (238,619)        -                     104,664             202,336           

Net change in fund balances 312,370           183,687           65,588           -                     435,705             997,350           

Fund balances, July 1 879,463           238,695           199,029         -                     315,624             1,632,811         

Fund balances, June 30 1,191,833$       422,382$         264,617$       -$                   751,329$           2,630,161$       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF WOODLAKE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Special Revenue
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Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 997,350$           

Amounts reported for governmental activities  in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those

assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  This is the amount of

capital assets recorded. 2,393,424          

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the government-wide statement of changes in net assets, but

they do not require the use of current financial resources.  Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as 

expenditures in governmental funds. (303,569)           

Community loans are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures and are not in the statement of activities. 

This is the amount of community loans given. 167,726             

This is the amount of community loans deemed uncollectible. (3,948)               

 

Revenues in the governmental funds that were recognized as revenue in the previous periods in the statement of

activities.  This is the amount of loan payments and adjustments. (204,253)           

Compensated absences expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial

resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 19,629              

Certain expenses in the statement of activities are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting for special items 

when the amount is determinable and owed by the government. (275,000)           

Certain pension expenses in the statement of activities are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting in 

accordance with GASB Statement No. 68.

   Deferred outflows 378,327             

   Deferred inflows 187,050             

   Net pension liabilities (295,015)           

   

Change in net position - governmental activities    3,061,721$        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF WOODLAKE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL
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Airport

Water Sewer Fund TDA Transit Total

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and investments  754,838$        5,099,203$      -$                   -$                  5,854,041$     

Receivables, net:

Accounts 99,540            176,775          2,170             -                    278,485          

Intergovernmental -                      -                      30,336           240,570        270,906          

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash 149,670          175,000          -                     -                    324,670          

Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 4,372,067       832,419          -                     75,000          5,279,486       

Depreciable, net 2,631,939       18,880,642      42,195           780,353        22,335,129     

Total assets 8,008,054       25,164,039      74,701           1,095,923     34,342,717     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pensions 101,895          140,254          -                     20,661          262,810          

Unamortized loss on bonds 16,000            35,062            -                     -                    51,062            

Total deferred outflows of resources 117,895          175,316          -                     20,661          313,872          

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 260,276          44,108            128                4,703            309,215          

Utility deposits 44,436            59,972            -                     -                    104,408          

Interest payable 53,967            134,158          -                     -                    188,125          

Due to other funds -                      -                      84,409           16,608          101,017          

Unearned revenue -                      -                      2,300             -                    2,300              

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 25,253            29,510            -                     12,450          67,213            

Due in one year 50,500            260,724          -                     -                    311,224          

Due in more than one year 4,089,161       11,681,196      -                     -                    15,770,357     

Net pension liability 373,388          513,951          -                     75,709          963,048          

Total liabilities 4,896,981       12,723,619      86,837           109,470        17,816,907     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pensions 24,832            34,181            -                     5,035            64,048            

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 2,880,345       7,806,203       42,195           855,353        11,584,096     

Restricted for debt service 149,670          175,000          -                     -                    324,670          

Unrestricted 174,121          4,600,352       (54,331)          146,726        4,866,868       

Total net position (deficit) 3,204,136$      12,581,555$    (12,136)$        1,002,079$   16,775,634$   

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF WOODLAKE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2017

Nonmajor

10174



Airport

Water Sewer Fund TDA Transit Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 920,486$             1,769,859$          18,471$          16,638$           2,725,454$       

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Services 359,620               491,054               -                      72,340             923,014            

Contractual services 46,786                 167,525               127,635          7,429               349,375            

Repairs and maintenance 11,470                 13,099                 -                      13,013             37,582              

Utilities 71,010                 67,179                 1,199              938                  140,326            

Other services and supplies 68,425                 120,882               26,400            5,764               221,471            

Amortization 500                      1,063                  -                      -                       1,563                

Depreciation 116,051               559,737               2,344              63,227             741,359            

Total operating expenses 673,862               1,420,539            157,578          162,711           2,414,690         

Operating income (loss) 246,624               349,320               (139,107)         (146,073)          310,764            

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income 5,622                   23,812                 -                      203                  29,637              

Rental income -                          -                          43,504            -                       43,504              

Impact fees 10,005                 22,501                 -                      -                       32,506              

Revenue from other agencies 608,093               137,186               124,660          153,570           1,023,509         

Interest expense (117,552)              (282,313)             -                      -                       (399,865)           

Total nonoperating revenues 506,168               (98,814)               168,164          153,773           729,291            

Income before transfers 752,792               250,506               29,057            7,700               1,040,055         

Transfers out (58,370)                (91,999)               -                      (22,664)            (173,033)           

Change in net position 694,422               158,507               29,057            (14,964)            867,022            

Net position (deficit), July 1 2,509,714            12,423,048          (41,193)           1,017,043         15,908,612       

Net position (deficit), June 30  3,204,136$          12,581,555$         (12,136)$         1,002,079$        16,775,634$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF WOODLAKE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Nonmajor
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Airport

Water Sewer Fund TDA Transit Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers 909,139$              1,788,459$       18,386$        16,638$            2,732,622$   

Cash receipts (payments), vendors for goods or services (77,377)               (369,966)          (155,236)      (29,780)            (632,359)       

Cash receipts (payments), employees for, services

including withholding of taxes and other items (365,120)             (478,014)          -                   (85,970)            (929,104)       

Net cash provided by  (used) operating activities 466,642               940,479           (136,850)      (99,112)            1,171,159     

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Revenue from other agencies 608,093               137,186           94,324         184,618           1,024,221     

Transfers in (out) (58,370)               (91,999)            -                   (22,664)            (173,033)       

Due to (from) -                          1,189,286        (233)             (63,045)            1,126,008     

Proceeds from operating lease -                          -                      42,759         -                       42,759          

Net cash provided by noncapital financing 549,723               1,234,473        136,850       98,909             2,019,955     

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal paid on capital debt service 19,442                 (254,104)          -                   -                       (234,662)       

Interest paid on capital debt service (97,702)               (286,216)          -                   -                       (383,918)       

Impact fees 10,005                 22,501             -                   -                       32,506          

Acquire, construct or improve capital assets (1,759,152)          (475,428)          -                   -                       (2,234,580)    

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities (1,827,407)          (993,247)          -                   -                       (2,820,654)    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Gain (loss) on investments -                          -                      -                   -                       -                    

Investment earnings 5,622                  23,812             -                   203                  29,637          

Net cash provided by investing activities 5,622                  23,812             -                   203                  29,637          

Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (805,420)             1,205,517        -                   -                       400,097        

Cash and Investments, July 1, 2016 1,709,928            4,068,686        -                   -                       5,778,614     

Cash and investments, June 30, 2017 904,508$              5,274,203$       -$                  -$                      6,178,711$   

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 246,624$             349,320$         (139,107)$    (146,073)$         310,764$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities:

    Depreciation & amortization 116,551               560,800           2,344           63,227             742,922        

Changes in assets, deferred outflows/inflows and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (14,866)               11,953             (85)               -                       (2,998)           

(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows (68,181)               (95,462)            -                   (12,440)            (176,083)       

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 120,314               (1,281)              (2)                 (2,636)              116,395        

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows (25,910)               (31,634)            -                   (7,338)              (64,882)         

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 545                     (3,718)              -                   19                    (3,154)           

Increase (decrease) in utility deposits 3,519                  6,647               -                   -                       10,166          

Increase (decrease) in net pension liabilities 88,046                 143,854           -                   6,129               238,029        

Net cash provided (used)  by operating activities 466,642$              940,479$          (136,850)$     (99,112)$           1,171,159$   

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF WOODLAKE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Nonmajor
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Woodlake

Private-purpose Fire Protection

Trust Fund District

ASSETS

Cash and investments 224,678$              203,880$             

Accounts receivable 39,422                  640                      

Land held for resale -                            -                           

Capital assets:

Land 605,409                -                           

Improvements other than land 855,968                -                           

Less accumulated depreciation (205,451)               -                           

Total Assets 1,520,026           204,520$            

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pensions 1,852                    

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 45                         50,354$               

Due to external investment pool participants -                            154,166               

Intergovernmental payable 45,472                  -                           

Interest payable 6,977                    -                           

Bond payable 338,300                -                           

Net pension liability 6,784                    -                           

Total Liabilities 397,578              204,520$            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pensions 451                       

NET POSITION

Net position held in trust 1,123,849$          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF WOODLAKE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND

JUNE 30, 2017

13177



Private-purpose

Trust Fund

ADDITIONS

Contributions - Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 114,425$           

Interest revenue 646                    

Total Additions 115,071             

DEDUCTIONS

Administrative expenses 13,155               

Loss on sale of capital assets 45,114               

Depreciation expense 21,399               

Debt redemption, interest 13,954               

Total Deductions 93,622               

Change in net position 21,449               

Net position held in trust - beginning 1,102,400          

Net position held in trust - ending 1,123,849$       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF WOODLAKE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

A. Description of the Reporting Entity 

 

The  City  of Woodlake  (the  City)  was  incorporated  in  1941  under  the  general  laws  of  the  State  of 

California. The City operates under a Council‐Manager form of government and provides the following 

services: general administrative services, community development, public safety (police), public works, 

parks, refuse, water, sewer, and transit. 

 

The  accompanying  basic  financial  statements  include  the  financial  activities  of  the  City,  the  primary 

government.    Financial  information  for  the  City  is  accounted  for  in  the  accompanying  financial 

statements  in  accordance with principles defining  the  governmental  reporting  entity  adopted by  the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  The City Council members serve as the governing board of 

the City.  

 

The  Redevelopment Agency  of  the  City  of Woodlake  (the  Agency) was  established March  9,  1993, 

pursuant  to  the  State  of  California  Health  and  Safety  Code,  Section  33000,  entitled  "Community 

Redevelopment  Law"  and  on November  7,  1995,  the  City  Council  became  the  governing  board.  The 

Agency was formed for the purpose of preparing and carrying out plans for improvement, rehabilitation 

and  redevelopment of  the blighted areas within  the  territorial  limits of  the City.   Under Assembly Bill 

1X26, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Woodlake was dissolved and all its assets, liabilities and 

obligations were transferred to the Successor Agency on February 1, 2012. 

 

The Successor Agency of the City of Woodlake  (Successor Agency) was established  January 12, 2012, 

and  elected  to  serve  as  the  Successor Agency.    It  is  responsible  for winding  down  the  affairs of  the 

redevelopment  agency  including  disposing  of  its  assets.      The  Successor Agency  operates  under  the 

control  of  an  Oversight  Board,  which  serves  in  its  fiduciary  capacity  and  has  authority  over  the 

operations and the timely dissolution of the former redevelopment agency. 

 

The Woodlake  Housing  Fund  was  formed  on  February  1,  2012,  it  assumed  all  housing  assets  and 

functions  previously  performed  by  the  redevelopment  agency,  including  all  rights,  powers,  assets, 

liabilities, duties, and obligations associated with  the housing activities of  the  former  redevelopment 

agency. 

 

The Woodlake Public Financing Authority  (the Authority) was established as a  joint powers authority 

between the City and the Agency on August 27, 2007, pursuant to Article 1 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of 

Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California in order that such Authority may exercise the 

powers authorized under  the Marks‐Roes  Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985  (Government Code Section 

6584 et seq.) and, in addition, exercise such powers in connection with future financing undertaken by 

the City or the Agency.  
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

The  funds and related debt activity associated with the Authority have been  included  in the business‐

type activities of the Water Fund in the financial statements because its purpose is to finance the water 

system  improvement project  to be owned by  the City and other  future enterprise  fund  improvement 

projects to be owned by the City. 

 

The  financial  statements  of  the  City  have  been  prepared  in  conformity  with  accounting  principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The Governmental 

Accounting  Standards Board  is  the  accepted  standard  setting body  for  governmental  accounting  and 

financial reporting principles. 

 

B. Basis of Accounting / Measurement Focus 

 

The accounts of  the City are organized on  the basis of  funds, each of which  is considered a  separate 

accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self‐balancing 

accounts  that  comprise  its assets,  liabilities,  fund equity,  revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as 

appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon 

the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 

 

Government‐Wide Financial Statements 

The City government‐wide  financial  statements  include a  statement of net assets and a  statement of 

activities  and  changes  in  net  assets.  These  statements  present  summaries  of  governmental  and 

business‐type activities  for the City accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary activities of the City are 

not included in these statements. 

 

These statements are presented on an economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 

accounting.  Accordingly,  all  the  City's  assets  and  liabilities,  including  capital  assets,  as  well  as 

infrastructure  assets,  and  long‐term  liabilities,  are  included  in  the  accompanying  statement  of  net 

assets. The statement of activities presents changes in net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 

revenues are recognized  in  the period  in which  they are earned while expenses are recognized  in  the 

period in which the liability is incurred. The types of transactions reported as program revenues for the 

city are reported in three categories: 1) charges for services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 

3) capital grants and contributions. 

 

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34  in regards to  interfund 

activities,  payables  and  receivables.  All  internal  balances  in  the  statement  of  net  assets  have  been 

eliminated. In the statement of activities, interfund transactions have been eliminated; however, those 

transactions between governmental and business‐type activities have not been eliminated. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

The  City  applies  all  applicable  GASB  pronouncements  (including  all  NCGA  Statements  and 

Interpretations  currently  in  effect)  as  well  as  the  following  pronouncements  issued  on  or  before 

November 30, 1989, unless  those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: 

Financial  Accounting  Standards  Board  (FASB)  Statements  and  Interpretations,  Accounting  Principles 

Board  (APB)  Opinions,  and  Accounting  Research  Bulletins  (ARB)  of  the  Committee  on  Accounting 

Procedure. In addition, the City applies all applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations  issued after 

November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements to its business‐

type activities. 

 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

Governmental  fund  financial  statements  include  a  balance  sheet  and  a  statement  of  revenues, 

expenditures  and  changes  in  fund  balances  for  all major  governmental  funds  and  non‐major  funds 

aggregated. 

 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

 

The  General  Fund  is  the  general  operating  fund  of  the  City.  It  is  used  to  account  for  all  financial 

resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 

The  Community  Development  Fund  is  used  to  account  for  the  CDBG  and  HOME  loan  repayment 

revenue and program income money. 

 

The Gas Tax Fund is used for the accounting of revenues collected through an excise tax on the sale of 

fuel that is intended for transportation.  The fuel tax receipts are dedicated for transportation projects.   

The tax is being used to leverage current and future downtown transportation projects and assist in the 

maintenance of our current transportation infrastructure. 

 

The Measure R Fund is used for the accounting of revenues collected through Measure R and other local 

transportation funding sources. The revenues from the fund are used to fund downtown, transportation 

and mitigation projects. Measure R is a local sales tax for transportation projects. 

 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

 

All governmental  funds are accounted  for on a  spending or  current  financial  resources measurement 

focus  and  the  modified  accrual  basis  of  accounting.  Accordingly,  only  current  assets  and  current 

liabilities are  included on the balance sheets. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes  in 

fund balances presents  increases  (revenues and other  financing sources) and decreases  (expenditures 

and other financing uses) in net current assets. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

Under  the modified accrual basis of accounting,  revenues are  recognized  in  the accounting period  in 

which  they  become  both measurable  and  available  to  finance  expenditures  of  the  current  period. 

Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash during the year or within 60 days after year‐

end. The primary revenue sources, which have been  treated as susceptible  to accrual by  the City, are 

property tax, sales tax,  intergovernmental revenues and other taxes. Expenditures are recorded  in the 

accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred. 

 

Enterprise Fund Financial Statements 

Enterprise  fund  financial  statements  include  a  statement  of  net  position,  a  statement  of  revenues, 

expenses and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows for each major enterprise fund and 

non‐major funds aggregated. 

 

The City reports the following major enterprise fund types: 

 

The Water Fund accounts for financial activity of the water utility system. 

 

The Sewer Fund  is used  to account  for  the  financial activity of  the sewage collection and wastewater 

treatment utility system. 

 

Enterprise  funds are accounted  for using  the economic resources measurement  focus and  the accrual 

basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or non‐current) are included 

on the statement of net assets. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets presents 

increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 

revenues are recognized  in  the period  in which  they are earned while expenses are recognized  in  the 

period in which the liability is incurred. 

 

Operating  revenues  in  the enterprise  funds are  those  revenues  that are generated  from  the primary 

operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non‐operating revenues. Operating expenses 

are  those  expenses  that  are  essential  to  the primary operations of  the  fund. All other  expenses  are 

reported as non‐operating expenses. 

 

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 

The City's fiduciary funds represent: 

 

An agency fund, which is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of 

results of operations, and a private purpose trust fund, which is used to record the assets, liabilities and 

activities of the Redevelopment Successor Agency.   
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

The financial activities of these funds are excluded from the Government‐wide financial statements, but 

are presented in separate Fiduciary Fund financial statements. 

 

The City reports the following agency and special purpose trust funds: 

 

The Woodlake Fire Protection District Agency Fund accounts  for  receipts and expenditures made on 

behalf of the Woodlake Fire District.   

 

The  Successor  Agency  Fund  is  responsible  for  the  wind  down  of  the  affairs  of  the  dissolved 

Redevelopment Agency of the City of Woodlake.   

 

Reconciliation of the fund financial statements to the government‐wide financial statements is provided 

to explain the differences created by the integrated approach of GASB Statement No. 34. 

 

C. Cash and Investments 

 

Under the City's cash management program, cash in excess of operating requirements from all funds is 

pooled  with  the  purpose  of maximizing  interest  through  investment  activities,  and  is  deposited  in 

savings accounts or invested in bank certificates of deposit, bank money market accounts and the State 

of California Local Agency  Investment Fund  (LAIF).  Interest  income on pooled  investments  is allocated 

on the end of month balance  in each fund  included  in the pools. Information regarding the amount of 

dollars invested in derivatives, if any, with LAIF was not available. 

 

Fair Value Measurement 

As defined  in GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, fair value  is the price 

that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a  liability  in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date.   The City uses valuation techniques that ae appropriate 

under  the  circumstances and  for which  sufficient data are available  to measure  fair value.   Valuation 

techniques maximize  the  use  of  relevant  observable  inputs  and minimize  the  use  of  unobservable 

inputs. 

 

GASB Statement No. 72 establishes a hierarchy of  inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair 

value.  That hierarchy has three levels: 

 

Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 – Observable inputs, other than Level 1 prices, for asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; 

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the application of valuation technique applied to the City’s financial 

statements has been consistent. 

 

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

For purposes of  the Statement of Cash Flows,  the City considered all highly  liquid  investments with a 

maturity of three months or  less when purchased  to be cash equivalents. All cash and  investments of 

the enterprise fund types are pooled with the City's pooled cash and investments. 

 

E. Use of Estimates 

 

The preparation of financial statements  in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted  in 

the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 

reported amounts of assets and  liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and  liabilities at the date 

of  the  financial  statements  and  the  reported  amounts  of  revenues  and  expenditures  during  the 

reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 

F. Receivables and Payables 

 

Activity between funds that are representative of  lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 

end of  the  fiscal year are  referred  to as either  "due  to/from other  funds"  (i.e.  the  current portion of 

interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e. the non‐current portion of interfund loans). 

 

Proprietary fund receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Utility customers 

are billed monthly. The estimated value of services provided, but unbilled at year‐end has been included 

in the accompanying financial statements. 

 

Property  taxes  are  assessed,  collected  and  allocated  by  Tulare  County  throughout  the  fiscal  year 

according to the following property tax calendar. 

 

Lien Date  January 1st          

Levy Date  July 1st to June 30th          

Due Dates  November 1st  1st installment  February 1st  2nd installment 

Delinquent Dates  December 10th  1st installment  April 10th  2nd installment 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

Revenue  from  taxpayer‐assessed  taxes  (sales  and  use,  business  license,  transient  occupancy,  utility 

users, gas, and franchise fees) are accrued  in the governmental funds when they are both measurable 

and available. The City considers these revenues available  if they are received during the period when 

settlement  of  prior  fiscal  year  accounts  payable  occurs. Historically,  the majority  of  these  taxes  are 

received within 60 days of the fiscal year end.  

 

Grant  and  entitlement  revenues  are  recorded  as  receivables  in  the  funds  when  all  eligibility 

requirements have been met. The corresponding governmental fund revenues are recorded when they 

become  available, with  the  differences  recorded  as  deferred  revenue.  Enterprise  fund  revenues  are 

recorded as non‐operating  revenues when  the  receivables are  recorded. Some grant and entitlement 

revenues are not susceptible to accrual,  in which case the corresponding revenues are recorded when 

received.  

 

G. Capital Assets 

 

The City's  assets  are  capitalized  at historical  cost or estimated historical  cost. City policy has  set  the 

capitalization  threshold  for  reporting  capital  assets  at  $5,000.    The City has  chosen not  to  capitalize 

infrastructure  in  place  prior  to  the  adoption  of GASB  34. Gifts  or  contributions  of  capital  assets  are 

recorded at acquisition value when received.  

 

Depreciation is recorded on a straight‐line basis over the useful lives of the assets as follows: 

 

Buildings and improvements  20‐50 years 

Utility systems  20‐50 years 

Equipment and vehicles    5‐10 years 

Infrastructure        40 years 

 

In  June 1999,  the Governmental Accounting  Standards Board  (GASB)  issued  Statement No. 34 which 

requires the inclusion of infrastructure capital assets in local governments' basic financial statements. In 

accordance with Statement No. 34, the City has  included the value of all  infrastructure acquired since 

the adoption of this statement. 

 

The  City  defines  infrastructure  as  capital  assets  that  are  stationery  and  have  expected  useful  lives 

significantly in excess of most capital assets. The assets include the street system, water purification and 

distribution system, sewer collection and treatment system, parks and recreation improvements, storm 

water  conveyance  system,  and  buildings  combined  with  the  site  amenities  such  as  parking  and 

landscaped areas used by the City in the conduct of its business. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

H. Risk Management 

 

The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement which 

establishes  the  Central  San  Joaquin  Valley  Risk Management  Authority  (CSJVRMA).  The  relationship 

between the City and CSJVRMA  is such that CSJVRMA  is not a component unit of the City for financial 

reporting purposes. 

 

I. Compensated Absences Payable 

 

Under certain circumstances and according to negotiated  labor agreements, employees of the City are 

allowed to accumulate annual leave. This amount is included as a liability in the government‐ wide and 

proprietary fund financial statements. 

 

J. Long‐Term Debt 

 

In  the  government‐wide  and  enterprise  fund  statements,  long‐term  debt  and  other  long‐term 

obligations are reported as liabilities. Issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the loan. 

Issuance costs are reported as other assets and amortized over the term of the related debt, which is 40 

years. The United States Department of Agriculture obligation commenced July 1, 2009, and the United 

States Department of Agriculture, Series A and B commenced November 18, 2010. Amortization for the 

fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 was $1,563. 

 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 

well as costs of issuance, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 

financing sources. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 

reported as debt service expenditures. 

 

K. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

 

In additions to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 

deferred  outflows  of  resources.    This  separate  financial  statement  element,  deferred  outflow  of 

resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 

recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  

 

In additions to liabilities, this statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 

deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 

represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 

as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.   
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June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

The City has only one type of item, which arises only a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies 

for  reporting  in  this  category.    Accordingly,  the  item,  unavailable  revenue,  is  reported  only  in  the 

governmental  funds balance sheet.   The governmental  funds  report unavailable  revenue  from  federal 

and state grants, and from the housing loan principal.  These amounts are deferred and recognized as an 

inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 

 

L. Classification of Net Position and Fund Balances 

 

The government‐wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation.  Net 

position are categorized as invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted and unrestricted. 

 

Net  investment  in  capital  assets–  This  category  groups  all  capital  assets  into  one  component  of  net 

position.   Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the 

acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.   

 

Restricted  net  position‐  This  category  presents  external  restrictions  imposed  by  creditors,  grantors, 

contributors  or  laws  or  regulation  of  other  governments  and  restrictions  imposed  by  law  through 

constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.   

 

Unrestricted net position‐ This category represents net position of the City, not restricted for project or 

other purpose. 

When  an  expense  is  incurred  for purposes  for which both  restricted  and unrestricted net  assets  are 

available, the City's policy is to apply restricted net assets first. 

 

The City  implemented GASB No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, 

in  fiscal  year  2011.  The  objective  of  the  statement  is  to  enhance  the  usefulness  of  fund  balance 

information by provided clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and 

by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. 

 

As prescribed by GASB  Statement No. 54,  governmental  funds  report  fund balances  in  classifications 

based primarily on the extent to which the City  is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes 

for which amounts  in  the  respective governmental  funds can be spent. The classifications used  in  the 

governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 

 

Nonspendable  fund  balance‐  includes  amounts  that  are  (a)  not  in  spendable  form  or  (b)  legally  or 

contractually required to be maintained intact. 
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Restricted fund balance‐ includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the 

resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of  

other  government  or  (b)  imposed  by  law  through  constitutional  provisions  or  enabling  legislation. 

Restrictions may effectively be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers. 

 

Committed  fund  balance‐  includes  amounts  that  can  only  be  used  for  specific  purposes  pursuant  to 

constraints  imposed by  formal action of the City Council and Management. These amounts cannot be 

used for any other purpose unless the City Council and Management removes or changes the specified 

use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were 

initially  committed. This  classification also  includes  contractual obligations  to  the extent  that existing 

resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.  

 
Assigned  fund balance  ‐  includes  amounts  that  are  constrained by  the City's  intent  to be used  for  a 
specific  purpose,  but  are  neither  restricted  nor  committed.  This  intent  is  expressed  by  (a)  the  City 
Council  and  Management  or  (b)  an  appointed  body  or  official  to  which  the  City  Council  and 
Management has delegated the authority to assign, modify, or rescind amounts to be used for specific 
purposes. Assigned amounts also  include all residual amounts  in governmental funds  (except negative 
amounts) that are not classified as nonspendable, restricted, or committed. 
 
Unassigned fund balance ‐ this classification includes all residual fund balances for the General Fund that 
has  not  been  assigned  to  other  funds,  and  that  has  not  been  restricted,  committed  or  assigned  to 
specific purposes within the General Fund. The unassigned classification also includes negative residual 
fund balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of assigned fund 
balance amounts. 
 
In circumstance when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple 
fund  balance  classifications,  it  is  the  City's  policy  to  use  restricted  resources  first,  followed  by 
committed,  assigned  and  unassigned.  However,  the  City  reserves  the  right  to  selectively  spend 
unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds. 
 

M. Compliance and Accountability 

 

The Airport Enterprise fund had a deficit net position balance of $12,136 as of June 30, 2017. The City 

made some unexpected repairs during the previous years, and expects to replenish the net position with 

future income generated from the airport. 

 

The General Fund had an operational deficit that  is due to cost allocations made during the budgeting 

process. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

N. Pension Plan 

 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related 

to  pensions,  and  pension  expense,  information  about  the  fiduciary  net  position  and  additions 

to/deductions  from  the  fiduciary  net  position  have  been  determined  on  the  same  basis  as  they  are 

reported  by  the  CalPERS  Financial Office.    For  this  purpose,  benefit  payments  (including  refunds  of 

employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit 

terms.    Investments  are  reported  at  fair  value.    CalPERS  audited  financial  statements  are  publicly 

available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website. 

 

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certified 

defined timeframes.  For this report, the following timeframes are used. 

 

  Valuation Date (VD)        June 30, 2015 

  Measurement Date (MD)      June 30, 2016 

  Measurement Period (MP)      July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 

 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 

The  investment  policy  of  the  City  is  consistent  with  guidelines  set  forth  under  State  of  California 

Government Code Section 53601 and serves to maximize  investment  income consistent with safe and 

prudent  investment practices. All  surplus  funds are managed by  the City Administrator  in compliance 

with  the  Statement  of  Investment  Policy  adopted  by  the  City  Council  which  delegates  to  the  City 

Administrator the authority to invest City funds and to deposit securities. 

 

The City  follows  the practice of pooling cash and  investments of all  funds.  Interest  income earned on 

pooled cash and  investments  is allocated monthly  to  the various  funds based on  the month‐end cash 

and investment balances. 

 

At June 30, 2017, cash, cash equivalents and investments consisted of the following: 

Cash and cash equivalents 3,724,512$  

Investments 4,812,106     

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 8,536,618$  
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

 

Cash Deposits 

The City maintains a cash  investment pool that  is available for all funds. Each fund type balance  in the 

pool  is reflected on the statement of net assets as cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amount of 

the City's cash deposits was $3,724,512 at  June 30, 2017. The general bank balance at  June 30, 2017, 

was $3,822,350, which was fully covered by federal depository insurance limits. 

 

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and  loan associations to secure 

the City's cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states  that collateral pledged  in 

this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those of a 

general  creditor.  Thus,  collateral  for  cash  deposits  is  considered  to  be  held  in  the  City's  name.  The 

market value of the pledged securities must equal at least 110 percent of a City's deposits. California law 

also  allows  financial  institutions  to  secure  City  deposits  by  pledging  first  trust  deed mortgage  notes 

having a value of 150 percent of a City's total deposits. 

 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

 

The  City  is  a  voluntary  participant  in  the  Local  Agency  Investment  Fund  (LAIF)  that  is  regulated  by 

California  Government  Code  Section  16429  under  the  oversight  of  the  Treasurer  of  the  State  of 

California. The fair value of the City's investments in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial 

statements at amounts based upon the City's pro‐rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the 

entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). These funds are carried at cost 

which approximates fair value. As of June 30, 2017, the balance is $1,975,674. The balance available for 

withdrawals is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized 

cost basis.    For withdrawals over $10,000,000  LAIF  requires at  least 24‐hour notice.   Also,  there  is  a 

$5,000 minimum and a limit of 15 transactions per month. 

 

Authorized Investments 

 

Under provision of the City's investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of the California 

Government Code, the City may invest in the following types of investments: 

 

Securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies  Local agency investment fund deposits 

Certificates of deposit (or time deposits) placed       (state pool) 

     with commercial banks and/or savings and  Passbook savings account demand deposits 

     loan companies  Small business administration loans 

Bankers' acceptances   

 

The City’s investment activities are within state statutes and the City’s investment policy. 
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Investment Fair Value Measurements 

 

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy, established by generally 

accepted accounting principles.   Investments classified  in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued 

using  quote  prices  for  similar  instruments  in  active markets,  quoted  prices  for  identical  or  similar 

instruments in markets that are not active, and model‐based pricing valuations for which all significant 

assumptions are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data. 

 

The following is a summary of the fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017: 

Fair Value

Significant Other 

Observable Inputs 

(Level 2)

Invesments classified by fair value hierarchy

U.S. Government Securities 582,293$       582,293$                    

Total  investments  by fair value hierarchy 582,293$       582,293$                    

Investments  not subject to fair value hierarchy

Local  Agency Investment Fund 1,975,674$   

Non‐negotiable Certificates  of Deposits 2,254,139     

Total  investments  not subject to fair value hierarchy 4,229,813$   

Total  investments  measured at fair value 4,812,106$   
 

Interest Rate Risk 

 

The  City  does  not  have  a  formal  investment  policy  that  limits  investment maturities  as  a means  of 

managing exposure of fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

 

The value of investments held in the City Treasury, grouped by maturity at June 30, 2017, is as follows: 

 

Tota l 12 months 13 to 24 25 to 60 60+

Investment type Amount or less Months Months Months

Loca l  Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 1,975,674$   1,975,674$   ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                 

Money market ‐                   ‐                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                   

Certi fi cate  of depos i ts 2,254,139     ‐                   502,083         1,752,056      ‐                   

Held by Finance  500:

    Federa l  Agency Securi ties 582,293        ‐                   486,365         95,928           ‐                   

Tota l 4,812,106$   1,975,674$   988,448$       1,847,984$    ‐$                 
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Credit and Concentration Risk 

 

State law limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds to the top two ratings issued by 

nationally  recognized  statistical  rating  organizations  (NRSRO's).  It  is  in  the  City's  policy  to  limit  its 

investments in these investment types to the top rating issued by NRSRO's, including raters Standard & 

Poor’s  and  Moody’s  Investors  Services.    At  June  30,  2017,  the  City's  credit  risks,  expressed  on  a 

percentage basis, are as follows: 

Moody's S & P's % of

Investment Type Credit Rating Rating Investments

Certificate of Deposits  * Not Rated Not Rated 46.85%

Local  Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Not Rated Not Rated 41.05%

Federal  National  Mortgage Association Not Rated A 12.10%

Total 100.00%

Credit Quality Distribution for Securities

with Credit Exposure as a Percentage of Total  Investments

*Investments in Certificates of Deposit are generally limited to the FDIC insurance limit per institution. 

 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as 

follows:

Credit

Quality Ratings Fair Value

Cash on hand Not Rated 200$                

Primary government deposits Not Rated 3,295,754       

Certificates  of deposits Not Rated 2,254,139       

Local  Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Not Rated 1,975,674       

Federal  National  Mortgage Association A 582,293           

Cash in fiduciary funds Not Rated 428,558           

Total  cash and investments 8,536,618$     
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

 

Cash and investments are reported on the government‐wide statement of net assets as follows: 

Credit

Quality Ratings Fair Value

Cash and investments Not Rated 7,783,390$     

Restricted cash and cash equivalents Not Rated 324,670           

Total  cash and investments 8,108,060$     

Cash and investments  in fiduciary funds 428,558$        
 

NOTE 3 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

 

A. Current Interfund Balance 

 

Current interfund balances arise in the normal course of business and are expected to be repaid shortly 

after the end of the fiscal year. 

 

Due  to fund Due  from fund Amount

General  Fund Airport 84,409$                       

General  Fund Trans i t 16,608                         

Gas  Tax Measure  R 31,700                         

Gas  Tax Transportation 54,843                         

Community Development PI  Fund CDBG Program 80,215                         

Community Development PI  Fund HOME Program 4,997                           

272,772$                     
 

 

B. Long‐Term Interfund Advances 

 

At June 30, 2017, the funds below have made advances that were not expected to be repaid in one year 

or less. 

 

Advances from Advances to Amounts

General fund Private‐Purpose Trust Fund Successor Agency 45,472$                    
 

The  Redevelopment  Agency  Fund  advance  is  from  the  General  Fund  and  is  composed  of  various 

operating  advances  for  the  redevelopment  agency's  different  project  areas.  The  advances  have  an 

interest rate at 7 percent per annum and are expected to be repaid with tax increment revenue. 
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NOTE 3 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

 

C. Transfers Between Funds 

 

With Council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to another. The purpose of the 

majority of transfers is to reimburse a fund that has made expenditures on behalf of another fund. 

 

Transfer from Transfer to Amount Reason

Water General 58,370$      Costs applied

Sewer General 91,999         Costs applied

Transit General 22,664         Costs applied

Transportation General 94,679         Costs applied

Gas Tax General 39,276         Costs applied

Gas Tax STP 199,343      New fund

NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE / DEFERRED INFLOWS 

 
On October 17, 1995, the City entered into a "Building Loan Agreement" with and among the Woodlake 

Valencia  Partners  and  Wells  Fargo  National  Bank.  The  City  loaned  $952,000  of  Home  Investors 

Partnership  (HOME)  funds. The  interest  rate  is 6.5 percent  fixed  rate,  simple  interest.  Interest began 

accruing on the date of the loan closing. The term of the loan is 40 years with a grace period of 20 years  

for payment on accrued interest and principal. Payments shall be made annually beginning April 1, 2017, 

in an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of residual receipts. 

 

On  June  10,  1996,  the  City  entered  into  a  "Development  Agreement" with  Scott  B.  Townsend  and 

Carolyn L. Townsend, doing business as Walsberg Properties. The City loaned $952,381 of HOME funds. 

The  interest rate  is 1.5 percent fixed rate, simple  interest. Interest began accruing on January 1, 1997. 

Annual payments are made on April 30 of each year, which began April 30, 1998, in the amount of fifty 

percent (50%) of all residual receipts over $12,000. The payments are applied first to interest then due 

and the balance to principal. The term of the  loan shall end on June 10, 2051.   The City paid the back 

taxes to prevent foreclosure, and assigned the property and notes to Self‐Help Enterprises. 

 

The grant funds expended for rehabilitation and First Time Homebuyers Program under the Community 

Development  Block Grant  Program  are  recorded  as  expenditures  in  the  year  the  loans  are made  to 

participants  even  though  the  amounts will be  recovered  as  the  loans  are  repaid.  The City maintains 

detailed records of these loans and records loan principal and interest payments as program revenues in 

the year such payments are  received. These are "performing"  loans with monthly/annual activity and 

are recorded as receivable and deferred revenue. Such loans totaled $268,456 as of June 30, 2017. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE / DEFERRED INFLOWS (continued) 

 

Deferred payment  loans,  issued under  the Community Development Block Grant Program and Home 

Investors Partnership Program, are not required to be paid back until the participating homeowner sells, 

transfers title to the rehabilitated property, or discontinues residence in the dwelling, at which time, the 

full amount of  the deferred  loan  is due. Deferred payment  loans are "non‐performing"  loans and are 

recorded as receivable and deferred revenue. Such loans totaled $9,424,459 as of June 30, 2017. 

 

NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

 
In  accordance  with  GASB  Statement  No.  34,  the  City  has  reported  all  capital  assets  including 

infrastructure  additions  as  of  the  beginning  of  the  2002‐2003  fiscal  year  in  the  government‐wide 

statement of net assets. The City elected to use the basic approach whereby accumulated depreciation 

and depreciation expense have been recorded. 

 

For  the  year  ended  June  30,  2017,  depreciation  expense  on  capital  assets  was  charged  to  the 

governmental functions as follows: 

 

General government 11,353$    

Community development 3,066        

Public safety 61,035      

Public works 197,962    

Parks and recreation 30,153      

     Total 303,569$ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 
 
The following presents summary information on capital assets: 

 

Balance Balance

June 30, 2016 Increases Decreases Adjustments June 30, 2017

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

     Land and improvements 914,597$          30,000$          ‐$                    ‐$                              944,597$         

     Construction in progress 9,324,007         517,909          ‐                       (8,929,356)         912,560            

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 10,238,604      547,909          ‐                       (8,929,356)         1,857,157        

Capital assets, being depreciated:

     Buildings 740,652             ‐                            ‐                       ‐                                 740,652            

     Improvements other than buildings 1,661,433         14,146             ‐                       ‐                                 1,675,579        

     Equipment 1,207,149         ‐                            ‐                       ‐                                 1,207,149        

     Infrastructure 4,581,489         1,831,369      ‐                       8,929,356          15,342,214     

Total capital assets, being depreciated 8,190,723         1,845,515      ‐                       8,929,356          18,965,594     

Less  accumulated depreciation for:

     Buildings 585,895             12,752             ‐                       ‐                                 598,647            

     Improvements other than buildings 505,544             79,997             ‐                       ‐                                 585,541            

     Equipment 674,893             96,283             ‐                       ‐                                 771,176            

     Infrastructure 905,104             114,537          ‐                       ‐                                 1,019,641        

Total accumulated depreciation 2,671,436         303,569          ‐                       ‐                                 2,975,005        

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 5,519,287         1,541,946      ‐                       8,929,356          15,990,589     

Governmental activity capital assets, net 15,757,891$   2,089,855$   ‐$                    ‐$                              17,847,746$  

Balance Balance

June 30, 2016 Increases Decreases Adjustments June 30, 2017

Business‐type activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

     Land and improvements 526,713$          380,706$       ‐$                    ‐$                              907,419$         

     Infrastructure in progress 2,701,095         1,670,972      ‐                       ‐                                 4,372,067        

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 3,227,808         2,051,678      ‐                       ‐                                 5,279,486        

Capital assets being depreciated:

     Utility system 24,841,662      24,472             ‐                       ‐                                 24,866,134     

     Building and Structures 908,352             12,495             ‐                       ‐                                 920,847            

     Equipment and vehicles 1,278,152         145,935          ‐                       ‐                                 1,424,087        

Total capital assets, being depreciated 27,028,166      182,902          ‐                       ‐                                 27,211,068     

Less  accumulate depreciation for:

     Utility system 3,311,939         607,003          ‐                       ‐                                 3,918,942        

     Building and Structures 87,344                45,418             ‐                       ‐                                 132,762            

     Equipment and vehicles 735,297             88,938             ‐                       ‐                                 824,235            

Total accumulated depreciation 4,134,580         741,359          ‐                       ‐                                 4,875,939        

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 22,893,586      (558,457)         ‐                       ‐                                 22,335,129     

Business‐type capital assets, net 26,121,394$   1,493,221$   ‐$                    ‐$                              27,614,615$  
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 6 – OPERATING LEASES 

 

Rental Income 

 

The City entered into a lease agreement to lease out the restaurant at the airport.  Monthly installments 

of $1,500 are required under a month to month lease for the facility, beginning December 2014.  Rental 

income was $18,059 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.   

 

The City entered  into  lease agreements  for  land/hangar  leases at  the airport. Monthly  installments of 

$2,160 are  required under  the  leases monthly.   Rental  income was $25,045  for  the  fiscal year ended 

June 30, 2017. 

 

NOTE 7 – LONG‐TERM OBLIGATIONS 

 

A.  Compensated absences 

The City's policy relating to compensated absences is described in Note 1.  As shown in the table below, 

the  long‐term portion of  this debt, amounting  to $65,779  for governmental activities and $62,044  for 

business‐type activities at June 30, 2017, is expected to be paid in future years from future resources.  In 

prior  years,  compensated  absences  have  been  liquidated  primarily  by  the  general  fund  and  the 

enterprise funds. 

Amounts Amounts

Balance Balance Due Within Due in More

June 30, 2016 Incurred Satisfied June 30, 2017 One Year than One Year

Governmental Activities:

Compensated absences 89,638$         31,594$         51,223$         70,009$         4,230$            65,779$            

Business‐Type Activites:

Compensated absences 70,396$         32,539$         35,722$         67,213$         5,169$            62,044$            

 
 

B.  Judgments payable 

Management has been  notified  that  the City’s  attorney has negotiated  and  settled  a  claim,  and has 

agreed to pay the Plaintiff a total of $275,000.  Five payments are scheduled; the first payment begins in 

the 2017/18 fiscal year, and the final payment will be made in the 2020/21 fiscal year. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 7 – LONG‐TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

 

C.  Loans and notes payable 

The following is a summary of long‐term loans and notes for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

 

Amounts Amounts

Balance Incurred Satisfied Balance Due Within Due in More

June 30, 2016 or Issued or Matured June 30, 2017 One Year than One Year

Business Type Activities

USDA loan Water 1,776,661$      ‐$                         ‐$                           1,776,661$       35,500$       1,741,161$     

USDA bond ‐ Water meters 2,363,000         ‐                            ‐                              2,363,000          15,000          2,348,000        

Sewer Loan 165,624             ‐                            14,804               150,820              16,024          134,796            

USDA loan, Series A 8,255,100         ‐                            164,200            8,090,900          167,900       7,923,000        

USDA loan, Series B 3,775,300         ‐                            75,100               3,700,200          76,800          3,623,400        

Total business type activities 16,335,685$   ‐$                         254,104$         16,081,581$    311,224$    15,770,357$  

 

USDA Water system loan 

The City purchased certificates of participation of $2,000,000  from  the USDA  to  finance water system 

improvements.   Interest on the certificates of participation accrues at 2.75 percent per annum. The City 

is required to make annual principal payments on July 1 of each year commencing July 1, 2010 through 

July 1, 2048, with interest payments made semi‐annually on January 1 and July 1. The payments will vary 

based on number of days that interest is accrued. 

 

The following is a summary of future required minimum payments due: 

 

Fiscal Year

Ending Principal Interest Total

2018 35,500$                      48,858$                      84,358$                     

2019 36,500                         47,882                         84,382                        

2020 37,500                         46,878                         84,378                        

2021 38,500                         45,847                         84,347                        

2022 39,600                         44,788                         84,388                        

2023‐2027 214,700                      207,009                      421,709                     

2028‐2032 245,800                      175,827                      421,627                     

2033‐2037 281,600                      140,107                      421,707                     

2038‐2042 322,500                      99,195                         421,695                     

2043‐2047 369,200                      52,357                         421,557                     

2048 155,261                      6,337                            161,598                     

Totals 1,776,661$              915,085$                   2,691,746$             

USDA Certificate of Participation
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 7 – LONG‐TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

 

USDA Water meter loan 

The City entered  into a USDA  loan  in the amount of $2,363,000 for the purchase of automated water 

meters  to replace  the old, existing meters.    Interest on  the  loan  is at a  fixed  rate of 2.50 percent per 

annum. The City is required to make annual principal payments on July 1 of each year commencing July 

1, 2017 through July 1, 2055, with interest payments made semi‐annually on January 1 and July 1. The 

payments will vary based on number of days that interest is accrued. 

 

The following is a summary of future required minimum payments due: 

 
Fiscal Year

Ending Principal Interest Total

2018 15,000$                     58,700$                     73,700$                     

2019 37,500                        57,762                       95,262                       

2020 38,500                        56,800                       95,300                       

2021 39,500                        55,813                       95,313                       

2022 40,500                        54,800                       95,300                       

2023‐2027 224,500                     257,862                    482,362                    

2028‐2032 254,500                     228,338                    482,838                    

2033‐2037 287,500                     194,937                    482,437                    

2038‐2042 325,500                     157,125                    482,625                    

2043‐2047 367,500                     114,388                    481,888                    

2048‐2052 415,500                     66,125                       481,625                    
2053‐2055 317,000                     13,888                       330,888                    

Totals 2,363,000$             1,316,538$             3,679,538$             

USDA Bond

 
Sewer improvement loan 

The City entered into a loan agreement for $240,000 with David C. Stillwell and Victoria Lynn Stillwell as 

trustees  of  the  David  C.  Stillwell  and  Victoria  Lynn  Stillwell  Trust  on  August  14,  2009,  to  purchase 

property to be used as part of the sewer improvement project. The loan accrues interest at a fixed rate 

of 8 percent per  annum.   The City  is  required  to make quarterly payments of $6,904, which  include 

principal and  interest, on  the November 15, February 15, May 15, and August 15, each year  through 

August 15, 2024.   

 

The following is a summary of future required minimum payments due: 

Fiscal Year

Ending Principal Interest Total

2018 16,024$                      11,593$                      27,617$                     

2019 17,345                         10,272                         27,617                        

2020 18,775                         8,842                            27,617                        

2021 20,323                         7,295                            27,618                        

2022 21,998                         5,619                            27,617                        

2023‐2025 56,355                         5,784                            62,139                        

Total 150,820$                   49,405$                      200,225$                  

Sewer Loan
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 7 – LONG‐TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

 

USDA Sewer loan – Series A 

The City purchased certificates of participation of $9,000,000  from the USDA  to  finance sewer system 

improvements. Interest on the certificates of participation accrues at 2.25 percent per annum.  The City 

is required to make annual principal payments on January 1 of each year commencing January 1, 2012 

through  January  1,  2050, with  interest payments made  semi‐annually on  January  1  and  July  1.    The 

payments will vary based on number of days that interest is accrued.  

 

The following is a summary of future required minimum payments due: 

 

Fiscal Year

Ending Principal Interest Total

2018 167,900$                   180,156$                   348,056$                  

2019 171,700                      176,336                      348,036                     

2020 175,600                      172,429                      348,029                     

2021 179,500                      168,434                      347,934                     

2022 183,600                      164,349                      347,949                     

2023‐2027 981,700                      757,182                      1,738,882                

2028‐2032 1,097,200                 640,357                      1,737,557                

2033‐2037 1,226,500                 509,777                      1,736,277                

2038‐2042 1,370,800                 363,825                      1,734,625                

2043‐2047 1,531,900                 200,710                      1,732,610                

2048‐2050 1,004,500                 34,237                         1,038,737                

Total 8,090,900$              3,367,792$              11,458,692$          

USDA Certificate of Participation ‐ Series A

 
USDA Sewer loan – Series B 

The City purchased certificates of participation of $4,116,000  from the USDA  to  finance sewer system 

improvements. Interest on the certificates of participation accrues at 2.25 percent per annum. The City 

is required to make annual principal payments on January 1 of each year commencing January 1, 2012 

through January 1, 2050, with interest payments made semi‐annually on January 1 and July 1.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 7 – LONG‐TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

 

The payments will vary based on number of days that interest is accrued.  The following is a summary of 

future required minimum payments due: 

Fiscal Year

Ending Principal Interest Total

2018 76,800$                      82,391$                      159,191$                  

2019 78,500                         80,643                         159,143                     

2020 80,300                         78,857                         159,157                     

2021 82,100                         77,030                         159,130                     

2022 84,000                         75,161                         159,161                     

2023‐2027 449,000                      346,275                      795,275                     

2028‐2032 501,800                      292,849                      794,649                     

2033‐2037 560,800                      233,132                      793,932                     

2038‐2042 626,900                      166,386                      793,286                     

2043‐2047 700,700                      91,783                         792,483                     

2048‐2052 459,300                      15,654                         474,954                     

Total 3,700,200$              1,540,161$              5,240,361$             

USDA Certificate of Participation ‐ Series B

 
 

For USDA  loans, the City has pledged the revenues of the Water and Sewer Funds for payment of the 

loans.    The  revenues  will  remain  pledged  for  the  duration  for  the  loans.    The  Water  Fund  had 

approximately  $930,000  in  revenues  to  pay  $122,989  on  debt  service.    The  Sewer  Fund  had 

approximately $1,816,000 in revenues to pay $537,880 in debt services. 

 

D. Operating Leases 

In 2016, the City entered into two operating leases for copier machines, one located at City Hall and the 

other  at  the  Police  Department.    These  are  five‐year  leases,  and  annual  payments  of  principal  and 

interest are $3,279 and $2,618, respectively. 

 

The following is a summary of future required minimum payments due: 

 
Fiscal Year

Ending Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Total

2018 3,036$      243$       3,279$      2,424$           194$               2,618$           5,897$           

2019 3,036         243         3,279         2,424             194                 2,618             5,897              

2020 1,012         81            1,093         1,515             121                 1,636             2,729              

Total 7,084$      567$       7,651$      6,363$           509$               6,872$           14,523$        

Operating Lease ‐ City Copier Operating lease ‐ Police Department Copier
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
A.  General Information about the Pension Plans 

 

Plan Descriptions – All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible  to participate  in 

the Public Agency Cost‐Sharing Multiple‐Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan) administered by 

the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).  The Plan consists of individual rate plans 

(benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool (police) and a miscellaneous risk pool (all other).  Plan assets may 

be used to pay benefits for any employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous pools.  Accordingly, 

rate  plans  within  the  safety  or miscellaneous  pools  are  not  separate  plans  under  GASB  Statement 

No. 68.   Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan  in the miscellaneous or safety risk 

pools.  The City sponsors four rate plans (two miscellaneous and two safety).  Benefit provisions under 

the  Plan  are  established  by  State  statute  and  the  City  resolution.  CalPERS  issues  publicly  available 

reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and 

membership information that can be found on the CalPERS’ website, at www.calpers.ca.gov.  

 

Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides  service  retirement and disability benefits, annual  cost of  living 

adjustments  and death benefits  to plan members, who must be public  employees  and beneficiaries.  

Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.   Members 

with  five  years  of  total  service  are  eligible  to  retire  at  age  50 with  statutorily‐reduced  benefits.   All 

members are eligible for non‐duty disability benefits after five years of service.  The death benefit is one 

of the following: 1) Basic Death Benefit; the 1957 Survivor Benefit, Level 3; or 2) Optional Settlement 2W 

Death Benefit (if decedent is at least age 50).  The City has contracted for the Special Death Benefit for 

public safety members, whose death is the direct result of a violent act while on duty.  The cost of living 

adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.   

 

The Plan operates under the provisions of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL), the 

California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), and the regulations, procedures and 

policies adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration.   The Plan’s authority to establish and amend 

the  benefit  terms  are  set  by  the  PERL  and  PEPRA,  and  may  be  amended  by  the  California  state 

legislature, and in some cases require approval by the CalPERS Board. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 
 

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017, are summarized as follows: 

 

Miscellaneous

Hire  date

Hired prior to 

January 1, 2013

Hired on or after 

January 1, 2013

Benefi t formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62

Benefi t vesting schedule 5 years  service 5 years  service

Benefi t payments Monthly for l i fe Monthly for l i fe

Reti rement age  (el igible  age  50 class ic, 52 new) 55 62

Monthly benefi ts , as  a  % of el igible  compensation 2% 2%

Required employee  contribution rates 7% 6.25%

Required employer contribution rates 8.377% 6.555%

  
Safety

Hire  date

Hired prior to 

January 1, 2013

Hired on or after 

January 1, 2013

Benefi t formula 2% @ 55 2.% @ 57

Benefi t vesting schedule 5 years  service 5 years  service

Benefi t payments monthly for l i fe monthly for l i fe

Reti rement age  (el igible  at age  50) 50 57

Monthly benefi ts , as  a  % of el igible  compensation 2.0% 2.0%

Required employee  contribution rates 7% 9.50%

Required employer contribution rates 12.055% 9.418%

 

Contributions ‐ Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that 

the  employer  contribution  rates  for  all  public  employers  be  determined  on  an  annual  basis  by  the 

actuary  and  shall  be  effective  on  the  July 1  following  notice  of  a  change  in  the  rate.  The  total  plan 

contributions are determined  through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process.   For public agency 

cost‐sharing  plans  covered  by  either  the  Miscellaneous  or  Safety  risk  pools,  the  Plan’s  actuarially 

determined rate  is based on the estimated amount necessary to pay the Plan’s allocated share of the 

risk pool’s costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, and any unfunded accrued  liability. 

The employer is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the 

contribution rate of employees.  Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended. 

Payments made by the employer to satisfy contribution requirements that are identified by the pension 

plan terms as plan member contribution requirements are classified as plan member contributions.  

 

Employer contributions to the Plan for the fiscal year ended  June 30, 2017 were $285,896. The actual 

employer payments of $260,730 made  to CalPERS by  the City during  the measurement period ended 

June 30, 2016 differed from the City’s proportionate share of the employer’s contributions of $269,340 

by $8,610, which is being amortized over the expected average remaining service lifetime in the Public 

Agency Cost‐Sharing Multiple Employer Plan. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 
 

B.  Net Pension Liability 

 

The City’s net pension liability for (each) Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the pension 

plan’s fiduciary net position.   The net pension  liability of each of the Plans  is measured as of June 30, 

2016, using an annual actuarial valuation as of  June 30, 2015,  rolled  forward  to  June 30, 2016 using 

standard update procedures.  A summary of principal assumptions and methods, used to determine the 

net pension liability, is as follows: 

 
Actuarial Assumptions Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 
 

Valuation Date June 30, 2015

Measurement Date June 30, 2016

Actuarial  Cost Method

Asset valuation method

Actuarial  Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%

Inflation 2.75%

Salary increases  (1)

Investment rate of return (2)

Mortality rate table (3)

Derived using CalPERS' Membership data 

for all  Funds

Post Retirement Benefit Increase

Contract COLA up to 2.75% until  

purchasng power protection allowance 

floor on purchasing power applies, 

2.75% thereafter

(1)  Annual  increases  vary by category, entry age, and duration of service

(2)  Net of pens ion plan investment and adminis trative  expenses ; includes  inflation

Entry‐Age Normal  Cost Method

3.3% ‐ 14.2%

7.65%

(3)  The  mortal i ty rate  table  used was  developed based on CalPERS' speci fic data .  The  table  

includes  20 years  of mortal i ty improvements , us ing Society of Actuaries  Scale  BB.  For more  

deta i l s  on this  table, please  refer to the  2014 experience  study report.

Market Value of Assets

 
 

All other actuarial assumptions used  in  the  June 30, 2015 valuation were based on  the  results of an 

actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011,  including updates to salary  increase, mortality 

and  retirement  rates.    The  Experience  Study  can  be  obtained  at  the  CalPERS  website  at 

www.calpers.ca.gov.   

 

Change in Assumption   

 

There were no changes in assumptions. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 
 

Discount Rate 

 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension  liability was 7.65 percent. To determine whether 

the municipal bond rate should be used  in the calculation of  the discount rate  for each plan, CalPERS 

stress  tested plans  that would most  likely  result  in a discount  rate  that would be different  from  the 

actuarially  assumed  discount  rate.  The  tests  revealed  the  assets would  not  run  out.  Therefore,  the 

current 7.65 percent discount rate  is appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation  is 

not deemed necessary. The  long‐term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent  is applied to all plans  in 

the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF).  

 
The  cash  flows used  in  the  testing were developed assuming  that both members and employers will 

make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. The stress test results are 

presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS’ 

website, at www.calpers.ca.gov. 

 

The  long‐term expected rate of return on pension plan  investments was determined using a building‐

block method  in which best‐estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 

net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

 

In determining the  long‐term expected rate of return, CalPERS  took  into account both short‐term and 

long‐term market  return expectations as well as  the expected pension  fund  (PERF) cash  flows. Taking 

into account historical returns of all the PERF asset classes (which includes the agent plan and two cost‐

sharing plans or PERF A, B and C funds), expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over 

the short‐term  (first 10 years) and  the  long‐term  (11‐60 years) using a building‐block approach. Using 

the  expected  nominal  returns  for  both  short‐term  and  long‐term,  the  present  value  of  benefits was 

calculated  for  each  fund.  The  expected  rate  of  return  was  set  by  calculating  the  single  equivalent 

expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated 

using both  short‐term and  long‐term  returns. The expected  rate of  return was  then  set equal  to  the 

single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 

 

The following table reflects long‐term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 

calculated  using  the  capital market  assumptions  applied  to  determine  the  discount  rate  and  asset 

allocation. The target allocation shown was adopted by the CalPERS Board effective on July 1, 2015. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 
 

Asset Class

Current target 

allocation

Real  return 

years 1‐10 
1

Real  return 

years  11+ 
2

Global  Equity 51.0% 5.25% 5.71%

Global  Fixed Income 20.0% 0.99% 2.43%

Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%

Private Equity 10.0% 6.83% 6.95%

Real  Estate 10.0% 4.50% 5.13%

Infrastructure and Forestland 2.0% 4.50% 5.09%

Liquidity 1.0% ‐0.55% ‐1.05%

100.0%

1
 An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this  period
2
 An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this  period  
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

 

Information about the pension plans’ assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows 

of resources, and  fiduciary net position are presented  in CalPERS’ audited  financial statements, which 

are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website, at www.calpers.ca.gov.  

 

The plans’ fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have 

been  determined  on  the  same  basis  used  by  the  pension  plan,  which  is  the  economic  resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due 

and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan. Investments are reported at fair value. 

 

The plan fiduciary net position disclosed in the GASB 68 accounting valuation report may differ from the 

plan  assets  reported  in  the  funding  actuarial  valuation  report  due  to  several  reasons.  First,  for  the 

accounting valuations, CalPERS must keep items such as deficiency reserves, fiduciary self‐insurance and 

Other Post‐Employment Benefits  (OPEB) expense  included as assets. These amounts are excluded  for 

rate setting purposes  in  the  funding actuarial valuation.  In addition, differences may result  from early 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report closing and final reconciled reserves. 

 

C.  Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 

 

The  following  table  shows  the  Plans’  proportionate  share  of  the  net  pension  liability  over  the 

measurement period: 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 

 

Plan Total  Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Plan Net Pension

Liabil ity Position Liabil ity

(a) (b) (c) = (a) ‐ (b)

Balance at:  6/30/2015 (VD*) 9,320,469$           7,424,992$             1,895,477$          

Balance at:  6/30/2016 (MD*)              9,887,930                7,457,684  2,430,246            

Net changes  during 2015‐16  $             567,461   $                  32,692   $             534,769 

*Valuation Date (VD), Measurement Date (MD)

Increase (decrease)

 

The City’s net pension  liability for the Plan  is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension 

liability. The net pension  liability of  the Plan  is measured  as of  June 30, 2016,  and  the  total pension 

liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 

as  of  June 30,  2015  rolled  forward  to  June 30,  2016  using  standard  update  procedures.  The  Local 

Government’s proportion of the net pension liability was determined by CalPERS using the output from 

the Actuarial Valuation System and the fiduciary net position, as provided in the CalPERS Public Agency 

Cost‐Sharing Allocation Methodology Report, which is a publicly available report that can be obtained at 

CalPERS’ website, at www.calpers.ca.gov. The City’s proportionate share of the net pension  liability for 

the Plan as of the June 30, 2015 and 2016 measurement dates was as follows: 

Misc Safety Total

Proportion ‐ June 30, 2015 0.03763% 0.02095% 0.02762%

Proportion ‐ June 30, 2016 0.03906% 0.02073% 0.02809%

Change ‐ increase/(decrease) 0.00143% ‐0.00022% 0.00047%
 

The City report a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability as follows: 

Misc Safety Total

Plan's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability 1,356,788$   1,073,458$   2,430,246$  

Amounts recorded in Fiduciary Fund (6,784)           

Net Pension Liability as reported on Statement of Net Position
Government‐wide Financial Statements 2,423,462$  

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of the 

measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 7.65 percent, as well as what the net pension 

liability would  be  if  it were  calculated  using  a  discount  rate  that  is  1 percentage‐point  lower  (6.65 

percent) or 1 percentage‐point higher (8.65 percent) than the current rate: 
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June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 
 

Discount rate ‐1% Current discount rate Discount rate +1%
6.65% 7.65% 8.65%

Employer's  Net Pension Liability ‐ Misc 2,123,593$             1,356,788$                     723,063$                 

Employer's  Net Pension Liability ‐ Safety 1,642,542                1,073,458                       606,299                   

Employer's  Net Pension Liability ‐ Total 3,766,135$             2,430,246$                     1,329,362$             

Subsequent Events 
 
There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this disclosure. 

 

Recognition of Gains and Losses 

 

Under GASB 68, gains and  losses related to changes  in total pension  liability and fiduciary net position 

are recognized in pension expense systematically over time. 

 

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The 

remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred  inflows of resources related  to 

pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense. 

 
The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 
 

Difference between projected  

and actual earnings 

 

5‐year straight‐line amortization 

 

All other amounts 

 

Straight‐line  amortization  over  the  average  expected 

remaining service  lives of all members  that are provided 

with  benefits  (active,  inactive  and  retired)  as  of  the 

beginning of the measurement period 

 

The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the total future service 

years by the total number of plan participants (active,  inactive, and retired)  in the Public Agency Cost‐

Sharing Multiple‐Employer Plan (PERF C). 

 
The  EARSL  for  the Plan  for  the 2015‐2016 measurement period  is 3.7  years, which was obtained by 

dividing  the  total  service  years  of  475,689  (the  sum  of  remaining  service  lifetimes  of  the  active 

employees)  by  127,009  (the  total  number  of  participants:  active,  inactive,  and  retired).    Note  that 

inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal to 0.  Also note that total future 

service  is based on  the members’ probability of decrementing due  to an event other  than receiving a 

cash refund. 
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June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 
 

D.  Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

 

As  of  the  start  of  the measurement  period  (July 1,  2015),  the  net  pension  liability  for  the  plan was 

$1,895,477.    For  the measurement  period  ending  June 30,  2016  (the measurement  date),  the  City 

incurred a pension expense of $89,075 for the Plan. 

 
At June 30, 2017, the City has deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 

to pensions as follows: 

Deferred outflows  

of resources

Deferred inflows  

of resources

Pension contributions  subsequent to measurement date 285,896$               ‐$                           

Differences  between actual  contributions  and 

proportionate share of employer contributions 56,557                    51,364                  

Changes  in assumptions ‐                              88,944                 

Differences  between actual  and expected experience 3,167                     11,484                 

Net differences  between projected & actual  earnings  on 

pension plan investments 448,317                  ‐                              

Change in proportion 30,516                  32,806                 

Total 824,453$                184,598$              
 

 
These amounts above are net of outflows and inflows recognized in the 2015‐2016 measurement period 

expense. The $285,896 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent 

to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 

June 30,  2018. Amounts  reported  as  deferred  outflows  and  deferred  inflows  of  resources  related  to 

pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows: 

 
Fiscal  year ending June 30: Misc Safety Total

2018 (454)$                   10,537$              10,083$             

2019 6,509                   15,923                 22,432                

2020 87,302                 117,698              205,000             

2021 52,400                 64,043                 116,443             

2022 ‐                            ‐                            ‐                           

Thereafter ‐                            ‐                            ‐                           

145,757$            208,201$            353,958$           
 

 

E.  Payable to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2017, the City reports a payable of $0 for the outstanding amount of contributions to the 

pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 9 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS 

 
The City does not provide postemployment benefits, other than pension benefits. City's OPEB plan was 

terminated in July 2013 with Council Resolution No. 13‐49.  
 

NOTE 10 – RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The City  is exposed to various risks and  losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 

assets;  errors  and  omissions;  injuries  to  employees;  and  natural  disasters.  Risk  of  loss  is  primarily 

handled through the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA).  CSJVRMA is a 

consortium of fifty‐one (51) cities for workers' compensation programs and fifty‐four (54) cities for the 

pooled  liability program  in the San Joaquin Valley of California. It was established under the provisions 

of  California  Government  Code  Section  6500  et  seq.  Central  San  Joaquin  Valley  Risk Management 

Authority  is  governed  by  a  Board  of  Directors,  which meets  3‐4  times  per  year,  consisting  of  one 

member appointed by each member city. The day‐to‐day business  is handled by a management group 

employed by CSJVRMA. 

 

Workers’ Compensation Program.  The City participates in the CSJVRMA Risk Sharing Pool.  Under this 

program,  expected  claim  losses  are  actuarially  determined,  and  all  necessary  monies,  including 

operating costs, are deposited with CSJVRMA  in advance.   The program  is retrospectively adjusted five 

years following its conclusion, and any funds remaining in excess of minimum funding requirements are 

returned  to  the  City.    Likewise,  any  shortfalls  are  collected  from  the  City  through  the  retrospective 

adjustment process.   CSJVRMA  is a member of  the Local Agency Workers’ Compensation Excess  Joint 

Powers Authority (LAWCX) for the purpose of obtaining excess coverage.   LAWCX provides $4,500,000 

coverage  limits  in  excess  of  the  retained  limit  of  $500,000,  and  participates  in  the  California  State 

Association of Counties Excess  Insurance Authority (CSAC‐EIA) for coverage  in excess of $5,000,000 up 

to the statutory limit. 

 
Liability Program.   Under the pooled  liability program, expected claims are actuarially determined and 

deposited with CSJVRMA along with all estimated operating costs. Each year is retrospectively adjusted 

five  years  following  its  conclusion,  and  any  funds  remaining  in  excess  of  the  minimum  funding 

requirements are returned to the City.   Likewise, funds paid out  in excess of City's original deposit are 

collected  from  the  City.    The  risk  sharing  pool  covers  the  first  $1,000,000  of  losses.    CSJVRMA  is  a 

member of the California Affiliated Risk Management Authorities (CARMA) for the purpose of obtaining 

excess coverage in a risk sharing pool.  The CARMA program provides coverage in excess of CSJVRMA’s 

retained limit up to $29,000,000. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 10 – RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

 

The following is a summary of financial information of the CSJVRMA as of and for the fiscal year ended 

June 30, 2017: 

 

Total assets 100,984,219$             

Total liabilities 83,009,648                  

Member's equity 17,974,571$               

Total revenues 44,722,848$               

Total expenses 42,218,070                  

Excess of expenses over income 2,504,778$                  

 
At the termination of the joint powers agreement and after all claims have been settled, any excess or 

deficit will be divided among the cities in accordance with governing documents. 

 

NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 

Construction Commitments 

The City has entered into various construction contracts with private contractors prior to the fiscal year 

end. These commitments include various contracts related to the completion of the City's water system 

improvements  and  Bravo  Lake  improvements.  These  commitments  are  contingent  on  the  receipt  of 

future revenues for funding.  

 

General Liability 

There are various claims and legal actions pending against the City for which a provision has been made 

in the financial statements. In the opinion of the City Attorney and City Management,  liabilities arising 

from  these claims and  legal actions,  in  the amount of $275,000 should be  reported  in  these  financial 

statements. 

 

Federal Awards and Grants 

The  City  has  received  federal  grants  for  specific  purposes  that  are  subject  to  review  by  the  federal 

government.  Although  such  audits  could  result  in  expenditure  disallowance  under  grant  terms,  any 

required reimbursements are not expected to be material. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 12 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

On  December  29,  2011,  The  California  Supreme  Court  upheld  Assembly  Bill  1X  26  (“the  Bill”)  that 

provides  for  the  dissolution  of  all  redevelopment  agencies  in  the  State  of  California.    This  action 

impacted  the  reporting entity of  the City of Woodlake  that previously had  reported a  redevelopment 

agency within the reporting entity of the City as a blended component unit. 

 

The Bill provides  that upon dissolution of a  redevelopment agency, either  the City or another unit of 

local  government  will  agree  to  serve  as  the  “Successor  Agency”  to  hold  the  assets  until  they  are 

distributed to other units of state and local government.  On January 9, 2012, the City Council elected to 

become the Successor Agency for the former redevelopment agency in accordance with the Bill as part 

of the City Minute Order, which passed unanimously. 

After enactment of the  law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies  in the State of 

California cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments.  Subject to the control of a newly 

established  oversight  board,  remaining  assets  can  only  be  used  to  pay  enforceable  obligations  in 

existence  at  the  date  of  dissolution  (including  the  completion  of  any  unfinished  projects)  that were 

subject to legally enforceable contractual commitments. 

 

In future fiscal years, successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary 

to  pay  the  estimated  annual  installment  payments  on  enforceable  obligations  of  the  former 

redevelopment agency until all enforceable obligations of  the prior  redevelopment agency have been 

paid in full and all assets have been liquidated. 

 

The Bill directs the State Controller of the State of California to review the propriety of any transfer of 

assets between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011.  If 

the  public  body  that  received  such  transfers  is  not  contractually  committed  to  a  third  party  for  the 

expenditure  or  encumbrance  of  those  assets,  the  State  Controller  is  required  to  order  the  available 

assets to be transferred to the public body designated as the successor agency by the Bill. 

 

Management  believes,  in  conjunction  with  legal  counsel,  that  the  obligations  of  the  former 

redevelopment  agency  due  to  the  City  are  valid  enforceable  obligations  payable  by  the  Successor 

Agency trustee under the requirements of the Bill.  The City’s position on this issue is not a position of 

settled law and there is considerable legal uncertainty regarding this issue.  It is reasonably possible that  

a  legal  determination may  be made  at  a  later  date  by  an  appropriate  judicial  authority  that would 

resolve this issue unfavorably to the City. 

 

In accordance with  the  timeline  set  forth  in  the Bill  (as modified by  the California Supreme Court on 

December 29, 2011) all redevelopment agencies in the State of California were dissolved and ceased to 

operate as a legal entity as of February 1, 2012.   
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 12 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (continued) 

 

Land held for resale 

 

Previously reported land held for resale ($45,114) was sold to the City during this fiscal year. 

 

Capital assets 

 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance

June 30, 2016 Increases Decreases June 30, 2017

Land 605,409$              ‐$                                ‐$                                605,409$             

Improvements other than buildings 855,968                 ‐                                   ‐                                   855,968                

Accumulated depreciation ‐ improvements (184,052)               (21,399)                  ‐                                   (205,451)              

Capital assets net 1,277,325$         (21,399)$               ‐$                                1,255,926$        

Intergovernmental payable 
 
The advance made by the City of Woodlake to the Former redevelopment agency were transferred to 

the Successor Agency private‐purpose  trust  fund as  intergovernmental payable and  comprised of  the 

following: 

 

Amount

Admin and Projects  10/11 FY 163,261$         
Admin and Projects  09/10 FY 25,362              
Admin and Projects  08/09 FY 7,360                

Totals 195,983           

Fiscal  year 2015‐16 (74,917)            

Fiscal  year 2016‐17 (75,594)            

Balance 45,472$           

Purpose

Payments

 
Long‐term debt 

 

The RDA tax allocation bonds were issued by the Redevelopment Agency to purchase the local airport. 

The USDA  purchased  the  bonds  that  bear  an  interest  rate  of  4.125  percent  per  annum.  The  City  is 

required  to make annual principal payments on  July 1 of each year  through  July 1, 2025, with  semi‐

annual  interest payments  in  January and  July. The payments will vary based on number of days  that 

interest is accrued. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 12 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (continued) 
 
The following is a summary of future required minimum payments: 

 

Fisca l  Year

Ending Principa l Interest Tota l

2018 31,800$              12,643                44,443$             

2019 33,100                11,278                44,378               

2020 34,500                9,854                  44,354               

2021 35,900                8,374                  44,274               

2022 37,400                6,831                  44,231               

2023‐2025 165,600              10,597                176,197             

Tota ls 338,300$            59,577$              397,877$           

RDA Tax Al location Bonds  ‐ USDA

 
Contingencies 

 

Under AB 1X 26,  the  repayment of  loans made  in good  faith by  the City of Woodlake  to  the  former 

redevelopment agency became unenforceable as of February 1, 2012 and not subject to repayment by 

the Successor Agency.  Under AB 1484, the City may be eligible to receive repayment of sums loaned to 

the  redevelopment  agency  more  than  two  years  after  the  redevelopment  agency  was  created.  

However, AB 1484 places several conditions on the repayment of the loans by the Successor Agency to 

the City which could  significantly  reduce  the  repayment amount.    It  is also possible  that  the State of 

California  Department  of  Finance  (DOF)  could  invalidate  any  of  the  loans made  by  the  City  to  the 

redevelopment agency. 

 

NOTE 13 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 

The date to which events occurring after June 30, 2017, have been evaluated for possible adjustments 

to  the  financial  statements  or  disclosures  is  March  8,  2018,  which  is  the  date  that  the  financial 

statements were available to be issued. 

 

NOTE 14 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the City loaned $74,000 to the Woodlake Cemetery District.  The 

loan is a related party transaction, because the City conducted business with the employer of one of the 

City's  Council members.  There were  no  payments made  in  the  Fiscal  Year  2016/17,  resulting  in  an 

ending balance of $58,116. 
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CITY OF WOODLAKE 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

 
NOTE 15 – RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

 

GASB  Statement No. 78  ‐ Pensions Provide  through Certain Multiple‐Employer Defined Pension Plans.  

The  provisions  of  GASB  Statement  No.  78  are  effective  for  financial  statements  beginning  after 

December 15, 2015.  Management has not yet determined the impact of this Statement on its financial 

statements.  

 

GASB Statement No. 81 – Irrevocable Split‐Interest Agreements.  The provisions of GASB Statement No. 

81 are effective  for  reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016.   Management has not yet 

determined the impact of this Statement on its financial statements. 

 

GASB Statement No. 83 – Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.  The provisions of GASB Statement No. 

83  are  effective  for  reporting  periods  beginning  after  June  15,  2018.    Management  has  not  yet 

determined the impact of this Statement on its financial statements. 

 

GASB Statement No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities.  The provisions of GASB Statement No. 84 are effective for 

reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.  Management has not yet determined the impact 

of this Statement on its financial statements. 

 

GASB Statement No. 85 – Omnibus 2017.   The provisions of GASB Statement No. 85 are effective  for 

reporting periods beginning after  June 15, 2017.   Management has not yet determined  the  impact of 

this Statement on its financial statements. 

 

GASB Statement No. 86 – Certain Debt Extinguishment issues.  The provisions of GASB Statement No. 86 

are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.  Management has not yet determined 

the impact of this Statement on its financial statements. 

 

GASB Statement No. 87 – Leases.   The provisions of GASB Statement No. 87 are effective for reporting 

periods beginning after December 15, 2019.   Management has not yet determined  the  impact of  this 

Statement on its financial statements. 
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Property taxes 251,500$       295,500$       277,855$        (17,645)$         
Utility users tax 335,000        330,000        341,422          11,422           
Sales taxes 380,000        400,000        402,790          2,790            
Other taxes 63,200         46,937         28,340           (18,597)         
Licenses and permits 175,510        122,341        123,089          748               
Charges for services 721,100        890,467        787,368          (103,099)        
Intergovernmental revenues 828,833        811,036        709,487          (101,549)        
Fines and forfeitures 22,200         22,454         28,448           5,994            
Use of money and property 37,800         73,400         9,217             (64,183)         
Miscellaneous revenues 20,500         18,000         257,496          239,496         

     Total revenues 2,835,643       3,010,135       2,965,512       (44,623)           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 196,932        207,755        437,336          (229,581)        
Community development 96,956         65,966         -                    65,966           
Public safety 1,319,286     1,262,750     1,143,799       118,951         
Public works 74,865         88,522         342,270          (253,748)        
Parks and recreation 197,027        313,545        88,855           224,690         
Refuse services 622,430        689,100        654,240          34,860           

Capital outlay:
Community development 195,000        105,114        91,032           14,082           
Parks and recreation -                  -                  231,901          (231,901)        
Public safety -                  -                  -                    -                   

     Total expenditures 2,702,496       2,732,752       2,989,433       (256,681)          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 133,147        277,383        (23,921)          (301,304)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Debt service interest -                    -                    -                    -                     
Operating transfers in (out) -                  -                  306,988          306,988         
Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                  -                  29,303            29,303           

     Total other financing sources -                    -                    336,291          336,291           

Net change in fund balance 133,147$       277,383$       312,370         34,987$          

Fund Balance, July 1 879,463          

Fund Balance, June 30 1,191,833$     

 Budgeted Amounts 

CITY OF WOODLAKE 

 SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND 
 BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP basis) AND ACTUAL 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

 GENERAL FUND 
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Variance with

Final Budget

Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenues -$                    -$                -$              -$                    

Repayment of loans 30,500             304,800       210,601     (94,199)           

Use of money and property 175                  1,310           1,288         (22)                  

Total revenues 30,675             306,110       211,889     (94,221)           

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Community development 2,000               8,294           7,634         660                 

Capital outlay -                      230,193       20,568       209,625          

Total expenditures 2,000               238,487       28,202       210,285          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 28,675             67,623         183,687     116,064          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out -                      -                  -                -                     

Net change in fund balance 28,675$           67,623$       183,687     116,064$        

Fund balance, July 1 238,695     

Fund balance, June 30 422,382$   

Budget Amounts

CITY OF WOODLAKE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

 SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP basis) AND ACTUAL 
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Variance with

Final Budget

Original Final Amounts Positive(Negative)

REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenues 1,040,512$          808,721$             787,918$     (20,803)$                   

Use of money and property 25                        25                        285              260                           

Total revenues 1,040,537            808,746               788,203       (20,543)                     

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay:

Streets and Roads 1,026,900            510,933               483,996       26,937                      

Total expenditures 1,026,900            510,933               483,996       26,937                      

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 13,637                 297,813               304,207       6,394                        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out -                          -                          (238,619)      (238,619)                   

Net change in fund balance 13,637$               297,813$             65,588         (232,225)$                 

Fund balance, July 1 199,029       

Fund balance, June 30 264,617$     

CITY OF WOODLAKE

GAS TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Budget Amounts

 SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND 
 BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP basis) AND ACTUAL 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
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Variance with

Final Budget

Original Final Amounts Positive(Negative)

REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenues 630,000$             1,692,500$          1,461,941$   (230,559)$                 

Licenses and permits -                          -                          -                    -                                

Use of money and property -                          -                          -                    -                                

Total revenues 630,000               1,692,500            1,461,941     (230,559)                   

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay:

Public works -                          -                          -                    -                                

Streets and Roads 630,000               1,692,500            1,461,941     230,559                    

Total expenditures 630,000               1,692,500            1,461,941     230,559                    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures -                          -                          -                    -                                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out -                          -                          -                    -                                

Net change in fund balance -$                        -$                        -                    -$                              

Fund balance, July 1 -                    

Fund balance, June 30 -$                  

CITY OF WOODLAKE

MEASURE R PROGRAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Budget Amounts

 SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND 
 BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP basis) AND ACTUAL 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL 
INFORMATION

Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liabilities as Related
Ratios

• A ratio of the City's share of plan net position divided by the total pension
liability, the payroll amount for employees in the plan (covered-employee
payroll), and a ratio of the City's share of net pension liability divided by covered-
employee payroll.

• If an agent employer’s contributions to the plan are actuarially determined or
based on statutory or contractual requirements: the agent employer’s actuarially
determined contribution to the pension plan (or, if applicable, its statutorily or
contractually required contribution), the employer’s actual contributions, the
difference between the actual and actuarially determined contributions (or
statutorily or contractually required), and a ratio of the actual contributions
divided by covered-employee payroll. 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
AND RELATED RATIOS

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
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Measurement date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

City's Proportionate Share of Plan Total Pension Liability 5,695,593$      5,541,457$      5,427,691$      

City's Proportionate Share of Plan Fiduciary Net Position 4,338,805$      4,509,107$      4,439,034$      

Percentage of City's Total Pension Liability 76.178% 81.370% 81.785%

City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability(Asset) 1,356,788$      1,032,350$      988,657$         

City's Covered-Employee Payroll 888,586$         828,428$         812,169$         

City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability(Asset) as a 
Percentage of its Covered Payroll 152.69% 124.62% 121.73%

City's Proportionate Share of Collective NPL 0.03906% 0.03763% 0.04000%

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

City's Proportionate Share of Plan Total Pension Liability 4,192,338$      3,779,012$      3,729,749$      

City's Proportionate Share of Plan Fiduciary Net Position 3,118,879$      2,915,885$      2,698,954$      

Percentage of City's Total Pension Liability 74.395% 77.160% 72.363%

City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability(Asset) 1,073,458$      863,127$         1,030,795$      

City's Covered-Employee Payroll 493,089$         577,295$         535,928$         

City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability(Asset) as a 
Percentage of its Covered Payroll 217.70% 149.51% 192.34%

City's Proportionate Share of Collective NPL 0.02073% 0.02095% 0.02748%

Notes to Schedule:

* - Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation; historical information is required only for measurement periods 
during which GASB 68 was in effect.

CITY OF WOODLAKE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liabilities as Related Ratios
Last 10 Years*

Miscellaneous

Safety
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2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution 134,266$       114,981$       109,136$       

Contributions in relation to the actuarially 
determined contributions 134,266         114,981         109,136         
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$               -$               -$               

Covered-employee payroll 942,701$       915,244$       888,586$       

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 14.24% 12.56% 12.28%

2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution 151,630$       145,749$       114,111$       

Contributions in relation to the actuarially 
determined contributions 151,630         145,749         114,111         

City's Proportionate Share of Collective NPL 0.03906% 0.03763% 0.03763%

Covered-employee payroll 523,118$       507,882$       493,089$       

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 28.99% 28.70% 23.14%

Notes to Schedule
Valuation date: 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining amortization period 15 years

Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market

City's Proportionate Share of Collective NPL 0.02073% 0.02095% 0.02211%

Inflation 3.50%

Salary increases 4.5%, average, including inflation of 3.0%
Investment rate of return

Retirement age 67 yrs. Misc., 57 yrs. Safety

Mortality RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table

* - Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation; historical information is required only for 
measurement periods during which GASB 68 was in effect.

CITY OF WOODLAKE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Last 10 Years*
Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liabilities as Related Ratios

7.65%, net of pension plan 
investment expense, including 
inflation

Miscellaneous

Safety
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Total

Capital Projects Nonmajor

Nonmajor Capital Impact Governmental

Special Revenue Fees Funds

ASSETS

Cash and investments 401,015$                      98,922$                      499,937$                    

Receivables:

Intergovernmental -                                   -                                 -                                  

Due from other funds 469,661                        -                                 469,661                      

Total assets 870,676$                      98,922$                      969,598$                    

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 78,214$                        -$                               78,214$                      

Due to other funds 140,055                        -                                 140,055                      

Total liabilities 218,269                        -                                 218,269                      

Fund balances:

Assigned 652,407                        98,922                       751,329                      

Total fund balances 652,407                        98,922                       751,329                      

Total liabilities and fund balances 870,676$                      98,922$                      969,598$                    

CITY OF WOODLAKE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2017
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Total

Capital Projects Nonmajor

Nonmajor Capital Impact Governmental

Special Revenue Fees Funds

REVENUES

Licenses and permits -$                               11,010$                      11,010$                     

Intergovernmental revenues 913,576                     -                                913,576                     

Repayment of loans 3,157                         -                                3,157                         

Use of money and property 588                            32                              620                            

Total revenues 917,321                     11,042                       928,363                     

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Community development 384,483                     -                                384,483                     

Public safety 99,600                       -                                99,600                       

Public works 38,581                       -                                38,581                       

Capital Outlay:

Public works 74,658                       -                                74,658                       

Parks and recreation -                                 -                                -                                

Debt service:

Principal -                                 -                                -                                

Interest -                                 -                                -                                

Total expenditures 597,322                     -                                597,322                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 319,999                     11,042                       331,041                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 199,343                     -                                199,343                     

Transfers out (94,679)                      -                                (94,679)                      

Total other financing sources and uses 104,664                     -                                104,664                     

Net change in fund balances 424,663                     11,042                       435,705                     

Fund balance, July 1 227,744                     87,880                       315,624                     

Fund balances, June 30 652,407$                   98,922$                      751,329$                   

CITY OF WOODLAKE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
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Landscaping

Lighting Transportation AB 3229 Woodlake

District Tax COPS CDBG HOME Housing

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund STP Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments 22,347$          -$                    95,970$     -$              -$                 6,957$       275,741$     401,015$     

Receivables:

Intergovernmental 397                 289,203          15,147       158,216    6,698           -                 -                   469,661       

Interest -                      -                      -                -                -                   -                 -                   -                  

Due from other funds -                      -                      -                -                -                   -                 -                   -                  

Land held for resale -                      -                      -                -                -                   -                 -                   -                  

Total assets 22,744$          289,203$         111,117$   158,216$  6,698$         6,957$       275,741$     870,676$     

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,065$            198$               -$              75,250$    1,701$         -$               -$                 78,214$       

Due to other funds -                      54,843            -                80,215      4,997           -                 -                   140,055       

Deferred revenue -                      -                      -                -                -                   -                 -                   -                  

Total liabilities 1,065              55,041            -                155,465    6,698           -                 -                   218,269       

Fund balances:

Assigned 21,679            234,162          111,117     2,751        -                   6,957         275,741       652,407       

Total fund balances 21,679            234,162          111,117     2,751        -                   6,957         275,741       652,407       

Total liabilities and fund balances 22,744$          289,203$         111,117$   158,216$  6,698$         6,957$       275,741$     870,676$     

CITY OF WOODLAKE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2017

Special Revenue Funds
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Landscaping

Lighting Transportation AB 3229 Woodlake

District Tax COPS CDBG HOME Housing STP

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenues 33,406$           289,203$      130,086$   372,122$   12,361$   -$               76,398$      913,576$   

Repayment of loans -                       -                    -                 -                 -               3,157          -                 3,157         

Use of money and property 85                    81                 397            -                 -               25               -                 588            

Total revenues 33,491             289,284        130,483     372,122     12,361     3,182          76,398       917,321     

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Community development -                       -                    -                 372,122     12,361     -                 -                 384,483     

Public safety -                       -                    99,600       -                 -               -                 -                 99,600       

Public works 38,581             -                    -                 -                 -               -                 -                 38,581       

Capital Outlay:

Public works -                       74,658          -                 -                 -               -                 -                 74,658       

Debt service:

Principal -                       -                    -                 -                 -               -                 -                 -                 

Interest -                       -                    -                 -                 -               -                 -                 -                 

Total expenditures 38,581             74,658          99,600       372,122     12,361     -                 -                 597,322     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (5,090)              214,626        30,883       -                 -               3,182          76,398       319,999     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in -                       -                    -                 -                 -               -                 199,343     199,343     

Transfers out -                       (94,679)         -                 -                 -               -                 -                 (94,679)      

Total other financing sources and uses -                       (94,679)         -                 -                 -               -                 199,343     104,664     

Net change in fund balances (5,090)              119,947        30,883       -                 -               3,182          275,741     424,663     

Fund balance, July 1 26,769             114,215        80,234       2,751         -               3,775          -                 227,744     

Fund balances, June 30 21,679$           234,162$      111,117$   2,751$       -$             6,957$        275,741$    652,407$   

Special Revenue Funds

CITY OF WOODLAKE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

62228



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Woodlake 
Woodlake, California 

 
Single Audit Report on Federal Awards 

 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

229



City of Woodlake, California 
 
Single Audit Report on Federal Awards 
Table of Contents 
 
 

 

  Page 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 

Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

  
 

1 
   
Report on Compliance for Each Major Program; Report on Internal Control 

Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

  
 

3 
   
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  6 
   
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  7 
   
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs  9 
   
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings  11 
   

230



735 E. Carnegie Dr. Suite I 00 

San Bernardino, CA 92408 

909 889 0871 T 

909889536 1 F 

ramscpa .net 

PARTNERS 

Brenda L. Odle, CPA. MST 

Terry P. Shea, CPA 

Kirk A. Franks, CPA 

Scott W. Manno, CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag, CPA, MST, CGMA 

Bradferd A. Welebir. CPA, MBA. CGMA 

Jay H . Zercher, CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

Phillip H. Waller, CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

MANAGERS I STAFF 

Jenny Liu, CPA. MST 

Seong-Hyea Lee, CPA, MBA 

Charles De Simoni, CPA 

Gardenya Duran, CPA 

Brianna Schultz, CPA 

Lisa Dongxue Guo, CPA, MSA 

MEMBERS 
American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants 

PCPS The AICPA Alliance 
(or CPA Firms 

Governmental Audit 
Quality Center 

California Society of 
Certified Public Accountants 

ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS. SINCE 1948 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Independent Auditor's Report 

The Honorable City Council 
City of Woodlake, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Woodlake (the 
City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
March 8, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we 
considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a 
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course 
of performing thei r assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

-1-

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. 

231
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City of Woodlake, California 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
San Bernardino, California 
March 8, 2018 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM; REPORT 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED 
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Independent Auditor's Report 

The Honorable City Council 
City of Woodlake, California 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Woodlake's (the City) compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the 
City's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. The 
City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's 
results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable 
to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the 
City's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance) . Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis , evidence about City's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances . 
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s 
compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City’s internal control over 
compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform 
Guidance 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Woodlake as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. We issued our 
report thereon dated March 8, 2018 which contained unmodified opinions on those financial 
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 
 

 
San Bernardino, California 
March 8, 2018 
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City of Woodlake 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2017  

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
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Federal Grantor/Pass- Through Grantor/Program Title

Federal 
CFDA 

Number
Program/Project 

Identification Number
 Federal 

Expenditures 

 Amount 
Provided to 

Subrecipients 

U.S .  De pa rtment of Housing a nd Urba n De ve lopme nt
Passed through the State of California

2014 Community Development Block Grant 14.218* 14 CDBG 9895 372,122$         -$                     
Tota l CFDA 14 .2 18 372,122            -                        

Passed through the State of California
HOME Investment Partnership Grant 14.239 08 CALHome- 4896 5,663                 -                        

Tota l CFDA 14 .2 3 9 5,663                 -                        

Tota l U.S .  De pa rtment of Housing a nd Urba n De ve lopment 3 7 7 ,78 5    -                        

U.S .  De pa rtment of Justic e
Direct Assistance:

COPS MORE grant 16.710 12,364               -                        
COPS Hiring Recovery Program 16.710 2009- RKWX0173 117,186              

Tota l CFDA 16 .7 10 129,550            -                        

Tota l U.S .  De pa rtment of Justic e 12 9 ,55 0     -                        

U.S .  De pa rtment of Tra nsporta tion
Passed through the State of California

FTA 5311 Grant 20.509 SA641129- 00 75,545              -                        
Tota l CFDA 2 0 .5 09 75,545              -                        

Passed through the State of California
CMAQ -  Roundabout 20.205* CML- 5284(009) 397,078           -                        

Tota l CFDA 2 0 .2 05 397,078           -                        

Passed through the State of California
Federal Aviation Administration 20.106 114,660             -                        

Tota l CFDA 2 0 .10 6 114,660             -                        

Tota l U.S .  De pa rtment of Tra nsporta tion 5 8 7 ,28 3    -                        

U.S .  De pa rtment of Agric ulture
Direct Assistance:

Community Facilities- Grant 10.780 862997- 04 588,093           -                        
Tota l CFDA 10 .7 8 0 588,093           -                        

Passed through the State Water Resources Control Board
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program 66.458 13.- 831- 550- 0 117,186              -                        

Tota l CFDA 6 6 .4 58 117,186              -                        

U.S.  Depa rtment of Agric ulture 7 0 5 ,27 9    -                        

U.S .  De pa rtment of Homela nd Se curity
Direct Assistance:

State Homeland Security Program 97.067 2012- SS- 00123 10,894               -                        
Tota l CFDA 9 7 .0 67 10,894               -                        

Tota l U.S .  De pa rtment of Homeland Sec urity 10 ,89 4       -                        

Tota l Expe nditure s of Fe de ra l Awards 1,810,791$      -$                     
* -  Major Program  
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Applicable to the Schedule of 
 Expenditures of Federal Awards 
 

(a) Scope of Presentation 
 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) 
includes the federal award activity of the City of Woodlake (the City) under 
programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2017.  The 
information on this Schedule is prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance).  Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of 
the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present the financial 
position, changes in net position and changes in cash flows, where applicable, of 
the City. 
 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
 
The expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, 
either the cost principles of in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local 
and Indian Tribal Governments, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement.  Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent 
adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts 
reported as expenditures in prior years. The City has elected not to use the 10-
percent de-minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.  
 

(c) Sub-recipients 
 

The City may pass certain federal awards on to sub-recipients.  The Government 
has certain compliance responsibilities, such as monitoring its subrecipients to 
help assure they use these subawards as authorized by laws, regulations, and 
the provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and that subrecipients achieve 
the award’s performance goals. 
 

(d) Pass through identifying numbers 
 
Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available. 
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Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

-8- 

 
 
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Applicable to the Schedule of 
 Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued) 

 
(e) Loan Programs with Continuing Compliance Requirements 

 
The federal loan programs listed subsequently are administered directly by the 
City, and balances and transactions relating to these programs are included in 
the City’s basic financial statements.  The balances of loans outstanding at June 
30, 2017 consist of: 
 

CFDA Number Program Name

Outstanding 
Balance at 

June 30, 2017

10.766 USDA Community Facilities-Water Loan 1,766,661$     
10.766 USDA Community Facilities-Water Loan 2,363,000       
10.766 USDA Community Facilities-Sewer Loan 8,090,900       
10.766 USDA Community Facilities-Sewer Loan 3,700,200       

Total 15,920,761$   

 
 

 

238



City of Woodlake 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

-9- 

 
 
SECTION I. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements

audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs:  unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that
are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) Yes X No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number
14.218
14.205

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs: 750,000$        

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

Name of Federal Program

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements

Community Development Block Grant
CMAQ - Roundabout
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SECTION II. FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
No matters to be reported. 
 
SECTION III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
No matters to be reported. 
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Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 
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CURRENT STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS: 
 
Finding 2016-001 – Corrected and implemented 
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City of Woodlake 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-D  

April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Jason, Waters, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT:  

 
Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Woodlake 

Sewer Improvements – Public Hearing 

 

BACKGROUND 

 
The proposed Project will implement capacity improvements, as well as repair and replacement of 

aging sewer system assets. The capacity improvements will be accomplished through upsizing 

existing lines, either through excavation and replacement with larger diameter lines or utilizing pipe 

bursting methods. In one instance, installation of a new, parallel trunk line will route flow that would 

otherwise exceed the capacity of an existing trunk sewer located in Valencia Street. The capacity 

improvements were identified through assessment of computer model simulations, physical 

investigation, and routine O&M activities. In addition to the capacity improvements the City plans to 

repair or replace aging infrastructure that is close to the end of its useful life. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The City of Woodlake, with Stantec, determined that the project required an Initial Study prior to 

approval. The determination of the Initial Study was that the proposed project could not have 

significant effect on the environment, and a mitigated negative declaration would be prepared.  

 

A notice was circulated for the IS/MND and the City received a comment from Caltrans: 

1. Caltrans submitted comments requesting coordination with Caltrans if the project had 

impacts on SR 2445 and SR 216. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

That the Woodlake City Council approve the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Woodlake 

Sewer Improvements project. 

 

 FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

1. Resolution: Approve Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Woodlake Sewer Improvements 

project 

2. Project Mitigated Negative Declaration (Under Separate Cover) 
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BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF MITIGATED NEGATIVE  ) 

DECLARATION FOR WOODLAKE SEWER  )  Resolution No. 18- 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT   ) 

 

 

Councilmember _________, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approval 

of Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Woodlake Sewer Improvements project. 

 
WHEREAS, the project will implement capacity improvements, as well as repair and 

replacement of aging sewer system assets, and 

 

WHEREAS, the project will occur throughout the city, and 

 

WHEREAS, a public meeting notice was published in the Foothill Sun Gazette prior to the 

Woodlake City Council meeting, and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the "project" necessitated a Mitigated Negative 

Declaration and one has been prepared on the project, and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public meeting on this matter, reviewed the staff report 

prepared on this proposed project and considered public input regarding the design of the project, 

and 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Woodlake City Council hereby approves a 

Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Woodlake Sewer Improvements Project. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember _______, and seconded 

by Councilmember _________ , and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting 

held on April 9, 2018. 

 

 AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN:. 

 ABSENT:  

       _____________________ 

       Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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City of Woodlake 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-E  

April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Jason, Waters, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT:  

 
Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of Negative Declaration for the Micham Storage Facility 

– Public Hearing 

 

BACKGROUND 

 
The applicant is proposing to operate a commercial storage facility at APNs 061-070-033 & 060-

070-034. This use would necessitate a change of zone and land use. The Planning Commission 

recommended approval of both amendments.  

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The City of Woodlake determined that the project required an Initial Study prior to approval. The 

determination of the Initial Study was that the proposed project could not have significant effect on 

the environment, and a negative declaration would be prepared.  

 

The project consists of the construction of a metal storage facility and two Amendments: 

 

General Plan Amendment 

APNs 061-070-033 & 061-070-034 shall be changed from Rural Residential to Service Commercial. 

 

Zoning Amendment 

APNs 061-070-033 & 061-070-034 shall be changed from Rural Residential to Service Commercial. 

 

A notice was circulated for the IS/ND and the City did not receive any comments. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

That the Woodlake City Council approve the Negative Declaration for the Micham Storage Facility 

 

 FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

1. Resolution: Approve Negative Declaration for the Micham Storage Facility 

2. Project Negative Declaration (Under Separate Cover) 
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BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF NEGATIVE   ) 

DECLARATION FOR THE MICHAM    )  Resolution No. 18- 

STORAGE FACILITY    ) 

 

 

Councilmember _______, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approval of 

Negative Declaration for the Micham Storage Facility. 

 
WHEREAS, the project consists of the construction of a metal storage facility and two 

Amendments: 

 

General Plan Amendment 

APNs 061-070-033 & 061-070-034 shall be changed from Rural Residential to Service 

Commercial. 

 

Zoning Amendment 

APNs 061-070-033 & 061-070-034 shall be changed from Rural Residential to Service 

Commercial. 

 

WHEREAS, the project will occur at 967 E. Naranjo Blvd. in Woodlake, and 

 

WHEREAS, a public meeting notice was published in the Foothill Sun Gazette prior to the 

Woodlake City Council meeting, and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the "project" necessitated a Negative Declaration and it 

has been prepared on the project, and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public meeting on this matter, reviewed the staff report 

prepared on this proposed project and considered public input regarding the design of the project, 

and 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Woodlake City Council hereby approves a 

Negative declaration for the Micham Storage Facility. 
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The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember _________, and 

seconded by Councilmember _________, and carried by the following vote at the City Council 

meeting held on April 9, 2018. 

 

 AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN:. 

 ABSENT:  

       _____________________ 

       Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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City of Woodlake 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-F  

April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Jason Waters 

 

SUBJECT:  

 
Action: Adoption of Resolution:  Approval of Zoning Amendment 18-001 and General Plan 

Amendment 18-001 for APN’s 061-070-033 & 061-070-034– Public Hearing 

 

BACKGROUND 

 
The applicant is proposing to operate a commercial storage facility at APNs 061-070-033 & 060-

070-034. This use would necessitate a change of zone and land use. The Planning Commission 

recommended approval of both amendments.  

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

General Plan Amendment 18-001 

 

The subject territory is designated rural residential by the Land Use Element of the Woodlake 

General Plan.  As proposed, the proposed project would not be consistent with the current land use. 

Staff is recommending that the general plan be amended to redesignate the subject property to 

Service Commercial. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Amendment 18-001 

 

 To implement General Plan Amendment 18-001, the subject property needs to be rezoned to a 

district that is consistent with the Service Commercial regulations.  Staff has concluded that the 

appropriate zone is Service Commercial.  

 

ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT: 

 

An Initial Study and Negative Declaration has been approved by City Council.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Approval of Zoning Amendment 18-001 and General Plan Amendment18-001 for APNs 061-070-

033 & 061-070-034 to the Woodlake City Council. 

 

 FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 
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ATTACHMENTS:   

 

1. Resolution: Approval of Zoning Amendment 18-001 and General Plan Amendment18-001 

for APNs 061-070-033 & 061-070-034  
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BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF ZONING   ) 

AMENDMENT 18-001 & GENERAL     )  Resolution No. 18- 

PLAN AMENDMENT 18-001 FOR  ) 

APNS 061-070-033 & 061-070-034  ) 

TO THE WOODLAKE CITY COUNCIL ) 

 

Councilmember _______, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. That the 

Woodlake City Council approve Zoning Amendment 18-001 and General Plan Amendment18-

001 for APNs 061-070-033 & 061-070-034. 

 
WHEREAS, the applicant is proposing to construct a metal building and provide construction 

storage at 967 E. Naranjo Blvd. in Woodlake, and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed use necessitates a change in zone and general plan designation, and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby approves Zoning 

Amendment 18-001 and General Plan Amendment 18-001 for APNs 061-070-033 & 061-070-

034 as follows: 

 

General Plan Amendment 

APNs 061-070-033 & 061-070-034 shall be changed from Rural Residential to Service 

Commercial. 

 

Zoning Amendment 

APNs 061-070-033 & 061-070-034 shall be changed from Rural Residential to Service 

Commercial. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember _______, and seconded 

by Councilmember _______, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held 

on April 9, 2018. 

 

 AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:  

 

      _____________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 
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City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM V-G  

April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Information: Presentation of the City of Woodlake’s Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Annually, City staff submits to the City Council a draft budget. The draft budget is submitted at 

scheduled Council meetings, which are open to the public. The purpose of the budgeting process 

is to propose necessary expenditures and the means of funding them for the upcoming fiscal 

year.  Time is also dedicated to looking at the future needs of the City and preparing for projects 

that may be needed five to ten years down the road.  The current budget will be in place from 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019. 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The City of Woodlake, like many other governmental agencies, has needed adapt to current 

economic conditions and revenue streams.  The City has taken a conservative approach during its 

budget process, while keeping in mind the wellbeing of its citizens and its employees.    

 

For Fiscal Year 2018/2019 City staff is presenting a DRAFT balanced budget that allows for 

adequate services to be provided for its citizens.  Some of the major highlights will be the 

construction of the Woodlake Community Center and continued improvements to the City’s 

water and sewer systems.     

 

As part of the Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget, one new position will be added to the Police 

department and funded by Measure R the City’s local sales tax measure.  The City will have 

thirty-two full time employees and the departments will be staffed as follows: 

 

1. City Administration and Clerical – 7 

(City Administrator, City Clerk, Community Services Director, Accountant, Planner 

1, Clerk(2)) 

2. Police Department – 14 

(Chief, Lieutenant, Sergeant(2), Officers(9), Clerk) 

3. Public Works – 11 

(Supervisor, Chief Waste Water, Chief Water, Waste Water II, Building Inspector, 

Mechanic, Maintenance Worker(5), Bus Driver) 
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FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The DRAFT budget as presented for Fiscal Year 2018/2019 is a balanced budget for all City 

funds.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

  

1. DRAFT City of Woodlake Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget (in a separate cover) 
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City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM V-H  

April 9, 2018 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Information: City of Woodlake Student Representative  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Annually, the City of Woodlake City Council nominates and appoints a student representative 

from the Woodlake Unified School District to serve as a liaison between the School and the City.  

The student representative informs the Council of school functions, activities, sports and general 

news that may be occurring at the school.  

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

Unfortunately, the student representative that was nominated this year has had too many school 

functions to attend, which has not allowed her to attend City Council meetings.  At the March 26, 

2018, City Council meeting it was requested by Council that an item be put on the agenda to 

discuss how to move forward regarding the student representative position.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

None 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

  

None 
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